Table of Contents

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012
Commission File Number 1-13783

Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Delaware

76-0542208

(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer
Identification No.)

5433 Westheimer Road, Suite 500, Houston, Texas, 77056
(Address of principal executive offices and ZIP code)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (713) 860-1500
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of each class

Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share

NASDAQ

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None
Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes ¨ No x
Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. Yes ¨ No x
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No ¨
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File
required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes x No ¨
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the
best of the Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to
this Form 10-K. ¨
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See
the definitions of “large accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):
Large accelerated filer

¨

Accelerated filer

¨

Non-accelerated filer

x (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Smaller reporting company

¨

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes ¨ No x
The aggregate market value of the voting stock of the Registrant on March 30, 2012 held by non-affiliates was approximately $17.7 million. On
December 14, 2012, there were 14,840,748 shares of common stock outstanding.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Certain information contained in the Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Registrant to be held on February 5, 2013 is
incorporated by reference into Part III of this Form 10-K.

Table of Contents

FORM 10-K
INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.
Table of Contents
Page

PART I
DEFINITIONS
DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS
Item 1
BUSINESS
Item 1A
RISK FACTORS
Item 1B
UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Item 2
PROPERTIES
Item 3
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Item 4
MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

1
1
3
13
17
18
18
18

Item 6
Item 7
Item 7A
Item 8
Item 9
Item 9A
Item 9B

PART II
MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY; RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
OTHER INFORMATION

18
20
21
39
41
80
80
81

Item 10
Item 11
Item 12
Item 13
Item 14

PART III
DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

82
82
82
83
83

Item 15

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Item 5

PART IV
83

SIGNATURES
EX-10.24
EX-10.38
EX-10.39
EX-10.40
EX-21.1
EX-23.1
EX-31.1
EX-31.2
EX-32.1
EX-32.2

88

i

Table of Contents

PART I
DEFINITIONS
In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the words “IES”, the “Company”, the “Registrant”, “we”, “our”, “ours” and “us” refer to Integrated Electrical Services,
Inc. and, except as otherwise specified herein, to our subsidiaries.
DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes certain statements that may be deemed “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, all of which are based upon various estimates and assumptions that the
Company believes to be reasonable as of the date hereof. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,”
“could,” “should,” “expect,” “plan,” “project,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “seek,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” “pursue,” “target,” “continue,”
the negative of such terms or other comparable terminology. These statements involve risks and uncertainties that could cause the Company’s actual future
outcomes to differ materially from those set forth in such statements. Such risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to:
•

fluctuations in operating activity due to downturns in levels of construction, seasonality and differing regional economic conditions;

•

competition in our respective industries, both from third parties and former employees, which could result in the loss of one or more customers or lead
to lower margins on new projects;

•

a general reduction in the demand for our services;

•

a change in the mix of our customers, contracts and business;

•

our ability to successfully manage projects;

•

possibility of errors when estimating revenue and progress to date on percentage-of-completion contracts;

•

inaccurate estimates used when entering into fixed-priced contracts;

•

challenges integrating new businesses into the Company or new types of work or new processes into our divisions;

•

the cost and availability of qualified labor;

•

accidents resulting from the physical hazards associated with our work and the potential for accidents;

•

success in transferring, renewing and obtaining electrical and construction licenses;

•

our ability to pass along increases in the cost of commodities used in our business, in particular, copper, aluminum, steel, fuel and certain plastics;

•

potential supply chain disruptions due to credit or liquidity problems faced by our suppliers;

•

loss of key personnel and effective transition of new management;

•

warranty losses, damages or other latent defect claims in excess of our existing reserves and accruals;

•

warranty losses or other unexpected liabilities stemming from former divisions which we have sold or closed;

•

growth in latent defect litigation in states where we provide residential electrical work for home builders not otherwise covered by insurance;

•

limitations on the availability of sufficient credit or cash flow to fund our working capital needs;
1
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•

difficulty in fulfilling the covenant terms of our credit facilities;

•

increased cost of surety bonds affecting margins on work and the potential for our surety providers to refuse bonding or require additional collateral at
their discretion;

•

increases in bad debt expense and days sales outstanding due to liquidity problems faced by our customers;

•

changes in the assumptions made regarding future events used to value our stock options and performance-based stock awards;

•

the recognition of potential goodwill, long-lived assets and other investment impairments;

•

uncertainties inherent in estimating future operating results, including revenues, operating income or cash flow;

•

disagreements with taxing authorities with regard to tax positions we have adopted;

•

the recognition of tax benefits related to uncertain tax positions;

•

complications associated with the incorporation of new accounting, control and operating procedures;

•

the financial impact of new or proposed accounting regulations;

•

the ability of our controlling shareholder to take action not aligned with other shareholders;

•

the possibility that certain tax benefits of our net operating losses may be restricted or reduced in a change in ownership;

•

credit and capital market conditions, including changes in interest rates that affect the cost of construction financing and mortgages, and the inability
for some of our customers to retain sufficient financing which could lead to project delays or cancellations;

•

the sale or disposition of the shares of our common stock held by our majority shareholder, which, under certain circumstances, would trigger change of
control provisions in contracts such as employment agreements and financing and surety arrangements; and

•

additional closures or sales of facilities could result in significant future charges and a significant disruption of our operations.

You should understand that the foregoing, as well as other risk factors discussed in this document, including those listed in Part I, Item 1A of this report under
the heading “Risk Factors” could cause future outcomes to differ materially from those experienced previously or those expressed in such forward-looking
statements. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any information, including information concerning our controlling shareholder, net
operating losses, restructuring efforts, borrowing availability, cash position, or any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that may
arise after the date of this report. Forward-looking statements are provided in this Form 10-K pursuant to the safe harbor established under the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and should be evaluated in the context of the estimates, assumptions, uncertainties and risks described herein.
INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA
This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes certain industry and market data that we obtained from independent industry publications or other published
independent sources. These publications generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable,
although they do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. While we believe that each of these publications is reliable, we have not
independently verified any of the data from third-party sources nor have we ascertained the underlying economic or operational assumptions relied upon
therein.
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Item 1.

Business
OVERVIEW OF OUR SERVICES

Integrated Electrical Services, Inc., a Delaware corporation, is a leading provider of infrastructure services to the residential, commercial and industrial
industries as well as for data centers and other mission critical environments. We operate primarily in the electrical infrastructure markets, with a corporate
focus on expanding into other markets through strategic acquisitions or investments. Originally established as IES in 1997, we provide services from our 61
domestic locations as of September 30, 2012. Our operations are organized into three principal business segments, based upon the nature of our current
products and services:
•

Communications – Nationwide provider of products and services for mission critical infrastructure, such as data centers, of large corporations.

•

Residential – Regional provider of electrical installation services for single-family housing and multi-family apartment complexes.

•

Commercial & Industrial – Provider of electrical design, construction, and maintenance services to the commercial and industrial markets in
various regional markets and nationwide in certain areas of expertise, such as the power infrastructure market.

Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. is headquartered in Houston, Texas and maintains its executive office in Greenwich, Connecticut.
CORPORATE STRATEGY
We seek to create shareholder value through positive returns on capital and generation of free cash flow. In addition, we seek to acquire or invest in similar
stand-alone platform companies based in North America or acquire businesses that strategically fit within our existing business segments. In evaluating
potential acquisition candidates, we seek to invest in businesses with, among other characteristics:
•

Significant market share in niche industries and low technological and/or product obsolescence risk;

•

Proven management with a willingness to continue post acquisition;

•

Established market position and sustainable advantage;

•

High returns on invested capital; and

•

Strong cash flow characteristics.

We believe that acquisitions provide an opportunity to expand into new end markets and diversify our revenue and profit streams. Further, by acquiring
businesses with strong cash flow characteristics we expect to maximize the value of our significant net operating loss carry forwards (“NOLs”), described
further below. While we may use acquisitions to build our presence in the electrical infrastructure industry, we will also consider potential acquisitions in
other industries, which could result in changes in our operations from those historically conducted by us.
A majority of our outstanding common stock is owned by Tontine Capital Partners, L.P. and its affiliates (collectively, “Tontine”). On July 21, 2011, Tontine
filed an amended Schedule 13D indicating its ownership level of 57.4%. As a result, Tontine can control most of our affairs, including any action requiring
the approval of shareholders, such as the approval of any potential merger or sale of all or substantially all assets, divisions, or the Company itself. While
Tontine is subject to restrictions under federal securities laws on sales of its shares as an affiliate, Tontine is party to a Registration Rights Agreement with the
Company under which it has the ability, subject to certain restrictions, to demand registration of its shares in order to permit unrestricted sales of those shares.
Tontine has indicated to the Company that it may seek to register some or all of its shares in the near
3
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future. The Registration Rights Agreement is filed as an Exhibit to this Form 10-K and any description thereof is qualified in its entirety by the terms of the
Registration Rights Agreement. For more information see Note 3, “Controlling Shareholder” in the notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements.
Net Operating Loss Carry Forward
The Company and certain of its subsidiaries have a federal NOL of approximately $452 million at September 30, 2012, including approximately $139
million resulting from the additional amortization of personal goodwill. A change in ownership, as defined by Internal Revenue Code Section 382, could
reduce the availability of net operating losses for federal and state income tax purposes. Should Tontine sell or exchange all or a portion of its position in
IES, a change in ownership could occur. In addition a change in ownership could result from the purchase of common stock by an existing or a new 5%
shareholder as defined by Internal Revenue Code Section 382. Should a change in ownership occur, all net operating losses incurred prior to the change in
ownership would be subject to limitation imposed by Internal Revenue Code Section 382, which would substantially reduce the amount of NOL currently
available to offset taxable income. For more information see Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K.
The Company is currently evaluating steps it may take to protect its federal NOLs, including evaluating implementing a tax benefit protection plan that
would be designed to deter an acquisition of the Company’s stock in excess of a threshold amount that could trigger a change of control within the meaning
of Internal Revenue Code Section 382. If implemented, such a plan would be designed to effectively dilute the ownership of such an acquirer through the
offering of rights to the Company’s other shareholders that could be exercised upon an acquisition of the Company’s stock in excess of the threshold amount.
The Company may pursue such a plan or other alternatives to protecting its NOLs in the event the Company deems it appropriate, although there can be no
assurance that such a plan will be implemented or that, if enacted, it would be effective in deterring a change of control or protecting the NOLs.
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
The residential, industrial, mission critical infrastructure and commercial industries in which we operate are exposed to many regional and national trends
such as the demand for single and multi-family housing, the need for mission critical facilities as a result of technology-driven advancements, and changes in
commercial, institutional, public infrastructure and electric utility spending. Over the long term, we believe that there are numerous factors that could
positively drive demand and affect growth within the industries in which we operate, including (i) population growth, which will increase the need for
commercial and residential facilities, (ii) aging public infrastructure, which must be replaced or repaired, (iii) increased emphasis on environmental and
energy efficiency, which may lead to both increased public and private spending, and (iv) the low price of natural gas combined with an increase in domestic
oil and gas output, which is expected to spur the construction of and modifications to heavy industrial facilities.
4
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For a further discussion of the industries in which we operate, please see “Operating Segments Section” below.
OPERATING SEGMENTS
The table below describes the percentage of our total revenues attributable to each of our three segments over each of the last three years:
2012
$

Communications
Residential
Commercial & Industrial
Total Consolidated

$121,492
129,974
204,649
$456,115

Years Ended September 30,
2011
%
$
%
$
(Dollars in thousands, Percentage of revenues)

26.6%
28.5%
44.9%
100.0%

$ 83,615
114,732
207,794
$406,141

20.6%
28.2%
51.2%
100.0%

2010

$ 69,171
115,947
197,313
$382,431

%

18.1%
30.3%
51.6%
100.0%

For additional financial information by segment, see Note 11, “Operating Segments” in the notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements.
Communications
Business Description
Originally established in 1984, our Communications segment is a leading provider of network infrastructure products and services for data centers and other
mission critical environments. Services offered include the design, installation and maintenance of network infrastructure for the financial, medical,
hospitality, government, high-tech manufacturing, educational and information technology industries. We also provide the design and installation of
audio/visual, telephone, fire, wireless and intrusion alarm systems as well as design/build, service and maintenance of data network systems. A significant
portion of our Communications revenue is generated from long-term, repeat customers, some of whom use IES as a preferred provider for major projects. We
perform services across the United States from our ten offices, which includes our Communications headquarters located in Tempe, Arizona, allowing
dedicated onsite maintenance teams at our customers’ sites.
In 2010, our Communications segment was separated from our Commercial & Industrial segment to form a new operating segment. The decision to report
Communications as a separate segment was made as the Company changed its internal reporting structure and the segment gained greater significance as a
percentage of consolidated revenues, gross profit and operating income. Moreover, the Communications segment was identified as a separate and specific
part of future strategic growth plans of the Company.
Sales and Marketing
We primarily specialize in installations of communication systems, and site and national account support for the mission critical infrastructure of Fortune 500
corporations. Our sales strategy relies on a concentrated business development effort, with centralized corporate marketing programs and direct end-customer
communications and relationships. Due to the mission critical nature of the facilities we service, our end-customers significantly rely upon our past
performance record, technical expertise and specialized knowledge. Our long-term strategy is to improve our position as a preferred mission critical solutions
and services provider to large national corporations and strategic local companies. Key elements of our long-term strategy include continued investment in
our employees’ technical expertise and expansion of our onsite maintenance and recurring revenue model.
5
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Competition
Our competition consists of both small, privately owned contractors who have limited access to capital and large public companies. We compete on quality
of service and/or price, and seek to emphasize our long history of delivering high quality solutions to our customers.
Industry Overview
Our Communications segment is driven by demand increases for computing and storage resources as a result of technology advancements and changes in
data consumption patterns. We believe this trend towards increased data storage and retrieval on the “cloud” will continue to grow the data center segment of
this industry. Additionally, devices such as smart phones and laptops are requiring greater bandwidth and interconnectivity. Based on Frost & Sullivan’s
“Data Center Market Update, 2012” report, data center construction, our core market, is expected to increase by 10% in 2013 and by 9.5% in 2014 in terms of
usable square footage. Nevertheless, due to economic, technological and other factors, there can be no assurance that construction and demand will continue
to increase.
Residential
Business Description
Our Residential business provides electrical installation services for single-family housing and multi-family apartment complexes and CATV cabling
installations for residential and light commercial applications. In addition to our core electrical construction work, the Residential segment also provides
services for the installation of residential solar power, smart meters, and electric car charging stations, both for new construction and existing residences. The
Residential division is made up of 32 total locations, which includes the headquarters in Houston. These division locations geographically cover Texas, the
Sun-Belt, and the Western and Mid-Atlantic regions of the United States, including Hawaii.
Sales and Marketing
Demand for our Residential services is highly dependent on the number of single-family and multi-family home starts in the markets we serve. Although we
operate in multiple states throughout the Sun-Belt, Mid-Atlantic and western regions of the United States, the majority of our segment revenues are derived
from services provided in the state of Texas. Our sales efforts include a variety of strategies, including a concentrated focus on national homebuilders and
multi-family developers and a local sales strategy for single and multi-family housing projects. Our cable, solar and electric car charging station revenues are
typically generated through industry-specific third parties to which we act as a preferred provider of installation services.
Our long-term strategy is to continue to be the leading national provider of electrical services to the residential market. Although the key elements of our
long-term strategy include a continued focus on maintaining a low and variable cost structure and cash generation, during the housing downturn we modified
our strategy by expanding into markets less exposed to national building cycles, such as solar panel and electric car charging installations. As we begin to
experience increased activity in the residential sector, we are prepared to increase our scale to support an increase in activity.
Competition
Our competition primarily consists of small, privately owned contractors who have limited access to capital. We believe that we have a competitive
advantage over these smaller competitors due to our key employees’ long-standing customer relationships, our financial capabilities, and our local market
knowledge and competitive pricing. There are few barriers to entry for our electrical contracting services in the residential markets.
6
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Industry Overview
Our Residential business is closely correlated to the single and multi-family housing market in the United States and our installation capabilities have the
ability to effectively scale according to the housing cycle. According to McGraw Hill Construction’s Dodge Construction Outlook dated October 2012 (the
“McGraw Hill Outlook”), single family housing starts are forecasted to increase approximately 21% in 2013 driven by improvements in home prices and unit
sales as well as greater consumer confidence. Additionally, according to the McGraw Hill Outlook, multi-family housing starts are forecasted to improve by
approximately 14% in 2013 as investor confidence, job growth and financing sources all improve. Demand for multi-family housing is further boosted by
still restrictive home lending standards, slow employment growth and household formation trends among the “Generation Y” demographic, many of whom
cannot afford the down-payments required to purchase a home. Nevertheless, due to economic, technological or other factors there can be no assurance that
construction and demand will continue to increase.
Commercial & Industrial
Business Description
Our Commercial & Industrial segment is one of the largest providers of electrical contracting services in the United States. The division offers a broad range
of electrical design, construction, renovation, engineering and maintenance services to the commercial and industrial markets. The Commercial & Industrial
division consist of 19 total locations, which includes the division headquarters in Houston, Texas. These locations geographically cover Texas, Nebraska,
Colorado, Oregon and the Mid-Atlantic region.
Services include the design of electrical systems within a building or complex and procurement and installation of wiring and connection to power sources,
end-use equipment and fixtures, as well as contract maintenance. We focus on projects that require special expertise, such as design-and-build projects that
utilize the capabilities of our in-house experts, or projects which require specific market expertise, such as transmission and distribution projects. We also
focus on service, maintenance and certain renovation and upgrade work, which tends to be either recurring or have lower sensitivity to economic cycles, or
both. We provide services for a variety of projects, including: office buildings, manufacturing facilities, data centers, chemical plants, refineries, wind farms,
solar facilities and municipal infrastructure and health care facilities. Our utility services consist of overhead and underground installation and maintenance
of electrical and other utilities transmission and distribution networks, installation and splicing of high-voltage transmission and distribution lines,
substation construction and substation and right-of-way maintenance. Our maintenance services generally provide recurring revenues that are typically less
affected by levels of construction activity. Service and maintenance revenues are derived from service calls and routine maintenance contracts, which tend to
be recurring and less sensitive to short-term economic fluctuations.
Sales and Marketing
Demand for our Commercial & Industrial services is driven by construction and renovation activity levels, economic growth, and availability of bank
lending. Certain of our industrial projects have longer cycle times than our typical Commercial & Industrial services and may follow the economic trends
with a lag. Our sales focus varies by location, but is primarily based upon regional and local relationships with general contractors and a demonstrated
expertise in certain industries, such as transmission and distribution.
Our long-term strategy has been modified over the past two years due to the downturn in the construction industry. Our long-term strategy is to be the
preferred provider of electrical services in the markets where we have demonstrated expertise or are a local market leader. Key elements of our long-term
strategy include leveraging our expertise in certain niche markets, expansion of our service and maintenance business and maintaining our focus on our
returns on risk adjusted capital.
7
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Competition
The electrical infrastructure services industry is generally highly competitive and includes a number of regional or small privately-held local firms. There are
few barriers to entry for our electrical contracting services in the commercial and industrial markets, which limits our advantages when competing for
projects. Industry expertise, project size, location and past performance will determine our bidding strategy, the level of involvement from competitors and
our level of success in winning awards. Our primary advantages vary by location and market, but mostly are based upon local individual relationships with
key employees or a demonstrated industry expertise. Additionally, due to the size of many of our projects, our financial resources help us compete effectively
against local competitors.
Industry Overview
Given the diverse end markets of our Commercial & Industrial customers, which include both commercial buildings, such as offices, healthcare facilities and
schools, and industrial projects, such as power, chemical, refinery and heavy manufacturing facilities, we are subject to many trends within the construction
industry. In general, demand for our Commercial & Industrial services is driven by construction and renovation activity levels, economic growth, and
availability of bank lending. Due to economic, technological or other factors there can be no assurance that construction and demand will continue to
increase.
According to the McGraw Hill Outlook, commercial construction is forecasted to increase approximately 11% in 2013 driven by improvements in the retail,
warehouse, office and hotel sectors during 2013, according to the McGraw Hill Outlook. Institutional building construction is forecasted to slightly increase
0.3% in 2013, turning positive for the first time in four years as state finances are finally showing signs of stabilizing.
Public works construction is forecasted to rise 5% in 2013 after three years of decline while electric utility construction activity is forecasted to drop 20% in
2013, according to the McGraw Hill Outlook. The increase in public works construction is expected to come from a rebound in highway and bridge
construction, which was impacted by a reduction in federal funding and tight fiscal conditions for state and local governments over the past two years, and
some increased activity for rail projects. Although electric utility construction activity is expected to decrease in 2013, according to the McGraw Hill
Outlook, the projected $35 billion of spending is still a high level by historical standards.
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
We are focused on return on capital and cash flow to maximize long-term shareholder value. As a result, beginning in 2011, we increased our focus on a
number of initiatives to return the Company to profitability (the “2011 Restructuring Plan”). Included in these initiatives was the closure or sale of a number
of facilities within our Commercial & Industrial segment and one location in our Communications segment. During 2011, we initiated the sale or closure of
all or portions of our Commercial facilities in Arizona, Florida, Iowa, Maryland, Massachusetts, Nevada and Texas, our Industrial facility in Louisiana, and
our Communications facility in Maryland. We have substantially concluded the closure of these facilities as of September 30, 2012. Results from operations
of these facilities for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 are presented in our Consolidated Statements of Operations as discontinued
operations. For further discussion of discontinued operations, please refer to Note 17, “Discontinued Operations” in the notes to our Consolidated Financial
Statements. The 2011 Restructuring Plan is more fully described in Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — The 2011 Restructuring Plan” of this Form 10-K.
SAFETY CULTURE
Performance of our contracting and maintenance services exposes us to unique potential hazards associated specifically with the electrical contracting
industry. In light of these risks, we are resolute in our commitment to
8
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safety and maintaining a strong safety culture, which is reflected in our safety program and the significant reductions in loss time cases and OSHA recordable
incidents over the past ten years. We employ eight full-time regional safety managers, under the supervision of our full-time Vice President of Safety. We seek
to maintain standardized safety policies, programs, procedures and personal protection equipment within each segment, including programs to train new
employees, which apply to employees new to the industry and those new to IES. To further emphasize our commitment to safety, we have also tied
management incentives to specific safety performance results.
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INSURANCE
Our ability to post surety bonds provides us with an advantage over competitors that are smaller or have fewer financial resources. We believe that the
strength of our balance sheet, as well as a good relationship with our bonding provider, enhances our ability to obtain adequate financing and surety bonds.
The primary risks in our operations include bodily injury, property damage and construction defects. We maintain automobile, general liability and
construction defect insurance for third party health, bodily injury and property damage and workers’ compensation coverage, which we consider appropriate
to insure against these risks. Our third-party insurance is subject to deductibles for which we establish reserves. For a further discussion of our risks, please
refer to Item 1A. “Risk Factors” of this Form 10-K.
CUSTOMERS
We have a diverse customer base. During the twelve-month periods ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, no single customer accounted for more than
10% of our revenues. We will continue to emphasize developing and maintaining relationships with our customers by providing superior, high-quality
service. Management at each of our segments is responsible for determining sales strategy and sales activities.
BACKLOG
Backlog is a measure of revenue that we expect to recognize from work that has yet to be performed on uncompleted contracts, and from work that has been
contracted but has not started. Backlog is not a guarantee of future revenues, as contractual commitments may change. As of September 30, 2012, our backlog
was approximately $234.1 million compared to $174.5 million as of September 30, 2011. This increase is primarily due to expanded operations within our
Residential and Communications segments, which increased 28.6% and 20.2%, respectively. Backlog at our Commercial & Industrial segment increased by
9.2% in fiscal year 2012.
SEASONALITY AND QUARTERLY FLUCTUATIONS
Results of operations from our Residential segment are more seasonal, depending on weather trends, with typically higher revenues generated during spring
and summer and lower revenues during fall and winter. The Communications and Commercial & Industrial segments of our business are less subject to
seasonal trends, as work generally is performed inside structures protected from the weather. Our service and maintenance business is generally not affected
by seasonality. In addition, the construction industry has historically been highly cyclical. Our volume of business may be adversely affected by declines in
construction projects resulting from adverse regional or national economic conditions. Quarterly results may also be materially affected by the timing of new
construction projects. Accordingly, operating results for any fiscal period are not necessarily indicative of results that may be achieved for any subsequent
fiscal period.
9
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REGULATIONS
Our operations are subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulations, including:
•

licensing requirements applicable to electricians;

•

building and electrical codes;

•

regulations relating to worker safety and protection of the environment;

•

regulations relating to consumer protection, including those governing residential service agreements; and

•

qualifications of our business legal structure in the jurisdictions where we do business.

Many state and local regulations governing electricians require permits and licenses to be held by individuals. In some cases, a required permit or license
held by a single individual may be sufficient to authorize specified activities for all our electricians who work in the state or county that issued the permit or
license. It is our policy to ensure that, where possible, any permits or licenses that may be material to our operations in a particular geographic area are held
by multiple employees within that area.
We believe we have all licenses required to conduct our operations and are in compliance with applicable regulatory requirements. Failure to comply with
applicable regulations could result in substantial fines or revocation of our operating licenses or an inability to perform government work.
CAPITAL FACILITIES
During fiscal year 2012, the Company maintained two credit facilities, as described in Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Credit Facilities” of this Form 10-K, which is incorporated by reference herein. For a discussion of the Company’s
capital resources, see Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Capital Resources” of this Form
10-K, which is incorporated by reference herein.
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
For information on the Company’s financial information by segment, see Note 11:, “Business Segments” in the notes to our Consolidated Financial
Statements, which is incorporated by reference herein.
EMPLOYEES
At September 30, 2012, we had 2,583 employees. We are not a party to any collective bargaining agreements with our employees. We believe that our
relationship with our employees is strong.
LOCATIONS
We have 61 domestic locations serving the United States. In addition to our executive and corporate offices, we have ten locations within our
Communications business, 32 locations within our Residential business and 19 locations within our Commercial & Industrial business. This diversity helps
to reduce our exposure to unfavorable economic developments in any given region.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Certain information with respect to each executive officer is as follows:
James M. Lindstrom, 40, has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since October 3, 2011. He previously served as Interim
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since June 30, 2011. Mr. Lindstrom was an employee at Tontine Associates, LLC, a private investment
fund and an affiliate of our controlling shareholder Tontine from 2006 to October 3, 2011. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. Lindstrom was Chief Financial Officer of
Centrue Financial Corporation, a regional financial services company, and had prior experience in private equity and investment banking. Mr. Lindstrom
served as a director of Broadwind Energy, Inc. from October 2007 to May 2010 and has served as a board observer on multiple public and private boards.
Terry L. Freeman, 61, served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company from March 2010 until his resignation on January 20,
2012. From December 2005 until he joined the Company, Mr. Freeman was an independent business consultant. From 1997 until December 2005,
Mr. Freeman served as Chief Financial Officer of Metals USA, a metal service company that served OEM manufacturers, contractors and metal fabrication
businesses, in several senior financial roles, most recently serving as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. From 1990 to 1997, Mr. Freeman held
the positions of Corporate Controller and Director of Financial Reporting at Maxxam, Inc., a diversified holding company with sales in excess of $2.3 billion.
From 1980 to 1990, he served in senior audit positions at Arthur Andersen & Company and at Deloitte & Touche. He also served in the U. S. Army.
William L. Fiedler, 54, served as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. from March 2009 until his
resignation on August 31, 2012. From October 1999 through February 2009, Mr. Fiedler served as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of
NetVersant Solutions, Inc., a privately-owned communications infrastructure company. From November 1997 through October 1999, Mr. Fiedler was Senior
Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of LandCare USA Inc., a publicly traded commercial landscaping company. From February 1994 through
October 1997, Mr. Fiedler was Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of Allwaste, Inc., a publicly traded industrial service company, and from
February 1990 through January 1994, was Senior Counsel of Allwaste. Prior to that, Mr. Fiedler held the position of Chief Legal and Compliance Officer of
Sentra Securities Corporation, a NASD registered broker-dealer.
Robert W. Lewey, 50, has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since January 20, 2012. From 2001 to 2006 and since 2007, Mr. Lewey
served as Director of Tax, Vice President, Tax and Treasurer for IES. From 2006 to 2007, he served as Vice President, Tax for Sulzer US Holdings, Inc. From
1995 to 2001, Mr. Lewey served as Vice President, Tax for Metamor Worldwide, Inc., a leading provider of information technology solutions. Mr. Lewey
began his career with Deloitte & Touche.
Gail D. Makode, 37, has served as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary since October 2012. Ms. Makode was previously General
Counsel and Member of the Board at MBIA Insurance Corporation and Chief Compliance Officer of MBIA Inc. Prior to MBIA, Ms. Makode served as vice
president and counsel for Deutsche Bank AG, and before that, was an associate at Cleary, Gottlieb, Steen & Hamilton, where she specialized in public and
private securities offerings and mergers and acquisitions.
Heather M. Sahrbeck, 40, served as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary on an interim basis until her resignation on November 1,
2012. Ms. Sahrbeck joined the Company in May 2012 as corporate counsel. From 2000 to 2008, she served as a vice president and associate general counsel
at Goldman, Sachs & Co. Prior to joining Goldman Sachs, Ms. Sahrbeck was employed by Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP, where she specialized in securities
offerings and mergers and acquisitions.
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We have adopted a Code of Ethics for Financial Executives that applies to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer.
The Code of Ethics may be found on our website at www.ies-corporate.com. If we make any substantive amendments to the Code of Ethics or grant any
waiver, including any implicit waiver, from a provision of the code to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Chief Accounting Officer, we
will disclose the nature of such amendment or waiver on that website or in a report on Form 8-K. Paper copies of these documents are also available free of
charge upon written request to us.
AVAILABLE INFORMATION
General information about us can be found on our website at www.ies-corporate.com under “Investors.” We file our interim and annual financial reports, as
well as other reports required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), with the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”).
Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K, as well as any amendments and exhibits to those reports are
available free of charge through our website as soon as it is reasonably practicable after we file them with, or furnish them to, the SEC. You may also contact
our Investor Relations department and they will provide you with a copy of these reports. The materials that we file with the SEC are also available free of
charge through the SEC website at www.sec.gov. You may also read and copy these materials at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE.,
Washington, D.C. 20549. Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room is available by calling the SEC at 1–800–SEC–0330.
In addition to the Code of Ethics for Financial Executives, we have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for directors, officers and employees (the
Legal Compliance and Corporate Policy Manual), and established Corporate Governance Guidelines and adopted charters outlining the duties of our Audit,
Human Resources and Compensation and Nominating/Governance Committees, copies of which may be found on our website. Paper copies of these
documents are also available free of charge upon written request to us. We have designated an “audit committee financial expert” as that term is defined by
the SEC. Further information about this designee may be found in the Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors
You should consider carefully the risks described below, as well as the other information included in this document before making an investment decision.
Our business, results of operations or financial condition could be materially and adversely affected by any of these risks, and the value of your investment
may decrease due to any of these risks.
Existence of a controlling shareholder.
A majority of our outstanding common stock is owned by Tontine Capital Partners, L.P. and its affiliates (collectively, “Tontine”). On July 21, 2011, Tontine
filed an amended Schedule 13D indicating its ownership level of 57.4%. As a result, Tontine can control most of our affairs, including the election of our
directors, who in turn appoint executive management, and can control any action requiring the approval of shareholders, including the adoption of
amendments to our corporate charter and approval of any potential merger or sale of all or substantially all assets, divisions, or the Company itself. This
control also gives Tontine the ability to bring matters to a shareholder vote that may not be in the best interest of our other shareholders or stakeholders.
Additionally, Tontine is in the business of investing in companies and may, from time to time, acquire and hold interests in businesses that compete directly
or indirectly with us or act as suppliers or customers of the Company.
Availability of net operating losses may be reduced by a change in ownership.
A change in ownership, as defined by Internal Revenue Code Section 382, could reduce the availability of net operating losses, (“NOLs”), for federal and
state income tax purposes. Should Tontine sell or exchange all or a portion of its position in IES, a change in ownership could occur. Tontine is party to a
Registration Rights Agreement with the Company under which it has the ability, subject to certain restrictions, to demand registration of its shares in order to
permit unrestricted sales of those shares. Tontine has indicated to the Company that it may seek to register some or all of its shares in the near future. A
change in ownership could also result from the purchase of common stock by an existing or a new 5% shareholder as defined by Internal Revenue Code
Section 382. Currently, we have approximately $313 million of federal NOLs that are available to use to offset taxable income, exclusive of NOLs from the
amortization of additional tax goodwill. Should a change in ownership occur, all NOLs incurred prior to the change in ownership would be subject to
limitation imposed by Internal Revenue Code Section 382, which would substantially reduce the amount of NOL currently available to offset taxable
income.
The Company is currently evaluating steps it may take to protect its federal NOLs, including evaluating implementing a tax benefit protection plan that
would be designed to deter an acquisition of the Company’s stock in excess of a threshold amount that could trigger a change of control within the meaning
of Internal Revenue Code Section 382. If implemented, such a plan would be designed to effectively dilute the ownership of such an acquirer through the
offering of rights to the Company’s other shareholders that could be exercised upon the acquirer’s purchase of the Company’s stock in excess of the threshold
amount. The Company may pursue such a plan or other alternatives to protecting its NOLs in the event the Company deems it appropriate, although there can
be no assurance that such a plan will be implemented or that, if enacted, it would be effective in deterring a change of control or protecting the NOLs.
To service our indebtedness and to fund working capital, we will require a significant amount of cash. Our ability to generate cash depends on many
factors that are beyond our control.
Our ability to make payments on and to refinance our indebtedness and to fund working capital requirements will depend on our ability to generate cash in
the future. This is subject to our operational performance, as well as general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors that are
beyond our control.
We cannot provide assurance that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations or asset sales or, that future borrowings will be available to
us under our credit facility in an amount sufficient to enable us to pay our indebtedness, or to fund our other liquidity needs. We may need to refinance all or
a portion of our indebtedness, on or before maturity. We cannot provide assurance that we will be able to refinance any of our
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indebtedness on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. Our inability to refinance our debt on commercially reasonable terms could have a material adverse
effect on our business.
We have restrictions and covenants under our credit facility.
We may not be able to remain in compliance with the covenants in our credit facility. A failure to fulfill the terms and requirements of our credit facility may
result in a default under one or more of our material agreements, which could have a material adverse effect on our ability to conduct our operations and our
financial condition.
The highly competitive nature of our industries could affect our profitability by reducing our profit margins.
The industries in which we compete are highly fragmented and are served by many small, owner-operated private companies. There are also several large
private regional companies and a small number of large public companies from which we face competition in these industries. In the future, we could also
face competition from new competitors entering these markets because certain segments, such as our electrical contracting services, have a relatively low
barrier for entry while other segments, such as our services for mission critical infrastructure, have attractive dynamics. Some of our competitors offer a greater
range of services, including mechanical construction, facilities management, plumbing and heating, ventilation and air conditioning services. Competition
in our markets depends on a number of factors, including price. Some of our competitors may have lower overhead cost structures and may, therefore, be able
to provide services comparable to ours at lower rates than we do. If we are unable to offer our services at competitive prices or if we have to reduce our prices
to remain competitive, our profitability would be impaired.
Backlog may not be realized or may not result in profits.
Customers often have no obligation under our contracts to assign or release work to us, and many contracts may be terminated on short notice. Reductions in
backlog due to cancellation of one or more contracts by a customer or for other reasons could significantly reduce the revenue and profit we actually receive
from contracts included in backlog. In the event of a project cancellation, we may be reimbursed for certain costs but typically have no contractual right to
the total revenues reflected in our backlog.
Our use of percentage-of-completion accounting could result in a reduction or elimination of previously reported profits.
As discussed in Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Critical Accounting Policies” and in
the notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K, a significant
portion of our revenues are recognized using the percentage-of-completion method of accounting, utilizing the cost-to-cost method. This method is used
because management considers expended costs to be the best available measure of progress on these contracts. The percentage-of-completion accounting
practice we use results in our recognizing contract revenues and earnings ratably over the contract term in proportion to our incurrence of contract costs. The
earnings or losses recognized on individual contracts are based on estimates of contract revenues, costs and profitability. Contract losses are recognized in
full when determined to be probable and reasonably estimable and contract profit estimates are adjusted based on ongoing reviews of contract profitability.
Further, a portion of our contracts contain various cost and performance incentives. Penalties are recorded when known or finalized, which generally occurs
during the latter stages of the contract. In addition, we record cost recovery claims when we believe recovery is probable and the amounts can be reasonably
estimated. Actual collection of claims could differ from estimated amounts and could result in a reduction or elimination of previously recognized earnings.
In certain circumstances, it is possible that such adjustments could be significant.
We may be unsuccessful at integrating companies that we may acquire.
We may engage in acquisitions and dispositions of operations, assets and investments from time to time in the future. If we are unable to successfully
integrate newly acquired assets or operations or if we make untimely or
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unfavorable dispositions of operations or investments, it could negatively impact the market value of our common stock. Additionally, any future acquisition
or disposition may result in significant changes in the composition of our assets and liabilities, and as a result, our financial condition, results of operations
and the market value of our common stock following any such acquisition or disposition may be affected by factors different from those currently affecting
our financial condition, results of operations and trading price of our common stock.
We may incur significant charges or be adversely impacted by the closure or sale of additional facilities.
Beginning in 2011, we increased our focus on a number of initiatives to return the Company to profitability. Included in these initiatives was the closure or
sale of a number of facilities within our Commercial & Industrial segment, including the sale or closure of all or portions of our Commercial facilities in
Arizona, Florida, Iowa, Maryland, Massachusetts, Nevada and Texas, Industrial facility in Louisiana, and our Communications facility in Maryland. We
continue to evaluate the performance of the remaining operations. If we were to elect to dispose of a substantial portion of any of our segments, the realized
values of such actions could be substantially less than current book values, which would likely result in a material adverse impact on our financial results.
The availability and cost of surety bonds affect our ability to enter into new contracts and our margins on those engagements.
Many of our customers require us to post performance and payment bonds issued by a surety. Those bonds guarantee the customer that we will perform under
the terms of a contract and that we will pay subcontractors and vendors. We obtain surety bonds from one primary surety provider; however, there is no
commitment from this provider to guarantee our ability to issue bonds for projects as they are required. Our ability to access this bonding capacity is at the
sole discretion of our surety provider.
Due to seasonality and differing regional economic conditions, our results may fluctuate from period to period.
Our business is subject to seasonal variations in operations and demand that affect the construction business, particularly in the Residential and
Commercial & Industrial segments. Untimely weather delay from rain, heat, ice, cold or snow can not only delay our work but can negatively impact our
schedules and profitability by delaying the work of other trades on a construction site. Our quarterly results may also be affected by regional economic
conditions that affect the construction market. Accordingly, our performance in any particular quarter may not be indicative of the results that can be
expected for any other quarter or for the entire year. Additionally, cost increases in construction materials such as steel, aluminum, copper and lumber can
alter the rate of new construction.
The estimates we use in placing bids could be materially incorrect. The use of incorrect estimates could result in losses on a fixed price contract. These
losses could be material to our business.
We currently generate, and expect to continue to generate, more than half of our revenues under fixed price contracts. The cost of fuel, labor and materials,
including copper wire, may vary significantly from the costs we originally estimate. Variations from estimated contract costs along with other risks inherent
in performing fixed price contracts may result in actual revenue and gross profits for a project differing from those we originally estimated and could result in
losses on projects. Depending upon the size of a particular project, variations from estimated contract costs can have a significant impact on our operating
results.
Commodity costs may fluctuate materially, and we may not be able to pass on all cost increases during the term of a contract.
We enter into many contracts at fixed prices, and if the cost associated with commodities such as copper, aluminum, steel, fuel and certain plastics increase,
losses may be incurred.
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We may experience difficulties in managing our billings and collections.
Our billings under fixed price contracts are generally based upon achieving certain milestones and will be accepted by the customer once we demonstrate
those milestones have been met. If we are unable to demonstrate compliance with billing requests, or if we fail to issue a project billing, our likelihood of
collection could be delayed or impaired, which, if experienced across several large projects, could have a materially adverse effect on our results of
operations.
Our reported operating results could be adversely affected as a result of goodwill impairment write-offs.
When we acquire a business, we record an asset called “goodwill” if the amount we pay for the business, including liabilities assumed, is in excess of the fair
value of the assets of the business we acquire. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) requires that goodwill
attributable to each of our reporting units be tested at least annually. The testing includes comparing the fair value of each reporting unit with its carrying
value. Fair value is determined using discounted cash flows, market multiples and market capitalization. Significant estimates used in the methodologies
include estimates of future cash flows, future short-term and long-term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimates of market multiples for
each of the reportable units. On an ongoing basis, we expect to perform impairment tests at least annually as of September 30. Impairment adjustments, if any,
are required to be recognized as operating expenses. We cannot assure that we will not have future impairment adjustments to our recorded goodwill.
The vendors who make up our supply chain may be adversely affected by the current operating environment and credit market conditions.
We are dependent upon the vendors within our supply chain to maintain a steady supply of inventory, parts and materials. Many of our divisions are
dependent upon a limited number of suppliers, and significant supply disruptions could adversely affect our operations. Under recent market conditions,
including both the construction slowdown and the tightening credit market, it is possible that one or more of our suppliers will be unable to meet the terms of
our operating agreements due to financial hardships, liquidity issues or other reasons related to the prolonged market recovery.
Our operations are subject to numerous physical hazards associated with the construction of electrical systems. If an accident occurs, it could result in
an adverse effect on our business.
Hazards related to our industry include, but are not limited to, electrocutions, fires, machinery-caused injuries, mechanical failures and transportation
accidents. These hazards can cause personal injury and loss of life, severe damage to or destruction of property and equipment, and may result in suspension
of operations. Our insurance does not cover all types or amounts of liabilities. Our third-party insurance is subject to deductibles for which we establish
reserves. No assurance can be given that our insurance or our provisions for incurred claims and incurred but not reported claims will be adequate to cover all
losses or liabilities we may incur in our operations; nor can we provide assurance that we will be able to maintain adequate insurance at reasonable rates.
Our internal controls over financial reporting and our disclosure controls and procedures may not prevent all possible errors that could occur.
Internal controls over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system’s objective will be met.
On a quarterly basis we evaluate our internal controls over financial reporting and our disclosure controls and procedures, which include a review of the
objectives, design, implementation and effectiveness of the controls and the information generated for use in our periodic reports. In the course of our
controls evaluation, we sought (and seek) to identify data errors, control problems and to confirm that appropriate corrective action, including process
improvements, are being undertaken. This type of evaluation is conducted on a quarterly basis so that the conclusions concerning the effectiveness of our
controls can be reported in our periodic reports.
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A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives will be
satisfied. Internal controls over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures are designed to give reasonable assurance that they are effective
and achieve their objectives. We cannot provide absolute assurance that all possible future control issues have been detected. These inherent limitations
include the possibility that our judgments can be faulty, and that isolated breakdowns can occur because of human error or mistake. The design of our system
of controls is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed
absolutely in achieving our stated goals under all potential future or unforeseeable conditions. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effect control
system, misstatements due to error could occur without being detected.
We have adopted tax positions that a taxing authority may view differently. If a taxing authority differs with our tax positions, our results may be
adversely affected.
Our effective tax rate and cash paid for taxes are impacted by the tax positions that we have adopted. Taxing authorities may not always agree with the
positions we have taken. We have established reserves for tax positions that we have determined to be less likely than not to be sustained by taxing
authorities. However, there can be no assurance that our results of operations will not be adversely affected in the event that disagreement over our tax
positions does arise.
Litigation and claims can cause unexpected losses.
In the construction business there are frequently claims and litigation. There are also inherent claims and litigation risk associated with the number of people
that work on construction sites and the fleet of vehicles on the road every day. Claims are sometimes made and lawsuits filed for amounts in excess of their
value or in excess of the amounts for which they are eventually resolved. Claims and litigation normally follow a predictable course of time to resolution.
However, there may be periods of time in which a disproportionate amount of our claims and litigation are concluded in the same quarter or year. If multiple
matters are resolved during a given period, then the cumulative effect of these matters may be higher than the ordinary level in any one reporting period.
Latent defect claims could expand.
Latent defect litigation is normal for residential home builders in some parts of the country; however, such litigation is increasing in certain states where we
perform work. Also, in recent years, latent defect litigation has expanded to aspects of the commercial market. Should we experience similar increases in our
latent defect claims and litigation, additional pressure may be placed on the profitability of the Residential and Commercial & Industrial segments of our
business.
The loss of a group or several key personnel, either at the corporate or operating level, could adversely affect our business.
The loss of key personnel or the inability to hire and retain qualified employees could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations. Our operations depend on the continued efforts of our executive officers, senior management and management personnel at our divisions. We
cannot guarantee that any member of management at the corporate or subsidiary level will continue in their capacity for any particular period of time. We
have employment agreements in place with certain of our senior leaders; however, such employment agreements can neither guarantee that we will not lose
key employees, nor prevent them from competing against us, which is often dependent on state and local employment laws. If we lose a group of key
personnel or even one key person at a division, we may not be able to recruit suitable replacements at comparable salaries or at all, which could adversely
affect our operations. Additionally, we do not maintain key man life insurance for members of our management.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
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Item 2. Properties
Facilities
At September 30, 2012, we maintained branch offices, warehouses, sales facilities and administrative offices at 61 locations. Substantially all of our facilities
are leased. We lease our executive office located in Greenwich, Connecticut and our corporate office located in Houston, Texas. We believe that our
properties are adequate for our present needs, and that suitable additional or replacement space will be available as required.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
For further information regarding legal proceedings, see Note 16, “Commitments and Contingencies — Legal Matters” in the notes to our Consolidated
Financial Statements, which is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
None.
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity; Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the ticker symbol “IESC.” The following table sets forth the daily high and low close
price for our common stock as reported on NASDAQ for each of the four quarters of the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011.
High

Low

Year Ended September 30, 2012
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$2.80
$4.74
$4.60
$5.00

$1.85
$1.85
$2.74
$2.81

Year Ended September 30, 2011
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$3.80
$4.38
$3.50
$3.36

$3.14
$3.41
$3.11
$1.88

As of December 12, 2012, the closing market price of our common stock was $4.46 per share and there were approximately 377 holders of record.
We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock, and we do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. We expect that we will
utilize all available earnings generated by our operations and borrowings under the 2012 Credit Facility for the development and operation of our business,
to retire existing debt, to repurchase our common stock, or to acquire or invest in other businesses. Any future determination as to the payment of dividends
will be made at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend upon our operating results, financial condition, capital requirements, general
business conditions and other factors that the Board of Directors deems relevant. Our debt instruments restrict us from paying cash dividends and also place
limitations on our ability to repurchase our common stock. See Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Working Capital” and Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and
Capital Resources” of this Form 10-K.
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Five-Year Stock Performance Graph
The following performance graph compares the Company’s cumulative total stockholder return on its common stock with the cumulative total return of
(i) the Russell 2000, and (ii) the peer group stock index (the “Peer Group”), which was selected in good faith by the Company and comprised of the following
publicly traded companies: MasTec, Inc., Willbros Group, Inc., Comfort Systems U.S.A. Inc., Dycom Industries, Inc., Matrix Service Company, Pike Electric
Corp., Aegion Corporation, Powell Industries, MYR Group, Inc., Team, Inc., Primoris Services Corp., Englobal Corp. and Furmanite Corp. The cumulative
total return computations set forth in the following performance graph assume (i) the investment of $100 in each of the Company’s common stock, the
Russell 2000, and the Peer Group on September 30, 2007, and (ii) that all dividends have been reinvested. Shareholder returns over the period indicated
should not be considered indicative of future shareholder returns.
The information contained in the following performance graph shall not be deemed “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the SEC, nor shall such
information be incorporated by reference into any future filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or the Exchange Act,
except to the extent the Company specifically incorporates it by reference into such filing.

Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.
Russell 2000
Peer Group
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2007

2008

$100.00
$100.00
$100.00

68.57
85.52
85.96

Years ended September 30,
2009
2010

31.43
77.35
64.03

14.68
87.68
51.80

2011

2012

7.91
84.58
60.87

17.77
111.57
71.36
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The following selected consolidated historical financial information for IES should be read in conjunction with the audited historical Consolidated Financial
Statements of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. and subsidiaries, and the notes thereto, set forth in Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”
of this Form 10-K.
2012

Continuing Operations:
Revenues
Cost of services
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Gain on sale of Assets
Asset impairment
Restructuring charges
(Loss) Income from Operations
Other (income) expense:
Interest expense, net
Other expense (income), net
Interest and other expense, net
(Loss) income from operations before income
taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Net (loss) income from continuing operations
Discontinued Operations:
Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Net income (loss) discontinued operations
Net loss

$

2011

456,115
398,063
58,052
58,609
(168)
—
—
(389)

$

Years Ended September 30,
2010
(In Thousands, Except Share Information)

406,141
361,757
44,384
63,321
(6,555)
4,804
—
(17,186)

$

382,431
326,939
55,492
74,251
(128)
—
763
(19,394)

2,290
(62)
2,228

2,210
(7)
2,203

3,271
(18)
3,253

$

(2,617)
38
(2,655)

$

(19,389)
172
(19,561)

$

(22,647)
(36)
(22,611)

$

(18,288)
(26)
(18,262)
(37,823)

$

2009

516,124
422,507
93,617
95,750
(339)
—
7,407
(9,201)

2008

$

4,094
1,829
5,923

$

(15,124)
495
(15,619)

$

(8,539)
5
(8,544)
(31,155)

597,766
496,390
101,376
99,648
(7)
—
4,598
(2,863)
6,529
(746)
5,783

$

(8,646)
2,436
(11,082)

$

(3,246)
68
(3,314)
(18,933)

$

9,126
(221)
9,347
(1,735)

$

(9,158)
(11)
(9,147)
(11,802)

Basic (loss) earnings per share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Total

$
$
$

(0.18)
(0.63)
(0.81)

$
$
$

(1.35)
(1.26)
(2.61)

$
$
$

(1.57)
(0.59)
(2.16)

$
$
$

(1.09)
(0.23)
(1.32)

$
$
$

(0.74)
0.63
(0.12)

Diluted (loss) earnings per share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Total

$
$
$

(0.18)
(0.63)
(0.81)

$
$
$

(1.35)
(1.26)
(2.61)

$
$
$

(1.57)
(0.59)
(2.16)

$
$
$

(1.09)
(0.23)
(1.32)

$
$
$

(0.74)
0.62
(0.12)

Shares used to calculate loss per share
Basic
Diluted

14,625,776
14,625,776

14,493,747
14,493,747
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14,409,368
14,409,368

14,331,614
14,331,614

14,938,619
15,025,023
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Years Ended September 30,
2011
2010
2009
(In Thousands, Except Share Information)

2012

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted Cash
Working capital
Total assets
Total debt

$ 18,729
7,155
43,001
164,713
10,480

$ 35,577
—
61,721
180,244
10,498

$ 32,924
—
82,202
207,860
11,256

$ 64,174
—
119,099
270,653
28,687

2008

$ 64,709
—
125,581
320,538
29,644

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto, set forth in
Item 8,“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K. For additional information, see “Disclosure Regarding Forward Looking
Statements” in Part I of this Form 10-K.
OVERVIEW
Executive Overview
Please refer to Item 1. “Business” of this Form 10-K for a discussion of the Company’s services and corporate strategy. Integrated Electrical Services, Inc., a
Delaware corporation, is a leading provider of infrastructure services to the residential, commercial and industrial industries as well as for data centers and
other mission critical environments. We operate primarily in the electrical infrastructure markets, with a corporate focus on expanding into other markets
through strategic acquisitions or investments.
Industry Trends
Our performance is affected by a number of trends that drive the demand for our services. In particular, the residential, industrial, mission critical
infrastructure and commercial industries in which we operate are exposed to many regional and national trends such as the demand for single and multifamily housing, the need for mission critical facilities as a result of technology-driven advancements, and changes in commercial, institutional, public
infrastructure and electric utility spending. Over the long term, we believe that there are numerous factors that could positively drive demand and affect
growth within the industries in which we operate, including (i) population growth, which will increase the need for commercial and residential facilities,
(ii) aging public infrastructure, which must be replaced or repaired, (iii) increased emphasis on environmental and energy efficiency, which may lead to both
increased public and private spending, and (iv) the low price of natural gas combined with an increase in domestic oil and gas output, which is expected to
spur the construction of and modifications to heavy industrial facilities. However, there can be no assurance that we will not experience a decrease in demand
for our services due to economic, technological or other factors. For a further discussion of the industries in which we operate, please see Item 1. “Business —
Operating Segments”of this Form 10-K.
Business Outlook
While differences exist among the Company’s segments, on an overall basis, demand for the Company’s services increased in fiscal 2012 as compared to
fiscal 2011 resulting in aggregate year-over-year revenue growth. In addition, the Company’s previous investment in growth initiatives and other businessspecific factors discussed below contributed to year-over-year revenue growth. Segment-wise, year-over-year revenue growth rates during fiscal 2012 were led
primarily by growth in our Communications and Residential segments. The combination of increasing revenue, improved project execution within our
Commercial & Industrial segment and lower costs due to our restructuring efforts resulted in a significant reduction in operating losses. Provided that no
significant deterioration in general economic conditions occurs, the Company expects revenues from existing businesses to grow on a year-over-year basis
during fiscal 2013 due to an increase in demand for our services.
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To service our indebtedness and to fund working capital, we require a significant amount of cash. Our ability to generate cash depends on many factors that
are beyond our control, including demand for our products and services, the availability of projects at margins acceptable to us, the ultimate collectability of
our receivables and our ability to borrow on our 2012 Credit Facility, among many other factors. We anticipate that the combination of cash on hand, cash
flows and available capacity under our 2012 Credit Facility will provide sufficient cash to enable us to meet our working capital needs, debt service
requirements and capital expenditures for property and equipment through the next twelve months. We expect that our capital expenditures will range from
$1.0 to $1.5 million for the fiscal year ending on September 30, 2013.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
We report our operating results across three operating segments: Communications, Residential and Commercial & Industrial. Expenses associated with our
Corporate office are classified as a fourth segment. The following table presents selected historical results of operations of IES and subsidiaries.
2012
$

Revenues
Cost of services
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Gain on sale of assets
Asset impairment
Restructuring charges
Loss from operations
Interest and other expense, net
Loss from operations before income taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Net loss from continuing operations
Net income from discontinued operations
(Benefit) provision for income taxes
Net loss from discontinued operations
Net loss

$456,115
398,063
58,052
58,609
(168)
—
—
(389)
2,228
(2,617)
38
(2,655)
(9,158)
(11)
(9,147)
$ (11,802)

%

Years Ended September 30,
2011
$
%
(Dollars in thousands, Percentage of revenues)

100.0%
87.3%
12.7%
12.8%
—%
—%
—%
(0.1)%
0.5%
(0.6)%
—%
(0.6)%
(2.0)%
—%
(2.0)%
1.4 %

$406,141
361,757
44,384
63,321
(6,555)
4,804
—
(17,186)
2,203
(19,389)
172
(19,561)
(18,288)
(26)
(18,262)
$ (37,823)

100.0%
89.1%
10.9%
15.6%
(1.6)%
1.2%
—%
(4.3)%
0.5%
(4.8)%
—%
(4.8)%
(4.5)%
—%
(4.5)%
(0.3)%

2010
$

$382,431
326,939
55,492
74,251
(128)
—
763
(19,394)
3,253
(22,647)
(36)
(22,611)
(8,539)
5
(8,544)
$ (31,155)

%

100.0%
85.5%
14.5%
19.4%
—%
—%
0.2%
(5.1)%
0.9%
(6.0)%
—%
(6.0)%
(2.2)%
—%
(2.2)%
(3.8)%

Consolidated revenues for the year ended September 30, 2012 were $50.0 million greater than for the year ended September 30, 2011, an increase of 12.3%.
The $13.7 million increase in our consolidated gross profit for the year ended September 30, 2012, as compared to the year ended September 30, 2011, was
primarily the result of company-wide concerted efforts to return the organization to profitability. Our organization as a whole, and each segment individually,
was successful in executing projects, and managing costs to maximize gross profits. Our overall gross profit percentage increased to 12.7% during the year
ended September 30, 2012 as compared to 10.9% during the year ended September 30, 2011.
Selling, general and administrative expenses include costs not directly associated with performing work for our customers. These costs consist primarily of
compensation and benefits related to corporate, division and branch
management, occupancy and utilities, training, professional services, information technology costs, consulting
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fees, travel and certain types of depreciation and amortization. We allocate certain corporate selling, general and administrative costs across our segments as
we believe this more accurately reflects the costs associated with operating each segment.
During the year ended September 30, 2012, our selling, general and administrative expenses were $58.6 million, a decrease of $4.7 million, or 7.4%, as
compared to the year ended September 30, 2011. Included in the year ended September 30, 2012 is $0.9 million of severance attributable to the departures of
our former CFO and our former Senior Vice President and General Counsel. Included in year ended September 30, 2011 is $2.9 million of accelerated
amortization attributable to the discontinuance of certain software and $1.3 million of severance attributable to the former CEO’s departure.
During the year ended September 30, 2011, our results of operations included a gain on sale of a non-strategic facility of $6.8 million, partially offset by $4.8
million in asset impairments with no comparable charges in the current year.
Communications
2012 Compared to 2011
Years Ended September 30,
2012

$

Revenue
Gross Profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses

2011
%
$
(Dollars in thousands, Percentage of revenues)

$121,492
18,204
13,431

100.0%
15.0%
11.1%

$83,615
12,473
9,578

%

100.0%
14.9%
11.5%

Revenue. Our Communications segment revenues increased $37.9 million during the year ended September 30, 2012, a 45.3% increase compared to the year
ended September 30, 2011. This increase is primarily due to an increase in data center projects and high tech manufacturing projects during 2012, along with
our establishment of an operation in San Diego, California. We believe the expansion of technology, cloud computing and increased demands for consumer
focused data storage and collection, has led to an increase in demand for additional data center capacity. Revenues attributable to data centers were $38.9
million for the year ended September 30, 2012 compared to $29.9 million for the year ended September 30, 2011. The increase in high tech manufacturing
projects is related to a major expansion by a high tech manufacturer in the greater Phoenix, Arizona area. Revenues from high tech manufacturing projects
were $28.1 million during the year ended September 30, 2012, and $9.4 million during the year ended September 30, 2011. Although the growth in data
center and high tech manufacturing projects was significant for the year ended September 30, 2012, there can be no assurance that this level of business or
growth will continue, as a significant amount of our project work is awarded through a competitive bid process. Revenue from the establishment of our San
Diego operations increased overall revenue by $10.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2012.
Gross Profit. Our Communications segment’s gross profit during the year ended September 30, 2012 increased $5.7 million, or 46.0%, as compared to the
year ended September 30, 2011. The increase in gross profit is attributable to a higher volume of contract revenues as noted in the revenue analysis above.
Overall gross profit as a percentage of revenue remained unchanged during 2012. Exclusive of our San Diego operations, which were established in the fourth
quarter of 2011, gross profit increased 0.9%.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Our Communications segment’s selling, general and administrative expenses increased $3.9 million, or
40.2%, during the year ended September 30, 2012 compared to the year ended September 30, 2011. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a
percentage of revenues in the Communication segment decreased to 11.1% of segment revenue during the year ended September 30, 2012. The increase in
selling, general and administrative expenses is primarily due to a $1.2 million legal
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settlement reserve, detailed in Note 16, “Commitment and Contingencies—TekWorks, Inc” in the notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements.
Additionally, we incurred higher expenses associated with our expansion of facilities in Southern California, including litigation expenses, increased staff in
response to revenue growth, and to a lesser extent, incentive awards for achieving specific performance goals.
2011 Compared to 2010
Years Ended September 30,
2011

2010
%
$
(Dollars in thousands, Percentage of revenues)

$

Revenue
Gross Profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses

$83,615
12,473
9,578

100.0%
14.9%
11.5%

$69,171
12,411
7,298

%

100.0%
17.9%
10.6%

Revenue. Our Communications segment revenues increased $14.4 million during the year ended September 30, 2011, a 20.9% increase compared to the year
ended September 30, 2010. This increase is primarily due to an increase in data center projects and national account activity. We believe the expansion of
technology, cloud computing and increased demands for consumer focused data storage and collection have led to an increase in demand for additional data
center capacity. Revenues attributable to data centers were $29.9 million for the year ended September 30, 2011 compared to $18.4 million for the year
ended September 30, 2010. National accounts are used within this segment to describe customers who have multiple mission critical facilities throughout the
United States; we provide a wide range of project and maintenance services to these customers. Revenues from our national accounts were $21.5 million
during the year ended September 30, 2011, and $12.8 million during the year ended September 30, 2010. Although the growth in data center and national
account projects was significant for the year ended September 30, 2011, there can be no assurance that this level of business or growth will continue, as
substantially all of our project work is awarded through a competitive bid process.
Gross Profit. Our Communications segment’s gross profit during the year ended September 30, 2011 increased $0.1 million, as compared to the year ended
September 30, 2010. Gross profit as a percent of revenue decreased to 14.9% in 2011, compared to 17.9% in 2010. The decrease in gross profit percentage is
attributed to increased competition driving down margin rates on individual contracts when compared to 2010.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses Our Communications segment’s selling, general and administrative expenses increased $2.3 million, or 31.2%,
during the year ended September 30, 2011 compared to the year ended September 30, 2010. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of
revenues in the Communication segment increased to 11.5% of segment revenue during the year ended September 30, 2011. The increase can be attributed to
higher expenses associated with our expansion of facilities in San Diego, and to a lesser extent, incentive awards for achieving specific performance goals.
Residential
2012 Compared to 2011
Years Ended September 30,
2012
$

Revenue
Gross Profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses

$129,974
20,700
19,703
24

2011
%
$
(Dollars in thousands, Percentage of revenues)

100.0%
15.9%
15.2%

$114,732
18,690
18,441

%

100.0%
16.3%
16.1%
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Revenue. Our Residential segment revenues increased $15.3 million during the year ended September 30, 2012, an increase of 13.3% as compared to the year
ended September 30, 2011. Revenues for our multi-family construction increased by $4.2 million. In 2012, multi-family industry starts were attributed to
improved demand for rental housing. Rental housing demand was partially driven by the deferral of purchases of single family homes due to continued
restrictive lending practices for single family purchases, an uncertain job market and lower apartment vacancy rates. Single family construction revenues
increased by $11.6 million, primarily in the Texas markets. We entered into the solar installation market during fiscal 2012, resulting in revenues of $9.5
million. Included in our fiscal 2011 balance are revenues attributable to a non-core electrical distribution facility, totaling $13.1 million. We sold this
business in February 2011, and as such, no revenues from this facility are included in our fiscal 2012 balance.
Gross Profit. During the year ended September 30, 2012, our Residential segment experienced a $2.0 million, or 10.8%, increase in gross profit as compared
to the year ended September 30, 2011. Gross margin percentage in the Residential segment decreased to 15.9% during the year ended September 30, 2012.
We attribute much of the increase in Residential’s gross margin primarily to the higher volume of single family projects.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Our Residential segment experienced a $1.3 million, or 6.8%, increase in selling, general and administrative
expenses during the year ended September 30, 2012 compared to the year ended September 30, 2011. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a
percentage of revenues in the Residential segment decreased to 15.2% of segment revenue during the year ended September 30, 2012. We attribute much of
the increase in Residential selling, general and administrative expenses primarily to increased incentives and our expansion into the solar installation market.
2011 Compared to 2010
Years Ended September 30,
2011
$

Revenue
Gross Profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses

$114,732
18,690
18,441

2010
%
$
(Dollars in thousands, Percentage of revenues)

100.0%
16.3%
16.1%

$115,947
23,525
23,736

%

100.0%
20.3%
20.5%

Revenue. Our Residential segment revenues decreased $1.2 million during the year ended September 30, 2011, a decrease of 1.0% as compared to the year
ended September 30, 2010. Approximately $4.4 million of this decrease is primarily attributable to the sale of a non-core electrical distribution facility in
February 2011. Revenues for our multi-family construction increased by $10.7 million as multi-family industry project starts increased to 195,000 units from
154,000 units in 2010. In 2011, multi-family industry starts were attributed to improved demand for rental housing. Rental housing demand was partially
driven by the deferral of purchases of single family homes due to more restrictive lending practices for single family purchases, an uncertain job market and
lower apartment vacancy rates. Single family construction revenues declined by $6.6 million, partially due to the end in tax stimulus for new home buyers,
more restrictive lending practices and an uncertain job market. Nationwide demand for single-family homes declined, particularly in markets such as
Southern California, Arizona, Nevada, Texas and Georgia.
Gross Profit. During the year ended September 30, 2011, our Residential segment experienced a $4.8 million, or 20.6%, reduction in gross profit as compared
to the year ended September 30, 2010. Gross margin percentage in the Residential segment decreased to 16.1% during the year ended September 30, 2011.
We attribute much of the decline in Residential’s gross margin to increased competition and increased costs of materials creating lower margins in both
single-family and multi-family construction. As our contracts provide for fixed prices, near term increases in costs for raw materials, such as copper, steel and
fuel can significantly erode the margins which currently exist in the highly competitive residential construction marketplace. For example, copper prices are
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particularly volatile. During the year ended September 30, 2011, commodity prices for copper ranged from $3.15 to $4.62 per pound. The average spot price
for copper was $4.13 per pound during the twelve months ended September 30, 2011, an increase of 29.0% over the prior twelve month period.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Our Residential segment experienced a $5.3 million, or 22.3%, reduction in selling, general and
administrative expenses during the year ended September 30, 2011 compared to the year ended September 30, 2010. Selling, general and administrative
expenses as a percentage of revenues in the Residential segment declined to 16.1% of segment revenue during the year ended September 30, 2011. We
attribute much of the decline in Residential selling, general and administrative expenses to lower management and incentive compensation expense.
Commercial & Industrial
2012 Compared to 2011
Years Ended September 30,
2012
$

Revenue
Gross Profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses

$204,649
19,148
17,166

2011
%
$
(Dollars in thousands, Percentage of revenues)

100.0%
9.4%
8.4%

$207,794
13,221
21,788

%

100.0%
6.4%
10.5%

Revenue. Revenues in our Commercial & Industrial segment decreased $3.2 million during the year ended September 30, 2012, a decrease of 1.5% compared
to the year ended September 30, 2011. Our Commercial & Industrial segment is impacted not only by industry construction trends, but also specific industry
and local economic trends. Impacts from these trends on our revenues may be delayed due to the long lead time of our projects. Our revenues were also
impacted by a refocusing of our business development strategy on projects within our demonstrated areas of expertise and with increased margin
expectations. Projects in all sectors remain subject to delays or cancellation with little advance notice. In many of our Commercial markets, we continue to
experience increased competition from new entrants, including residential contractors or contractors from other geographic markets.
Gross Profit. Our Commercial & Industrial segment’s gross profit during the year ended September 30, 2012 increased $5.9 million, or 44.8%, as compared to
the year ended September 30, 2011. Commercial & Industrial’s gross margin percentage increased to 9.4% during the year ended September 30, 2012,
primarily due to improved execution of projects in all locations. Although the competitive market that has existed during the prolonged recession has
continued to depress project bid margins, we have begun to experience some reprieve. In 2011, we experienced margin erosion and project difficulties due to
a combination of project management turnover, projects outside our historical area of expertise, and delays in receipt of material and labor productivity, all of
which significantly increased our cost on those projects. In 2012, we focused our efforts on winning projects within our areas of expertise, and significantly
reduced the project inefficiencies due to delay and labor turnover.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Our Commercial & Industrial segment’s selling, general and administrative expenses during the year ended
September 30, 2012 decreased $4.6 million, or 21.2%, compared to the year ended September 30, 2011. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a
percentage of revenues in the Commercial & Industrial segment decreased to 8.4% of segment revenue during the year ended September 30, 2012. This
decrease is primarily attributed to the consolidation of back offices in several locations late in fiscal 2011.
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2011 Compared to 2010
Years Ended September 30,
2011
$

Revenue
Gross Profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses

$207,794
13,221
21,788

2010
%
$
(Dollars in thousands, Percentage of revenues)

100.0%
6.4%
10.5%

$197,313
19,556
29,047

%

100.0%
9.9%
14.7%

Revenue. Revenues in our Commercial & Industrial segment increased $10.5 million during the year ended September 30, 2011, an increase of 5.3%
compared to the year ended September 30, 2010. Our Commercial & Industrial segment is impacted not only by industry construction trends, but also
specific industry and local economic trends. Impacts from these trends on our revenues may be delayed due to the long lead time of our projects. According
to McGraw Hill, total nonresidential building starts in the United States, in terms of millions of square feet, decreased 13% in 2010 and was unchanged in
2011. Our Industrial projects experienced revenue increases while our Commercial projects were essentially unchanged as the rate of decline for most
industry sectors has begun to stabilize. Revenues from our Industrial projects increased by $10.7 million, during the year ended September 30, 2011, as
compared to the year ended September 30, 2010, primarily due to a project at a refinery in Southeast Texas. Although the growth in Industrial projects were
significant for the year over year comparison for the period ended September 30, 2011, there can be no assurance that this level of business or growth will
continue, as substantially all of our project work is awarded through a competitive bid process.
Gross Profit. Our Commercial & Industrial segment’s gross profit during the year ended September 30, 2011 decreased $6.3 million, or 32.4%, as compared to
the year ended September 30, 2010. Commercial & Industrial’s gross margin percentage decreased to 6.4% during the year ended September 30, 2011,
primarily due to lower margin construction projects and operating difficulties in several locations. The competitive market that has existed during the
prolonged recession continued to depress project bid margins. In addition we experienced margin erosion and project difficulties due to a combination of
project management turnover, projects outside our historical area of expertise, and delays in receipt of material and labor productivity, all of which
significantly increased our cost on those projects. In many of our Commercial markets, we continued to experience increased competition from new entrants,
including residential contractors or contractors from other geographic markets.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Our Commercial & Industrial segment’s selling, general and administrative expenses during the year ended
September 30, 2011 decreased $7.3 million, or 25.0%, compared to the year ended September 30, 2010. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a
percentage of revenues in the Commercial & Industrial segment declined to 10.5% of segment revenue during the year ended September 30, 2011. The
reduction is attributed primarily to the reduction of office personnel, and reduction in discretionary spending.
Restructuring Charges
In the first quarter of our 2009 fiscal year, we began a restructuring program (the “2009 Restructuring Plan”) that was designed to consolidate operations
within our three segments. In connection with the 2009 Restructuring Plan, we incurred pre-tax restructuring charges, including severance benefits and
facility consolidations and closings, of $0.8 million during the year ended September 30, 2010. Costs incurred related to our Commercial & Industrial
segment were $0.7 million and costs related to our Corporate office were $0.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2010.
In the second quarter of our 2011 fiscal year, we began the 2011 Restructuring Plan that was designed to consolidate operations within our Commercial &
Industrial business. Pursuant to the 2011 Restructuring Plan, we planned to either sell or close certain underperforming facilities within our Commercial &
Industrial operations.
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The 2011 Restructuring Plan was a key element of our commitment to return the Company to profitability. The results of operations for these facilities has
now been re-classified as discontinued operations for the current and prior periods.
The facilities directly affected by the 2011 Restructuring Plan were in several locations throughout the country, including Arizona, Florida, Iowa, Louisiana,
Massachusetts, Nevada and Texas. These facilities were selected due to current and future business prospects and the extended time frame needed to return
the facilities to a profitable position. Restructuring expenses in respect of the 2011 Restructuring Plan totaling $5.0 million, including $1.2 million and $3.8
million for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, were comprised of severance costs, lease terminations, and external consulting and
management services. We have recognized substantially all costs related to the 2011 Restructuring Plan as of September 30, 2012. We will continue to incur
professional fees in conjunction with the finalization of facility closure in fiscal year 2013.
Expenses related to the 2009 Restructuring Plan are classified as restructuring charges within our Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended
September 30, 2010. Expenses related to the 2011 Restructuring Plan are included in the net loss from discontinued operations within our Consolidated
Statements of Operations for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011.
The following table presents the elements of costs incurred for both the 2011 and 2009 Restructuring Plans:
2012

Severance compensation
Consulting and other charges
Lease termination costs
Total restructuring charges

$

Years Ended September 30,
2011
2010
(In thousands)

(62)
1,099
133
$1,170

$1,455
1,531
799
$3,785

$644
119
$763

Interest and Other Expense, net

Interest expense
Deferred financing charges
Total interest expense
Interest income
Other (income) expense, net
Total interest and other expense, net

2012

Years Ended September 30,
2011
(In thousands)

2010

$1,755
569
2,324
(34)
(62)
$2,228

$1,940
338
2,278
(68)
(7)
$2,203

$3,175
338
3,513
(242)
(18)
$3,253

During the year ended September 30, 2012, we incurred interest expense of $1.8 million primarily comprised of the Tontine Term Loan (as defined in
“Working Capital” below) and the Insurance Financing Agreements (as defined in “Working Capital” below), an average letter of credit balance of
8.8 million under the 2006 Credit Facility (as defined in “Working Capital” below) and an average unused line of credit balance of $29.7 million. This
compares to interest expense of $1.9 million for the year ended September 30, 2011, on a debt balance primarily comprised of the Tontine Term Loan and the
Insurance Financing Agreements, an average letter of credit balance of $12.7 million under the 2006 Credit Facility and an average unused line of credit
balance of $38.9 million.
For the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, we earned interest income of $34 thousand and $68 thousand, respectively, on the average Cash and Cash
Equivalents balances of 26.1 million and $29.9 million, respectively.
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Sale of Non-Strategic Manufacturing Facility
On November 30, 2010, a subsidiary of the Company sold substantially all the assets and certain liabilities of a non-strategic manufacturing facility engaged
in manufacturing and selling fabricated metal buildings housing electrical equipment, such as switchgears, motor starters and control systems, to Siemens
Energy, Inc. As part of this transaction, Siemens Energy, Inc. also acquired certain real property where the fabrication facilities are located from another
subsidiary of the Company. The purchase price of $10.1 million was adjusted to reflect working capital variances. The transaction was completed on
December 10, 2010 at which time we recognized a gain of $6.8 million.
Sale of Non-Core Electrical Distribution Facility
On February 28, 2011, Key Electrical Supply, Inc, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, sold substantially all the assets and certain liabilities of a noncore electrical distribution facility engaged in distributing wiring, lighting, electrical distribution, power control and generators for residential and
commercial applications to Elliot Electric Supply, Inc. The purchase price of $6.7 million was adjusted to reflect working capital variances. The loss on this
transaction was immaterial.
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES
Our provision for income taxes decreased from of $0.2 million for the year ended September 30, 2011 to $38 thousand for the year ended September 30,
2012. The decrease is mainly attributable to an increase in the reversal of unrecognized tax benefits, resulting in a $0.2 million decrease in the income tax
expense. We provided a valuation allowance for the federal tax benefit resulting from the loss of operations for the years ended September 30, 2012 and
2011, respectively. As a result, we did not recognize any net benefit for federal taxes for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011.
Our provision for income taxes increased from a benefit of $36 thousand for the year ended September 30, 2010 to an expense of $0.2 million for the year
ended September 30, 2011. The increase is mainly attributable to a decrease in the reversal of unrecognized tax benefits, resulting in a $0.1 million increase
in the income tax expense. We provided a valuation allowance for the federal tax benefit resulting from the loss of operations for the years ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. As a result, we did not recognize any net benefit for federal taxes for the years ended September 30, 2011 and
2010.
WORKING CAPITAL
During the year ended September 30, 2012, working capital decreased by $18.7 million from September 30, 2011, reflecting a $13.1 million decrease in
current assets and a $5.6 million increase in current liabilities during the period.
During the year ended September 30, 2012, our current assets decreased by $13.1 million, or 8.2%, to $147.4 million, as compared to $160.5 million as of
September 30, 2011. Cash and cash equivalents decreased by $9.7 million during the year ended September 30, 2012 as compared to September 30, 2011.
The current trade accounts receivables, net, decreased by $9.5 million at September 30, 2012, as compared to September 30, 2011. Days sales outstanding
(“DSOs”) decreased to 56 as of September 30, 2012 from 70 days as of September 30, 2011. The improvement was driven predominantly by increased
collection efforts. While the rate of collections may vary, our secured position, resulting from our ability to secure liens against our customers’ overdue
receivables, reasonably assures that collection will occur eventually to the extent that our security retains value. In light of the volatility of the current
financial markets, we closely monitor the collectability of our receivables. We also experienced a $0.9 million decrease in retainage and a $1.8 million
decrease in costs in excess of billings during the year ended September 30, 2012 compared to September 30, 2011.
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During the year ended September 30, 2012, our total current liabilities increased by $5.6 million to $104.4 million, compared to $98.8 million as of
September 30, 2011. During the year ended September 30, 2012 accounts payable and accrued expenses decreased $10.3 million. Billings in excess of costs
increased by $5.6 million during the year ended September 30, 2012 compared to September 30, 2011. Finally, current maturities of long-term debt decreased
by $10.2 million during the year ended September 30, 2012 compared to September 30, 2011 primarily due to the shifting of classification of the Tontine
Term Loan from long term to current portion of long-term debt.
Surety
Many customers, particularly in connection with new construction, require us to post performance and payment bonds issued by a surety. These bonds
provide a guarantee to the customer that we will perform under the terms of our contract and that we will pay our subcontractors and vendors. If we fail to
perform under the terms of our contract or to pay subcontractors and vendors, the customer may demand that the surety make payments or provide services
under the bond. We must reimburse the sureties for any expenses or outlays they incur on our behalf. To date, we have not been required to make any
reimbursements to our sureties for bond-related costs.
As is common in the surety industry, sureties issue bonds on a project-by-project basis and can decline to issue bonds at any time. We believe that our
relationships with our sureties will allow us to provide surety bonds as they are required. However, current market conditions, as well as changes in our
sureties’ assessment of our operating and financial risk, could cause our sureties to decline to issue bonds for our work. If our sureties decline to issue bonds
for our work, our alternatives would include posting other forms of collateral for project performance, such as letters of credit or cash, seeking bonding
capacity from other sureties, or engaging in more projects that do not require surety bonds. In addition, if we are awarded a project for which a surety bond is
required but we are unable to obtain a surety bond, the result could be a claim for damages by the customer for the costs of replacing us with another
contractor.
As of September 30, 2012, the estimated cost to complete our bonded projects was approximately $67.2 million. We believe the bonding capacity presently
provided by our sureties is adequate for our current operations and will be adequate for our operations for the foreseeable future. As of September 30, 2012,
we utilized $1.0 million of cash (as is included in “Other Non-Current Assets” in our Consolidated Balance Sheet) as collateral for certain of our previous
bonding programs.
The 2012 Revolving Credit Facility
On August 9, 2012, we entered into a Credit and Security Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”), for a $30.0 million revolving credit facility (the “2012 Credit
Facility”) with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association. The 2012 Credit Facility will mature on August 9, 2015, unless earlier terminated. The 2012 Credit
Facility replaced our 2006 Credit Facility with Bank of America, as described below.
The 2012 Credit Facility contains customary affirmative, negative and financial covenants. The 2012 Credit Facility requires that we maintain a fixed charge
coverage ratio of not less than 1.0:1.0 at any time that our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents on hand plus Excess Availability (as
defined in the Credit Agreement) is less than $20.0 million or Excess Availability is less than $7.5 million.
Borrowings under the 2012 Credit Facility may not exceed a “borrowing base” that is determined monthly by our lenders based on available collateral,
primarily certain accounts receivables and inventories. Under the terms of the 2012 Credit Facility, amounts outstanding bear interest at a per annum rate
equal to a Daily Three Month
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LIBOR (as defined in the Credit Agreement), plus an interest rate margin, which is determined quarterly, based on the following thresholds:
Level

I

II

III

Thresholds

Interest Rate Margin

Liquidity £ $20.0 million at any time during the period; or
Excess Availability £ $7.5 million at any time during the period; or
Fixed charge coverage ratio < 1.0:1.0
Liquidity > $20.0 million at all times during the period; and
Liquidity £ $30.0 million at any time during the period; and
Excess Availability $7.5 million; and
Fixed charge coverage ratio 1.0:1.0
Liquidity > $30.0 million at all times during the period

4.00 percentage points

3.50 percentage points
3.00 percentage points

In addition, we are charged monthly in arrears for (1) an unused commitment fee of 0.50% per annum, (2) a collateral monitoring fee ranging from $1
thousand to $2 thousand, based on the then-applicable interest rate margin, (3) a letter of credit fee based on the then-applicable interest rate margin and
(4) certain other fees and charges as specified in the Credit Agreement.
The 2012 Credit Facility is guaranteed by our subsidiaries and secured by first priority liens on substantially all of our subsidiaries’ existing and future
acquired assets, exclusive of collateral provided to our surety providers. The 2012 Credit Facility also restricts us from paying cash dividends and places
limitations on our ability to repurchase our common stock and our ability to repay the Tontine Term Loan.
At September 30, 2012, we had $21.6 million available to us under the 2012 Credit Facility, $0.7 million in outstanding letters of credit with Wells Fargo
and no outstanding borrowings. The Credit Agreement requires that we cash collateralize 100% of our letter of credit balance. As such, we have $0.7 million
classified as restricted cash within the Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2012.
At September 30, 2012, we were subject to the financial covenant under the 2012 Credit Facility requiring that we maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio of
not less than 1.0:1.0 at any time that our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents on hand plus Excess Availability is less than $20.0
million or Excess Availability is less than $7.5 million. As of September 30, 2012, our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents on hand
plus Excess Availability was in excess of $20.0 million and Excess Availability was in excess of $7.5 million; had we not met these thresholds at
September 30, 2012, we would not have met the required 1.0:1.0 fixed charge coverage ratio test.
While we expect to meet our financial covenants, in the event that we are not able to meet the covenants of the 2012 Credit Facility in the future and are
unsuccessful in obtaining a waiver from our lenders, the Company expects to have adequate cash on hand to fully collateralize our outstanding letters of
credit and to provide sufficient cash for ongoing operations.
The 2006 Revolving Credit Facility
On May 12, 2006, we entered into a Loan and Security Agreement (the “Loan and Security Agreement”), for a revolving credit facility (as amended, the
“2006 Credit Facility”) with Bank of America, N.A. and certain other lenders. Under the terms of the amended 2006 Credit Facility, the size of the facility was
$40.0 million and the maturity date was November 12, 2012. On August 9, 2012, the amended 2006 Credit Facility was replaced by the 2012 Credit Facility.
Under the terms of the amended 2006 Credit Facility, we were required to cash collateralize all of our letters of credit issued by the banks. The cash collateral
was added to the borrowing base calculation at 100% throughout the term of the agreement. The 2006 Credit Facility required that we maintain a fixed
charge coverage ratio of
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not less than 1.0:1.0 at any time that our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability was less than $25.0 million and, thereafter, until
such time as our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability had been at least $25.0 million for a period of 60 consecutive days. The
amended Agreement also called for cost of borrowings of 4.0% over LIBOR per annum. Cost for letters of credit was the same as borrowings and also included
a 25 basis point “fronting fee.” In connection with the most recent amendment to the 2006 Credit Facility, we incurred an amendment fee of $0.1 million
which, together with unamortized balance of the prior amendment was amortized using the straight line method through August 30, 2012.
The 2006 Credit Facility was guaranteed by our subsidiaries and secured by first priority liens on substantially all of our subsidiaries’ existing and future
acquired assets, exclusive of collateral provided to our surety providers. The 2006 Credit Facility contained customary affirmative, negative and financial
covenants. The 2006 Credit Facility also restricted us from paying cash dividends and placed limitations on our ability to repurchase our common stock.
Borrowings under the 2006 Credit Facility could not exceed a “borrowing base” that was determined monthly by our lenders based on available collateral,
primarily certain accounts receivables and inventories. Under the terms of the 2006 Credit Facility in effect as of August 30,2012, interest for loans and letter
of credit fees was based on our Total Liquidity, which is calculated for any given period as the sum of average daily availability for such period plus average
daily unrestricted cash on hand for such period as follows:
Total Liquidity

Annual Interest Rate for Loans

Greater than or equal to $60.0 million
Greater than $40.0 million and less than $60.0
million

Annual Interest Rate for
Letters of Credit

LIBOR plus 3.00% or Base Rate plus 1.00%

3.00% plus 0.25%
fronting fee

LIBOR plus 3.25% or Base Rate plus 1.25%

3.25% plus 0.25%
fronting fee

LIBOR plus 3.50% or Base Rate plus 1.50%

3.50% plus 0.25%
fronting fee

Less than or equal to $40.0 million

At September 30, 2012, we had $6.1 million in outstanding letters of credit with Bank of America. The terms surrounding the termination of the 2006 Credit
Facility require that we cash collateralize 105% of our letter of credit balance. As such, we have $6.5 million classified as restricted cash within the Balance
Sheet as of September 30, 2012.
For the year ended September 30, 2012, we paid no interest for loans under the 2006 Credit Facility and had a weighted average interest rate, including
fronting fees, of 3.55% for letters of credit. In addition, we were charged monthly in arrears (1) an unused commitment fee of 0.50%, and (2) certain other fees
and charges as specified in the Loan and Security Agreement, as amended.
As of August 9, 2012, we were subject to the financial covenant under the 2006 Credit Facility requiring that we maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio of not
less than 1.0:1.0 at any time that our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability is less than $25.0 million and, thereafter, until such time
as our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability has been at least $25.0 million for a period of 60 consecutive days. As of August 9,
2012, our Total Liquidity was in excess of $25.0 million.
The Tontine Term Loan
On December 12, 2007, we entered into, a $25.0 million senior subordinated loan agreement (the “Tontine Term Loan”), with Tontine Capital Partners, L.P.,
an affiliate of our controlling shareholder. The Tontine Term Loan bears interest at 11.0% per annum and is due on May 15, 2013. Interest is payable
quarterly in cash or in-kind at our option. Any interest paid in-kind will bear interest at 11.0% in addition to the loan principal. On April 30, 2010, we
prepaid $15.0 million of principal on the Tontine Term Loan. On May 1, 2010, Tontine assigned the
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Tontine Term Loan to Tontine Capital Overseas Master Fund II, L.P., also a related party. We may repay the Tontine Term Loan at any time prior to the
maturity date at par, plus accrued interest without penalty within the restrictions of the 2012 Credit Facility. The Company is currently evaluating its options
with regard to repayment of the loan, including through a refinancing of the loan prior to or at its maturity.
The Tontine Term Loan is subordinated to the 2012 Credit Facility. The Tontine Term Loan is an unsecured obligation of the Company and its subsidiary
borrowers, and contains no financial covenants or restrictions on dividends or distributions to stockholders. The Tontine Term Loan was amended on
August 9, 2012 in connection with the Company entering into the 2012 Credit Facility. The amendment did not materially impact the Company’s
obligations under the Tontine Term Loan.
Capital Lease
The Company leases certain equipment under agreements, which are classified as capital leases and included in property, plant and equipment. Accumulated
amortization of this equipment for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $0.2 million, $0.2 million and $0.2 million, respectively, which
amounts are included in depreciation expense in the accompanying statements of operations.
Insurance Financing Agreements
From time to time, we elect to finance our commercial insurance policy premiums over a term equal to or less than the term of the policy (each, an “Insurance
Financing Agreement”). The terms of the Insurance Financing Agreement for fiscal year 2012 was for twelve months at an interest rate of 1.99%. The
Insurance Financing Agreement was collateralized by the gross unearned premiums on the respective insurance policies plus any payments for losses claimed
under the policies. The remaining balance due on the Insurance Financing Agreement at September 30, 2012 was $0.2 million. We did not elect to finance
our insurance policy premiums in fiscal year 2011.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
As of September 30, 2012, we had cash and cash equivalents of $18.7 million, working capital of $43.0 million, $6.2 million of letters of credit outstanding
under our 2006 Credit Facility, and $0.7 million of letters of credit and $21.6 million of available capacity under our 2012 Credit Facility. We anticipate that
the combination of cash on hand, cash flows and available capacity under our 2012 Credit Facility will provide sufficient cash to enable us to meet our
working capital needs, debt service requirements and capital expenditures for property and equipment through the next twelve months. Our ability to
generate cash flow is dependent on many factors, including demand for our services, the availability of projects at margins acceptable to us, the ultimate
collectability of our receivables, and our ability to borrow on our 2012 Credit Facility, if needed. We were not required to test our covenants under our 2006
Credit Facility or our 2012 Credit Facility during the period. Had we been required to test our covenants, we would have failed at September 30, 2012.
We continue to closely monitor the financial markets and general national and global economic conditions. To date, we have experienced no loss or lack of
access to our invested cash or cash equivalents; however, we can provide no assurances that access to our invested cash and cash equivalents will not be
impacted in the future by adverse conditions in the financial markets.
Operating Activities
Our cash flow from operations is not only influenced by cyclicality, demand for our services, operating margins and the type of services we provide, but can
also be influenced by working capital needs such as the timing of our receivable collections. Working capital needs are generally lower during our fiscal first
and second quarters due to the seasonality that we experience in many regions of the country.
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Operating activities used net cash of $7.4 million during the year ended September 30, 2012, as compared to $11.9 million of net cash used in the year ended
September 30, 2011. We used substantially more cash to reduce our accounts payable and accrued expenses and increase inventory in 2012. This was directly
correlated to the increase in revenues year over year. Additionally, our increased billings produced $11.1 million in cash. We were able to increase our
billings in excess of cost in fiscal 2012, by $5.7 million. Depreciation expense was significantly reduced in fiscal 2012, resulting from the accelerated
amortization of certain assets in 2011.
Operating activities used net cash of $11.9 million during the year ended September 30, 2011, as compared to $13.2 million of net cash used in the year
ended September 30, 2010. The increase in operating cash flows in the year ended September 30, 2011 was due primarily to the gain on the sale of a nonstrategic manufacturing facility of $6.8 million, offset by an impairment loss recognized of $4.9 million.
Operating activities from discontinued operations used net cash of $2.0 million during the year ended September 30, 2012, as compared to $9.5 million of
net cash used in the year ended September 30, 2011. We completed substantially all projects within our discontinued operations. As we completed these
projects we used the cash to satisfy outstanding accounts payable, and collected cash for the accounts receivable related to these completed projects.
Investing Activities
In the year ended September 30, 2012, net cash from investing activities used $1.9 million as compared to $15.3 million of net cash provided by investing
activities in the year ended September 30, 2011. Investing activities in the year ended September 30, 2012 was comprised of $1.9 million used for capital
expenditures. Investing activities in the year ended September 30, 2011 included $16.8 million from the sale of facilities, and $1.2 million of proceeds from
the sale of equipment, partially offset by $1.3 million used for capital expenditures.
Net cash from investing activities generated $15.3 million in the year ended September 30, 2011 as compared to $0.2 million of net cash used in investing
activities in the year ended September 30, 2010. In the year ended September 30, 2011, investing activities included $16.8 million from the sale of facilities,
and $1.2 million of proceeds from the sale of equipment, partially offset by $1.3 million used for capital expenditures. Investing activities in the year ended
September 30, 2010 included $0.9 million used for capital expenditures, partially offset by a cash distribution from an investment of $0.4 million and $0.3
million of proceeds from the sale of equipment.
Financing Activities
Financing activities used net cash of $7.6 million in the year ended September 30, 2012 compared to $0.8 million used in the year ended September 30,
2011. Financing activities in the year ended September 30, 2012 included an increase of $7.1 million in restricted cash to satisfy the requirements of our
2012 Credit Facility. Financing activities in the year ended September 30, 2011 included $0.8 million used for repayments of debt.
Financing activities used net cash of $0.8 million in the year ended September 30, 2011 compared to $17.9 million used in the year ended September 30,
2010. Financing activities in the year ended September 30, 2011 included $0.8 million used for repayments of debt. Financing activities in the year ended
September 30, 2010 included $17.8 million used for repayments of debt, of which $15.0 million was used as a prepayment on the Tontine Term Loan, $0.3
million was used for debt issuance costs and $0.2 million was used for the acquisition of treasury stock netted against $0.8 million provided by new
insurance financing.
Bonding Capacity
At September 30, 2012, we had adequate surety bonding capacity under our surety agreements. Our ability to access this bonding capacity is at the sole
discretion of our surety providers. As of September 30, 2012, the
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expected cumulative cost to complete for projects covered by our surety providers was $67.2 million. We believe we have adequate remaining available
bonding capacity to meet our current needs, subject to the sole discretion of our surety providers. For additional information, please refer to Note 16,
“Commitments and Contingencies — Surety” in the notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements.
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
James M. Lindstrom, has served as Chief Executive Officer and President of the Company since October 3, 2011. Mr. Lindstrom previously served in such
capacities on an interim basis since June 2011 and has served as Chairman of the Company’s Board of Directors since February 2011. Mr. Lindstrom was an
employee of Tontine from 2006 until October 2011. In his capacity as Chief Executive Officer and President, Mr. Lindstrom has the ability to affect the
composition of the Company’s management and influence the business operations of the Company or extraordinary transactions outside the normal course of
the Company’s business.
On July 21, 2011, Tontine filed an amended Schedule 13D indicating its ownership level of 57.4% of the Company’s outstanding common stock. While
Tontine is subject to restrictions under federal securities laws on sales of its shares as an affiliate, Tontine is party to a Registration Rights Agreement with the
Company under which it has the ability, subject to certain restrictions, to demand registration of its shares in order to permit unrestricted sales of those shares.
Tontine has indicated to the Company that it may seek to register some or all of its shares in the near future.
Should Tontine sell or exchange all or a portion of its position in IES, a change in ownership could occur. A change in ownership, as defined by Internal
Revenue Code Section 382, could reduce the availability of net operating losses for federal and state income tax purposes. While the Company is currently
evaluating steps it may take to protect its federal NOLs, including evaluating implementing a tax benefit protection plan that would be designed to deter an
acquisition of the Company’s stock in excess of a threshold amount that could trigger a change of control within the meaning of Internal Revenue Code
Section 382, there can be no assurance that such a plan will be implemented or that, if enacted, it would be effective in deterring a change of control or
protecting the NOLs. Furthermore, a change in control would trigger the change of control provisions in a number of our material agreements, including our
2012 Credit Facility, bonding agreements with our sureties and employment contracts with certain officers and employees of the Company.
On April 30, 2010, we prepaid $15.0 million of the original $25.0 million principal outstanding on the Tontine Term Loan; accordingly $10.0 million
remains outstanding under the Tontine Term Loan, which is scheduled to mature on May 15, 2013. The Company is currently evaluating its options with
regard to repayment of the loan, including through a refinancing of the loan prior to or at its maturity.
On March 29, 2012, we entered into a sublease agreement with Tontine Associates, LLC, an affiliate of our controlling shareholder, for corporate office space
in Greenwich, Connecticut. The lease extends from April 1, 2012 through March 31, 2014, with monthly payments due in the amount of $6 thousand. The
lease has terms at market rates and payments by the Company are at a rate consistent with that paid by Tontine Associates, LLC to its landlord.
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
As is common in our industry, we have entered into certain off-balance sheet arrangements that expose us to increased risk. Our significant off-balance sheet
transactions include commitments associated with non-cancelable operating leases, letter of credit obligations, firm commitments for materials and surety
guarantees.
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We enter into non-cancelable operating leases for many of our vehicle and equipment needs. These leases allow us to retain our cash when we do not own the
vehicles or equipment, and we pay a monthly lease rental fee. At the end of the lease, we have no further obligation to the lessor. We may cancel or terminate
a lease before the end of its term. Typically, we would be liable to the lessor for various lease cancellation or termination costs and the difference between the
fair market value of the leased asset and the implied book value of the leased asset as calculated in accordance with the lease agreement.
Some of our customers and vendors require us to post letters of credit as a means of guaranteeing performance under our contracts and ensuring payment by
us to subcontractors and vendors. If our customer has reasonable cause to effect payment under a letter of credit, we would be required to reimburse our
creditor for the letter of credit. At September 30, 2012, $0.6 million of our outstanding letters of credit were to collateralize our customers and vendors.
Some of the underwriters of our casualty insurance program require us to post letters of credit as collateral, as is common in the insurance industry. To date,
we have not had a situation where an underwriter has had reasonable cause to effect payment under a letter of credit. At September 30, 2012, $6.8 million of
our outstanding letters of credit were to collateralize our insurance programs.
From time to time, we may enter into firm purchase commitments for materials such as copper wire and aluminum wire, among others, which we expect to use
in the ordinary course of business. These commitments are typically for terms less than one year and require us to buy minimum quantities of materials at
specified intervals at a fixed price over the term. As of September 30, 2012, we did not have any open purchase commitments.
Many of our customers require us to post performance and payment bonds issued by a surety. Those bonds guarantee the customer that we will perform under
the terms of a contract and that we will pay subcontractors and vendors. In the event that we fail to perform under a contract or pay subcontractors and
vendors, the customer may demand the surety to pay or perform under our bond. Our relationship with our sureties is such that we will indemnify the sureties
for any expenses they incur in connection with any of the bonds they issue on our behalf. To date, we have not incurred any costs to indemnify our sureties
for expenses they incurred on our behalf.
As of September 30, 2012, our future contractual obligations due by September 30 of each of the following fiscal years include (in thousands) (1):

Long-term debt obligations
Operating lease obligations
Capital lease obligations
Total
(1)

Less than
1 Year

1 to 3
Years

3 to 5
Years

More than
5 Years

Total

$10,196
$ 3,464
$
—
$13,660

$ —
$2,477
$ 344
$2,821

$ —
$1,493
$ —
$1,493

$ —
$ 2,233
$ —
$ 2,233

$10,196
$ 9,667
$ 344
$20,207

The tabular amounts exclude the interest obligations that will be created if the debt and capital lease obligations are outstanding for the periods
presented.

Our other commitments expire by September 30 of each of the following fiscal years (in thousands):
2012

Standby letters of credit
Other commitments
Total

$ —
$ —
$ —
36

2013

$6,848
$ —
$6,848

2014

$ —
$ —
$ —

Thereafter

$
$
$

—
—
—

Total

$6,848
$ —
$6,848
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities known to exist as of the date the Consolidated Financial Statements
are published and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses recognized during the periods presented. We review all significant estimates affecting our
Consolidated Financial Statements on a recurring basis and record the effect of any necessary adjustments prior to their publication. Judgments and estimates
are based on our beliefs and assumptions derived from information available at the time such judgments and estimates are made. Uncertainties with respect to
such estimates and assumptions are inherent in the preparation of financial statements. There can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from those
estimates.
Accordingly, we have identified the accounting principles, which we believe are most critical to our reported financial status by considering accounting
policies that involve the most complex or subjective decisions or assessments. We identified our most critical accounting policies to be those related to
revenue recognition, the assessment of goodwill and asset impairment, our allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, the recording of our insurance
liabilities and estimation of the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets, and unrecognized tax benefits. These accounting policies, as well as others, are
described in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in the notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements, and at relevant sections in this
discussion and analysis.
Revenue Recognition. We enter into contracts principally on the basis of competitive bids. We frequently negotiate the final terms and prices of those
contracts with the customer. Although the terms of our contracts vary considerably, most are made on either a fixed price or unit price basis in which we agree
to do the work for a fixed amount for the entire project (fixed price) or for units of work performed (unit price). We also perform services on a cost-plus or time
and materials basis. Our most significant cost drivers are the cost of labor, the cost of materials and the cost of casualty and health insurance. These costs may
vary from the costs we originally estimated. Variations from estimated contract costs along with other risks inherent in performing fixed price and unit price
contracts may result in actual revenue and gross profits or interim projected revenue and gross profits for a project differing from those we originally
estimated and could result in losses on projects. Depending on the size of a particular project, variations from estimated project costs could have a significant
impact on our operating results for any fiscal quarter or year.
We complete most of our projects within one year. We frequently provide service and maintenance work under open-ended, unit price master service
agreements which are renewable annually. We recognize revenue on service, time and material work when services are performed. Work performed under a
construction contract generally provides that the customers accept completion of progress to date and compensate us for services rendered, measured in terms
of units installed, hours expended or some other measure of progress. Revenues from construction contracts are recognized on the percentage-of-completion
method. The percentage-of-completion method for construction contracts is measured principally by the percentage of costs incurred and accrued to date for
each contract to the estimated total costs for each contract at completion. We generally consider contracts substantially complete upon departure from the
work site and acceptance by the customer. Contract costs include all direct material and labor costs and those indirect costs related to contract performance,
such as indirect labor, supplies, tools, repairs and depreciation costs. Changes in job performance, job conditions, estimated contract costs, profitability and
final contract settlements may result in revisions to costs and income, and the effects of such revisions are recognized in the period in which the revisions are
determined. Provisions for total estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined.
The current asset “Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts” represents revenues recognized in excess of amounts billed
that management believes will be billed and collected within the
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next twelve months. The current liability “Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts” represents billings in excess of
revenues recognized. Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts are amounts considered recoverable from customers based
on different measures of performance, including achievement of specific milestones, completion of specified units or completion of the contract. Also
included in this asset, from time to time, are claims and unapproved change orders, which include amounts that we are in the process of collecting from our
customers or agencies for changes in contract specifications or design, contract change orders in dispute or unapproved as to scope and price, or other related
causes of unanticipated additional contract costs. Claims and unapproved change orders are recorded at estimated realizable value when collection is
probable and can be reasonably estimated. We do not recognize profits on construction costs incurred in connection with claims. Claims made by us involve
negotiation and, in certain cases, litigation. Such litigation costs are expensed as incurred.
Valuation of Intangibles and Long-Lived Assets. We evaluate goodwill for potential impairment at least annually at year end, however, if impairment
indicators exist, we will evaluate as needed. Included in this evaluation are certain assumptions and estimates to determine the fair values of reporting units
such as estimates of future cash flows and discount rates, as well as assumptions and estimates related to the valuation of other identified intangible assets.
Changes in these assumptions and estimates or significant changes to the market value of our common stock could materially impact our results of operations
or financial position. We recorded goodwill impairment during the year ended September 30, 2011 of $0.1 million. We did not record goodwill impairment
during the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2010.
We assess impairment indicators related to long-lived assets and intangible assets at least annually at year end. If we determine impairment indicators exist,
we conduct an evaluation to determine whether any impairment has occurred. This evaluation includes certain assumptions and estimates to determine fair
value of asset groups, including estimates about future cash flows and discount rates, among others. Changes in these assumptions and estimates could
materially impact our results of operations or financial projections. We recorded long-lived or intangible asset impairment during the years ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011 of $0.7 and $0.1 million, respectively; primarily attributable to real estate we are offering to sell. The write down was made to
reduce the carrying value of the property to its current expected fair value. We did not record long-lived or intangible asset impairment during the year ended
September 30, 2010.
Current and Non-Current Accounts and Notes Receivable and Provision for Doubtful Accounts. We provide an allowance for doubtful accounts for
unknown collection issues, in addition to reserves for specific accounts receivable where collection is considered doubtful. Inherent in the assessment of the
allowance for doubtful accounts are certain judgments and estimates including, among others, our customers’ access to capital, our customers’ willingness to
pay, general economic conditions, and the ongoing relationships with our customers. In addition to these factors, the method of accounting for construction
contracts requires the review and analysis of not only the net receivables, but also the amount of billings in excess of costs and costs in excess of billings. The
analysis management utilizes to assess collectability of our receivables includes detailed review of older balances, analysis of days sales outstanding where
we include in the calculation, in addition to accounts receivable balances net of any allowance for doubtful accounts, the level of costs in excess of billings
netted against billings in excess of costs, and the ratio of accounts receivable, net of any allowance for doubtful accounts plus the level of costs in excess of
billings, to revenues. These analyses provide an indication of those amounts billed ahead or behind the recognition of revenue on our construction contracts
and are important to consider in understanding the operational cash flows related to our revenue cycle.
Risk-Management. We are insured for workers’ compensation, automobile liability, general liability, construction defects, employment practices and
employee-related health care claims, subject to deductibles. Our general liability program provides coverage for bodily injury and property damage. Losses
up to the deductible amounts are accrued based upon our estimates of the liability for claims incurred and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported. The
accruals are derived from actuarial studies, known facts, historical trends and industry averages utilizing the assistance of an actuary to determine the best
estimate of the ultimate expected loss. We believe
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such accruals to be adequate; however, insurance liabilities are difficult to assess and estimate due to unknown factors, including the severity of an injury, the
determination of our liability in proportion to other parties, the number of incidents incurred but not reported and the effectiveness of our safety program.
Therefore, if actual experience differs from the assumptions used in the actuarial valuation, adjustments to the reserve may be required and would be recorded
in the period that the experience becomes known.
Valuation Allowance for Deferred Tax Assets. We regularly evaluate valuation allowances established for deferred tax assets for which future realization is
uncertain. We perform this evaluation at least annually at the end of each fiscal year. The estimation of required valuation allowances includes estimates of
future taxable income. In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets at September 30, 2012, we considered that it was more likely than not that some or
all of the deferred tax assets would not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income
during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. We consider the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future
taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.
Income Taxes. GAAP specifies the methodology by which a company must identify, recognize, measure and disclose in its financial statements the effects of
any uncertain tax return reporting positions that it has taken or expects to take. GAAP requires financial statement reporting of the expected future tax
consequences of uncertain tax return reporting positions on the presumption that all relevant tax authorities possess full knowledge of those tax reporting
positions, as well as all of the pertinent facts and circumstances, but it prohibits discounting of any of the related tax effects for the time value of money.
The evaluation of a tax position is a two-step process. The first step is the recognition process to determine if it is more likely than not that a tax position will
be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authority, based on the technical merits of the position. The second step is a measurement process
whereby a tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition threshold is calculated to determine the amount of benefit/expense to recognize in the
financial statements. The tax position is measured at the largest amount of benefit/expense that is more likely than not of being realized upon ultimate
settlement.
The Financial Accounting Standards Board, (“FASB”) has issued standards on business combinations and accounting and reporting of non-controlling
interests in consolidated financial statements. Beginning October 1, 2009, with the adoption of the updates, reductions in the valuation allowance and
contingent tax liabilities attributable to all periods, if any should occur, are recorded as an adjustment to income tax expense.
We are currently not under federal audit by the Internal Revenue Service. The tax years ended September 30, 2009 and forward are subject to audit as are
prior tax years, to the extent of unutilized net operating losses generated in those years.
We anticipate that approximately $0.1 million in liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits, including accrued interest, may be reversed in the next twelve
months. This reversal is predominantly due to the expiration of the statutes of limitation for unrecognized tax benefits and the settlement of a state audit.
New Accounting Pronouncements. Newly adopted accounting policies are described in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — New
Accounting Pronouncements” in the notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements, and at relevant sections in this discussion and analysis.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Management is actively involved in monitoring exposure to market risk and continues to develop and utilize appropriate risk management techniques. Our
exposure to significant market risks includes fluctuations in commodity prices for copper, aluminum, steel and fuel. Commodity price risks may have an
impact on our results of operations due to the fixed price nature of many of our contracts. We are also exposed to interest rate risk with respect to our
outstanding debt obligations on the 2012 Credit Facility. For additional information see “Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” in Part I of
this Form 10-K.
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Commodity Risk
Our exposure to significant market risks includes fluctuations in commodity prices for copper, aluminum, steel and fuel. Commodity price risks may have an
impact on our results of operations due to fixed nature of many of our contracts. Over the long-term, we expect to be able to pass along a portion of these
costs to our customers, as market conditions in the construction industry will allow.
Interest Rate Risk
We are also exposed to interest rate risk, with respect to our outstanding revolving debt obligations as well as our letters of credit.
The following table presents principal or notional amounts and related interest rates by fiscal year of maturity for our debt obligations at September 30, 2012
(Dollar amounts in thousands):
Debt Obligations — Fixed Rate:
Tontine Term Loan (11%)
Capital Lease (22%)
Fair Value of Debt:
Fixed Rate
40

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Thereafter

Total

$10,000
$ 317

$—
$ 26

$ —
$ —

$ —
$ —

$ —
$ —

$
$

—
—

$10,000
$ 343

$10,278

$ 21

$ —

$ —

$ —

$

—

$10,299
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. and subsidiaries (“the Company”) as of September 30,
2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
September 30, 2012. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged
to perform an audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Integrated Electrical
Services, Inc. and subsidiaries at September 30, 2012 and 2011, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended September 30, 2012, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Houston, Texas
December 14, 2012
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In Thousands, Except Share Information)
Years Ended September 30,
2012
2011

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable:
Trade, net of allowance of $1,788 and $2,704, respectively
Retainage
Inventories
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts
Assets held for sale
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
LONG-TERM RECEIVABLE, net of allowance of $0 and $59, respectively
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net
GOODWILL
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS, net
Total assets

$ 18,729
7,155

$ 35,577
—

76,259
17,004
15,141
8,180
1,110
3,807
147,385
259
6,480
4,446
6,143
$ 164,713

85,728
17,944
8,443
9,963
—
2,840
160,495
200
8,016
4,446
7,087
$180,244

$ 10,456
68,673
25,255
104,384
24
285
6,863
111,556

$

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts
Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current maturities
LONG-TERM DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Total liabilities
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, none issued and outstanding
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized; 15,407,802 and 15,407,802 shares issued and
14,977,400 and 14,956,473 outstanding, respectively
Treasury stock, at cost, 430,402 and 451,329 shares, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Retained deficit
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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—
154
(4,546)
163,871
(106,322)
53,157
$ 164,713

209
78,980
19,585
98,774
10,289
284
6,596
115,943
—

154
(5,595)
164,262
(94,520)
64,301
$180,244
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In Thousands, Except Share Information)
2012

Revenues
Cost of services
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Gain on sale of assets
Asset impairment
Restructuring charges
Loss from operations

$

456,115
398,063
58,052
58,609
(168)
—
—
(389)

Years Ended September 30,
2011

$

406,141
361,757
44,384
63,321
(6,555)
4,804
—
(17,186)

2010

$

382,431
326,939
55,492
74,251
(128)
—
763
(19,394)

Interest and other (income) expense:
Interest expense
Interest income
Other income, net
Interest and other expense, net

2,324
(34)
(62)
2,228

2,278
(68)
(7)
2,203

3,513
(242)
(18)
3,253

Loss from operations before income taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Net loss from continuing operations

$

(2,617)
38
(2,655)

$

(19,389)
172
(19,561)

$

(22,647)
(36)
(22,611)

Discontinued operations (Note 17)
Loss from discontinued operations
(Benefit) provision for income taxes
Net loss from discontinued operations
Net loss

$

(9,158)
(11)
(9,147)
(11,802)

$

(18,288)
(26)
(18,262)
(37,823)

$

(8,539)
5
(8,544)
(31,155)

Loss per share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Basic

$
$
$

(0.18)
(0.63)
(0.81)

$
$
$

(1.35)
(1.26)
(2.61)

$
$
$

(1.57)
(0.59)
(2.16)

Diluted loss per share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Diluted

$
$
$

(0.18)
(0.63)
(0.81)

$
$
$

(1.35)
(1.26)
(2.61)

$
$
$

(1.57)
(0.59)
(2.16)

Shares used in the computation of loss per share
Basic
Diluted

14,625,776
14,625,776

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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14,493,747
14,493,747

14,409,368
14,409,368
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(In Thousands, Except Share Information)

BALANCE, September 30, 2009
Restricted stock grant
Forfeiture of restricted stock
Acquisition of treasury stock
Non-cash compensation
Unrealized loss on marketable securities, net of tax
Net loss

Shares
15,407,802
—
—
—
—
—
—

Amount
$ 154
—
—
—
—
—
—

Shares
(790,061)
221,486
(38,000)
(27,323)
—
—
—

Amount
$(14,097)
807
(217)
(170)
—
—
—

APIC
$170,732
(807)
217
(2)
1,370
—
—

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)
$
(70)
—
—
—
—
(18)
—

BALANCE, September 30, 2010

15,407,802

$

$171,510

$

Common Stock

Restricted stock grant
Forfeiture of restricted stock
Acquisition of treasury stock
Non-cash compensation
Unrealized loss on marketable securities, net of tax
Net loss
BALANCE, September 30, 2011
Restricted stock grant
Forfeiture of restricted stock
Acquisition of treasury stock
Non-cash compensation
Net loss
BALANCE ,September 30, 2012

—
—
—
—
—
—
15,407,802

$

—
—
—
—
—
15,407,802

$

Treasury Stock

154

(633,898)

$(13,677)

—
—
—
—
—
—

333,616
(130,258)
(20,789)
—
—
—

4,595
(450)
3,937
—
—
—

154

(451,329)

$ (5,595)

—
—
—
—
—

107,500
(32,277)
(54,296)
—
—

1,322
(92)
(181)
—
—

154

(430,402)

$ (4,546)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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(4,595)
450
(4,009)
907
—
—
$164,263

$

(1,322)
92
838
—
$163,871

(88)
—
—
—
—
88
—

$

Retained
Deficit
$ (25,542)
—
—
—
—
—
(31,155)

Total
Stockholders’
Equity
$
131,177
—
—
(172)
1,370
(18)
(31,155)

$ (56,697)

$

—
—
—
—
—
(37,823)

—

$ (94,520)

—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
(11,802)

—

$(106,322)

101,202
—
—
(72)
907
88
(37,823)

$

64,302
—
—
(181)
838
(11,802)

$

53,157
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In Thousands)
2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Bad debt expense
Deferred financing cost amortization
Depreciation and amortization
Gain on sale of business units
Loss (gain) on sale of assets
Non-cash compensation expense
Impairment
Deferred income tax
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other non-current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings
Other non-current liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment
Proceeds from sales of facilities
Distribution from unconsolidated affiliates
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings of debt
Repayments of debt
Purchase of treasury stock
Change in restricted cash
Payments for debt issuance costs
Net cash used in financing activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes
Assets acquired under capital lease
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Years Ended September 30,
2011

2010

$(11,802)

$(37,823)

$(31,155)

(858)
209
2,146
—
44
838
688
(39)

(715)
338
6,356
(6,657)
88
907
4,854
(107)

7,440
314
5,291
—
(174)
1,370
150
(1,244)

11,130
(6,698)
1,782
(273)
211
(10,114)
5,670
(305)
(7,371)

(2,761)
(537)
2,222
1,206
3,092
14,861
2,476
348
(11,852)

17,768
(2,642)
(995)
1,820
1,463
(5,708)
(5,898)
(966)
(13,166)

(1,877)
—
—
—
(1,877)

(2,688)
1,268
16,763
—
15,343

(924)
328
—
393
(203)

—
(264)
(181)
(7,155)
—
(7,600)
(16,848)
35,577
$ 18,729

—
(766)
(72)
—
—
(838)
2,653
32,924
$ 35,577

753
(18,184)
(172)
—
(278)
(17,881)
(31,250)
64,174
$ 32,924

2012
$ 1,646
$
436
$
—

2011
$ 2,293
$
340
$
68

2010
$ 3,899
$
263
$
—
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(All Amounts in Thousands Except Share Amounts)
1. BUSINESS
Description of the Business
Integrated Electrical Services, Inc., a Delaware corporation, was founded in June 1997 to establish a leading national provider of electrical services, focusing
primarily on the communications, residential, commercial and industrial service and maintenance markets. We provide services from 61 locations serving the
United States. The Company is organized into three business segments; Communications, Residential and Commercial & Industrial. The words “IES”, the
“Company”, “we”, “our”, and “us” refer to Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. and, except as otherwise specified herein, to our wholly-owned subsidiaries.
Our Communications division is a leading provider of network infrastructure products and services for data centers and other mission critical environments.
Services offered include the design, installation and maintenance of network infrastructure for the financial, medical, hospitality, government, hi-tech
manufacturing, educational and information technology industries. We also provide the design and installation of audio/visual, telephone, fire, wireless and
intrusion alarm systems as well as design/build, service and maintenance of data network systems. We perform services across the United States from our ten
offices, which includes our Communications headquarters located in Tempe, Arizona, allowing for dedicated onsite maintenance teams at our customer’s
sites.
Our Residential division provides electrical installation services for single-family housing and multi-family apartment complexes and CATV cabling
installations for residential and light commercial applications. In addition to our core electrical construction work, the Residential segment has expanded its
offerings by providing services for the installation of residential solar power, smart meters, electric car charging stations and stand-by generators, both for new
construction and existing residences. The Residential division is made up of 32 total locations, which includes our Residential headquarters in Houston.
These division locations geographically cover Texas, the Sun-Belt, and the Western and Mid-Atlantic regions of the United States, including Hawaii.
Our Commercial & Industrial division is one of the largest providers of electrical contracting services in the United States The division offers a broad range of
electrical design, construction, renovation, engineering and maintenance services to the commercial and industrial markets. The Commercial & Industrial
division consist of 19 total locations, which includes our Commercial & Industrial headquarters in Houston, Texas. These locations geographically cover
Texas, Nebraska, Colorado, Oregon and the Mid-Atlantic region. Services include the design of electrical systems within a building or complex, procurement
and installation of wiring and connection to power sources, end-use equipment and fixtures, as well as contract maintenance. We focus on projects that
require special expertise, such as design-and-build projects that utilize the capabilities of our in-house experts, or projects which require specific market
expertise, such as transmission and distribution and power generation facilities. We also focus on service, maintenance and certain renovation and upgrade
work, which tends to be either recurring or have lower sensitivity to economic cycles, or both. We provide services for a variety of projects, including: highrise residential and office buildings, power plants, manufacturing facilities, data centers, chemical plants, refineries, wind farms, solar facilities, municipal
infrastructure and health care facilities, and residential developments. Our utility services consist of overhead and underground installation and maintenance
of electrical and other utilities transmission and distribution networks, installation and splicing of high-voltage transmission and distribution lines,
substation construction and substation and right-of-way maintenance. Our maintenance services generally provide recurring revenues that are typically less
affected by levels of construction activity. Service and maintenance revenues are derived from service calls and routine maintenance contracts, which tend to
be recurring and less sensitive to short term economic fluctuations.
Controlling Shareholder
At September 30, 2012, Tontine Capital Partners, L.P. and its affiliates (collectively, “Tontine”), was the controlling shareholder of the Company’s common
stock. Accordingly, Tontine has the ability to exercise
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(All Amounts in Thousands Except Share Amounts)
significant control over our affairs, including the election of directors and any action requiring the approval of shareholders, including the approval of any
potential merger or sale of all or substantially all assets or divisions of the Company, or the Company itself. For a more complete discussion on our
relationship with Tontine, please refer to Note 3, “Controlling Shareholder” in the notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements.
Sale of Non-Strategic Manufacturing Facility
On November 30, 2010, a subsidiary of the Company sold substantially all the assets and certain liabilities of a non-strategic manufacturing facility engaged
in manufacturing and selling fabricated metal buildings housing electrical equipment, such as switchgears, motor starters and control systems, to Siemens
Energy, Inc. As part of this transaction, Siemens Energy, Inc. also acquired the real property upon which the fabrication facilities are located from a subsidiary
of the Company. The transaction was completed on December 10, 2010 for a purchase price of $10,086 at which time we recognized a gain of $6,763.
Sale of Non-Core Electrical Distribution Facility
On February 28, 2011, Key Electrical Supply, Inc, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, sold substantially all the assets and certain liabilities of a noncore electrical distribution facility engaged in distributing wiring, lighting, electrical distribution, power control and generators for residential and
commercial applications to Elliot Electric Supply, Inc. for a purchase price of $6,676. The loss on this transaction was immaterial.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of IES and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation have been
included and are of a normal recurring nature.
Asset Impairment
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, the Company recorded a pretax non-cash asset impairment charge of $688 related to real estate held by our
Commercial & Industrial segment. The real estate is held within a location selected for closure during 2011. This impairment is to adjust the carrying value of
real estate held for sale to the estimated current market value less expected selling expenses, a value at which we expect to sell this real estate within one year.
The real estate is classified as assets held for sale within our Consolidated Balance Sheets. The impairment charge is included in our net loss from
discontinued operations within our Consolidated Statement of Operations.
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, the Company recorded a pretax non-cash asset impairment charge of $3,551 related to certain internallydeveloped capitalized software, $968 for our investment in EnerTech Capital Partners II L.P. (“EnerTech”), $142 for goodwill and $143 related to real estate
held by the Company which was impaired further in 2012, as noted above. The Company ceased use of the internally-developed software in 2011. As a result,
the software has a fair value of zero. The non-cash impairments related to the investment in EnerTech and the real estate are to adjust the carrying value to
their estimated current market values.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) requires the
use of estimates and assumptions by management in
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(All Amounts in Thousands Except Share Amounts)
determining the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates are primarily used in our revenue
recognition of construction in progress, fair value assumptions in analyzing goodwill, investments, intangible assets and long-lived asset impairments and
adjustments, allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, stock-based compensation, reserves for legal matters, assumptions regarding estimated costs to exit
certain divisions, realizability of deferred tax assets, unrecognized tax benefits and self-insured claims liabilities and related reserves.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Inventories
Inventories generally consist of parts and supplies held for use in the ordinary course of business and are valued at the lower of cost or market generally using
the historical average cost or first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Where shipping and handling costs are borne by us, these charges are included in inventory and
charged to cost of services upon use in our projects or the providing of services.
Securities and Equity Investments
Our investments are accounted for using either the cost or equity method of accounting, as appropriate. Each period, we evaluate whether an event or change
in circumstances has occurred that may indicate an investment has been impaired. If, upon further investigation of such events, we determine the investment
has suffered a decline in value that is other than temporary, we write down the investment to its estimated fair value.
Certain securities are classified as available-for-sale. These investments are recorded at fair value and are classified as other non-current assets in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2012. The changes in fair values, net of applicable taxes, are recorded as unrealized gains
(losses) as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders’ equity.
Long-Term Receivables
From time to time, we enter into payment plans with certain customers over periods in excess of one year. We classify these receivables as long-term
receivables. Additionally, we provide an allowance for doubtful accounts for specific long-term receivables where collection is considered doubtful.
In March 2009, in connection with a construction project entering bankruptcy, we transferred $3,992 of trade accounts receivable to long-term receivable and
initiated breach of contract and mechanics’ lien foreclosure actions against the project’s general contractor and owner, respectively. At the same time, we
reserved the costs in excess of billings of $278 associated with this receivable. In March 2010, given the significant uncertainty associated with its ultimate
collectability we reserved the remaining balance of $3,714, but continued to pursue collection through the bankruptcy court proceeding. In February 2011,
we entered into a $2,850 settlement in connection with the breach of contract and mechanics’ lien foreclosure actions related to the receivable. The $2,850
recovery was recorded in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as a component of selling, general, and administrative expenses.
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(All Amounts in Thousands Except Share Amounts)
Property and Equipment
Additions of property and equipment are recorded at cost, and depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the
related asset. Leasehold improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the lesser of the life of the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset.
Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense when incurred. Expenditures for major renewals and betterments, which extend the useful
lives of existing property and equipment, are capitalized and depreciated. Upon retirement or disposition of property and equipment, the capitalized cost and
related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the statement of operations in the caption
(gain) loss on sale of assets.
Goodwill
Goodwill attributable to each reporting unit is tested for impairment by comparing the fair value of each reporting unit with its carrying value. Fair value is
determined using discounted cash flows. These impairment tests are required to be performed at least annually. Significant estimates used in the
methodologies include estimates of future cash flows, future short-term and long-term growth rates, and weighted average cost of capital for each of the
reportable units. On an ongoing basis (absent any impairment indicators), we perform an impairment test annually using a measurement date of September 30.
As of September 30, 2012, the entire goodwill balance of $4,446 can be attributed to our Residential segment. Based upon the results of our annual
impairment analysis, the fair value of our Residential segment significantly exceeded the book value, and warrants no impairment. We recorded goodwill
impairment of $142 during the year ended September 30, 2011, bringing the goodwill balance attributable to our Commercial & Industrial segment to zero.
There is no goodwill associated with our Communications segment.
Debt Issuance Costs
Debt issuance costs are included in other noncurrent assets and are amortized to interest expense over the scheduled maturity of the debt. Amortization
expense of debt issuance costs was $568, $338 and $315, respectively, for the years ended 2012, 2011 and 2010. At September 30, 2012, remaining
unamortized capitalized debt issuance costs were $1,139.
Revenue Recognition
We recognize revenue on project contracts using the percentage of completion method. Project contracts generally provide that customers accept completion
of progress to date and compensate us for services rendered measured in terms of units installed, hours expended or some other measure of progress. We
recognize revenue on both signed contracts and change orders. A discussion of our treatment of claims and unapproved change orders is described later in
this section. Percentage of completion for construction contracts is measured principally by the percentage of costs incurred and accrued to date for each
contract to the estimated total cost for each contract at completion. We generally consider contracts to be substantially complete upon departure from the
work site and acceptance by the customer. Contract costs include all direct material, labor and insurance costs and those indirect costs related to contract
performance, such as indirect labor, supplies, tools, repairs and depreciation costs. Changes in job performance, job conditions, estimated contract costs and
profitability and final contract settlements may result in revisions to costs and income and the effects of these revisions are recognized in the period in which
the revisions are determined. Provisions for total estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined. The
balances billed but not paid by customers pursuant to retainage provisions in project contracts will be due upon completion of the
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contracts and acceptance by the customer. Based on our experience with similar contracts in recent years, the retention balance at each balance sheet date will
be collected within the subsequent fiscal year.
Certain divisions in the Residential segment use the completed contract method of accounting because the duration of their contracts is short in nature. We
recognize revenue on completed contracts when the project is complete and billable to the customer. Provisions for estimated losses on these contracts are
recorded in the period such losses are determined.
Service work consists of time and materials projects that are billed at either contractual or current standard rates. Revenues from service work are recognized
when services are performed.
The current asset “Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts” represents revenues recognized in excess of amounts billed
which management believes will be billed and collected within the next twelve months. The current liability “Billings in excess of costs and estimated
earnings on uncompleted contracts” represents billings in excess of revenues recognized. Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted
contracts are amounts considered recoverable from customers based on different measures of performance, including achievement of specific milestones,
completion of specified units or at the completion of the contract. Also included in this asset, from time to time, are claims and unapproved change orders
which are amounts we are in the process of collecting from our customers or agencies for changes in contract specifications or design, contract change orders
in dispute or unapproved as to scope and price, or other related causes of unanticipated additional contract costs. Claims are limited to costs incurred and are
recorded at estimated realizable value when collection is probable and can be reasonably estimated. We do not recognize profits on project costs incurred in
connection with claims. Claims made by us involve negotiation and, in certain cases, litigation. Such litigation costs are expensed as incurred. As of
September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, there were no material revenues recorded associated with any claims.
Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
We record accounts receivable for all amounts billed and not collected. Generally, we do not charge interest on outstanding accounts receivable; however,
from time to time we may believe it necessary to charge interest on a case by case basis. Additionally, we provide an allowance for doubtful accounts for
specific accounts receivable where collection is considered doubtful as well as for general unknown collection issues based on historical trends. Accounts
receivable not determined to be collectible are written off as deemed necessary in the period such determination is made. As is common in our respective
industries, some of these receivables are in litigation or require us to exercise our contractual lien rights in order to collect. These receivables are primarily
associated with a few divisions within our Commercial & Industrial segment. Certain other receivables are slow-pay in nature and require us to exercise our
contractual or lien rights. We believe that our allowance for doubtful accounts is sufficient to cover uncollectible receivables as of September 30, 2012.
Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income includes all changes in equity during a period except those resulting from investments by and distributions to stockholders.
Advertising
Advertising and marketing expense for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was approximately $420, $512, and $1,547, respectively.
Advertising costs are charged to expense as incurred and are included in the “Selling, general and administrative expenses” line item on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.
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Income Taxes
We follow the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the
future income tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities, and are measured
using enacted tax rates and laws.
We regularly evaluate valuation allowances established for deferred tax assets for which future realization is uncertain. We perform this evaluation at least
annually at the end of each fiscal year. The estimation of required valuation allowances includes estimates of future taxable income. In assessing the
realizability of deferred tax assets at September 30, 2012, we considered whether it was more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
would not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which
those temporary differences become deductible. We consider the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax
planning strategies in making this assessment. If actual future taxable income is different from the estimates, our results could be affected. We have
determined to fully reserve against such an occurrence.
On May 12, 2006, we had a change in ownership as defined in Internal Revenue Code Section 382. Internal Revenue Code Section 382 limits the utilization
of net operating losses that existed as of the change in ownership in tax periods subsequent to the change in ownership. As such, our utilization after the
change date of net operating losses in existence as of the change in ownership is subject to Internal Revenue Code Section 382 limitations for federal income
taxes and some state income taxes. We have provided valuation allowances on all net operating losses where it is determined it is more likely than not that
they will expire without being utilized.
Risk-Management
We retain the risk for workers’ compensation, employer’s liability, automobile liability, general liability and employee group health claims, resulting from
uninsured deductibles per accident or occurrence which are subject to annual aggregate limits. Our general liability program provides coverage for bodily
injury and property damage. Losses up to the deductible amounts are accrued based upon our known claims incurred and an estimate of claims incurred but
not reported. For the year ended September 30, 2012, we compiled our historical data pertaining to the insurance experiences and actuarially developed the
ultimate loss associated with our insurance programs. We believe that the actuarial valuation provides the best estimate of the ultimate losses to be expected
under these programs.
The undiscounted ultimate losses of all insurance reserves at September 30, 2012 and 2011, was $6,864 and $8,353, respectively. Based on historical
payment patterns, we expect payments of undiscounted ultimate losses to be made as follows:
Year Ended September 30:

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
Thereafter
Total

$2,948
1,328
821
494
305
968
$6,864

We elect to discount the ultimate losses above to present value using an approximate risk-free rate over the average life of our insurance claims. For the years
ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the discount rate used
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was 0.6 percent and 1 percent, respectively. The decrease in discount rate is driven by the prolonged decline in interest rates and a decrease in the average life
of our associated claims. The present value of all insurance reserves for the employee group health claims, workers’ compensation, auto and general liability
recorded at September 30, 2012 and 2011 was $5,228 and $7,040, respectively. Our employee group health claims are anticipated to be resolved within the
year ended September 30, 2013.
We had letters of credit of $6,218 outstanding at September 30, 2012 to collateralize our high deductible insurance obligations.
Realization of Long-Lived Assets
We evaluate the recoverability of property and equipment and other long-lived assets as facts and circumstances indicate that any of those assets might be
impaired. If an evaluation is required for our assets we plan to hold and use, the estimated future undiscounted cash flows associated with the asset are
compared to the asset’s carrying amount to determine if an impairment of such property has occurred. The effect of any impairment would be to expense the
difference between the fair value of such property and its carrying value. Estimated fair values are determined based on expected future cash flows discounted
at a rate we believe incorporates the time value of money, the expectations about future cash flows and an appropriate risk premium.
At September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we performed evaluations of our long-lived assets. These evaluations resulted in impairment charges as described
above under “Asset Impairment”.
Risk Concentration
Financial instruments, which potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of cash deposits and accounts receivable. We grant
credit, usually without collateral, to our customers, who are generally large public companies, contractors and homebuilders throughout the United States.
Consequently, we are subject to potential credit risk related to changes in business and economic factors throughout the United States, specifically, within
the construction, homebuilding and mission critical facility markets. However, we are entitled to payment for work performed and have certain lien rights in
that work. Further, management believes that its contract acceptance, billing and collection policies are adequate to manage potential credit risk. We
routinely maintain cash balances in financial institutions in excess of federally insured limits. We periodically assess the financial condition of these
institutions where these funds are held and believe the credit risk is minimal. As a result of recent credit market turmoil we maintain the majority of our cash
and cash equivalents in money market mutual funds.
No single customer accounted for more than 10% of our revenues for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Our financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, notes receivable, investments, accounts payable, a note payable issued to
finance insurance policies, and a $10,000 senior subordinated loan agreement (the “Tontine Term Loan”). We believe that the carrying value of financial
instruments, with the exception of the Tontine Term Loan and our cost method investment in EnerTech, in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets,
approximates their fair value due to their short-term nature. We estimate that the fair value of the Tontine Term Loan (Level 3) is $10,259 calculated using a
market approach based upon Level 3 inputs, including an estimated interest rate reflecting current market conditions at September 30, 2012. For additional
information, please refer to Note 8, “Debt – The Tontine Term Loan” of this report.
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We estimate that the fair value of our investment in EnerTech (Level 3) is $988 at September 30, 2012 calculated using quoted market prices for underlying
publicly traded securities, and estimated enterprise values determined using cash flow projections and market multiples of the underlying non-public
companies. For additional information, please refer to Note 7, “Detail of Certain Balance Sheet Accounts — Securities and Equity Investments — Investment
in EnerTech.”
Stock-Based Compensation
We measure and record compensation expense for all share-based payment awards based on the fair value of the awards granted, net of estimated forfeitures,
at the date of grant. We calculate the fair value of stock options using a binomial option pricing model. The fair value of restricted stock awards is determined
based on the number of shares granted and the closing price of IES’s common stock on the date of grant. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and
revised as deemed necessary. The resulting compensation expense from discretionary awards is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service
period, which is generally the vesting period, while compensation expense from performance based awards is recognized using the graded vesting method
over the requisite service period. The cash flows resulting from the tax deductions in excess of the compensation expense recognized for options and
restricted stock (excess tax benefit) are classified as financing cash flows.
Deferred Compensation Plans
The Company maintains a rabbi trust to fund certain deferred compensation plans. The securities held by the trust are classified as trading securities. The
investments are recorded at fair value and are classified as other non-current assets in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30,
2012 and 2011. The changes in fair values are recorded as unrealized gains (losses) as a component of other income (expense) in the Consolidated Statements
of Operations.
The corresponding deferred compensation liability is included in other non-current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and changes in this
obligation are recognized as adjustments to compensation expense in the period in which they are determined.
3. CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
On April 30, 2010, we prepaid $15,000 of the original $25,000 principal outstanding on the Tontine Term Loan and $10,000 remains outstanding on the
Tontine Term Loan. The Company is currently evaluating its options with regard to repayment of the Tontine Term Loan, including through a refinancing of
the loan prior to or at its maturity.
While Tontine is subject to restrictions under federal securities laws on sales of its shares as an affiliate, Tontine is party to a Registration Rights Agreement
with the Company under which it has the ability, subject to certain restrictions, to demand registration of its shares in order to permit unrestricted sales of
those shares. Tontine has indicated to the Company that it may seek to register some or all of its shares in the near future.
Should Tontine sell or exchange all or a portion of its position in IES, a change in ownership could occur. A change in ownership, as defined by Internal
Revenue Code Section 382, could reduce the availability of net operating losses (NOLs) for federal and state income tax purposes. While the Company is
currently evaluating steps it may take to protect its federal NOLs, including evaluating implementing a tax benefit protection plan that
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would be designed to deter an acquisition of the Company’s stock in excess of a threshold amount that could trigger a change of control within the meaning
of Internal Revenue Code Section 382, there can be no assurance that such a plan will be implemented or that, if enacted, it would be effective in deterring a
change of control or protecting the NOLs. Furthermore, a change in control would trigger the change of control provisions in a number of our material
agreements, including our 2012 Credit Facility, bonding agreements with our sureties and certain employment contracts with certain officers and employees
of the Company.
4. STRATEGIC ACTIONS
We seek to create shareholder value through above average returns on capital and generation of free cash flow. As a result, we have increased our focus on a
number of initiatives to return the Company to profitability.
The 2009 Restructuring Plan
In the first quarter of our 2009 fiscal year, we began a restructuring program (the “2009 Restructuring Plan”) that was designed to consolidate operations
within our three segments. The 2009 Restructuring Plan was the next level of our business optimization strategy. Our plan was to streamline local project and
support operations, which were managed through regional operating centers, and to capitalize on the investments we had made over the past year to further
leverage our resources.
In addition, as a result of the continuing significant effects of the recession, during the third quarter of fiscal year 2009, we implemented a more expansive
cost reduction program, by further reducing administrative personnel, primarily in the corporate office, and consolidating our Commercial & Industrial
administrative functions into one service center. We recorded a total of $8,170 in restructuring charges for the 2009 Restructuring Plan. As part of the
restructuring charges, we recognized $154, $2,662, $3,917 and $1,437 in severance and facility closing charges within our Communications, Residential,
Commercial & Industrial and Corporate segments, respectively. This 2009 Restructuring Plan was completed in fiscal 2010.
The 2011 Restructuring Plan
In the second quarter of our 2011 fiscal year, we began a new restructuring program (the “2011 Restructuring Plan”) that was designed to consolidate
operations within our Commercial & Industrial business. Pursuant to the 2011 Restructuring Plan, we began the closure of certain underperforming facilities
within our Commercial & Industrial operations. The 2011 Restructuring Plan was a key element of our commitment to return the Company to profitability.
The facilities directly affected by the 2011 Restructuring Plan are in several locations throughout the country, including Arizona, Florida, Iowa,
Massachusetts, Louisiana, Nevada and Texas. These facilities were selected due to current business prospects and the extended time frame needed to return
the facilities to a profitable position. Closure costs associated with the 2011 Restructuring Plan included equipment and facility lease termination expenses,
incremental management consulting expenses and severance costs for employees. The Company is in the final stages of winding down these facilities. As part
of our restructuring charges within our Commercial & Industrial segment we have recognized $(62) and $1,455 in severance costs, $1,099 and $1,530 in
consulting services, and $133 and $799 in costs related to lease terminations for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Charges related
to the 2011 Restructuring Plan in 2013 are expected to be immaterial.
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The 2011 Restructuring Plan pertains only to our Commercial & Industrial segment. The following table summarizes the activities related to our restructuring
activities by component:

Restructuring liability at September 30, 2011
Restructuring charges (reversals) incurred
Cash payments made
Restructuring liability at September 30, 2012

Severance
Charges

Consulting
Charges

Lease Termination
& Other Charges

$ 1,081
(62)
(818)
$ 201

$

$

336
1,099
(1,425)
$
10

Total

790
133
(594)
329

$

$ 2,207
1,170
(2,837)
$ 540

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consists of the following:
Estimated
Useful
Lives
in Years

Land
Buildings
Transportation equipment
Machinery and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Information systems
Furniture and fixtures

N/A
5-20
3-5
3-10
5-10
2-8
5-7

Less — Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment, net

Years Ended September 30,
2012

$ 1,795
1,491
1,695
4,732
2,015
15,289
887
$ 27,904
(21,424)
$ 6,480

2011

$

1,795
3,202
1,720
4,463
1,772
14,549
1,003
$ 28,504
(20,488)
$ 8,016

Depreciation and amortization expense from continuing operations was $2,075, $6,216 and $4,832, respectively, for the years ended September 30, 2012,
2011 and 2010.
6. PER SHARE INFORMATION
Basic earnings per share is calculated as income (loss) available to common stockholders, divided by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. If the effect is dilutive, participating securities are included in the computation of basic earnings per share. Our participating
securities do not have a contractual obligation to share in the losses in any given period. As a result, these participating securities will not be allocated any
losses in the periods of net losses, but will be allocated income in the periods of net income using the two-class method.
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The following table reconciles the components of the basic and diluted loss per share for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010:
Years Ended September 30,
2012

Numerator:
Net loss from continuing operations attributable to common
shareholders
Net loss from discontinued operations attributable to common
shareholders
Net loss attributable to common shareholders
Net loss

$

(2,655)

$

(19,561)

$
$
$

(9,147)
(11,802)
(11,802)

$
$
$

(18,262)
(37,823)
(37,823)

Denominator:
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic
Effect of dilutive stock options and non-vested restricted stock
Basic loss per share
Diluted loss per share

2011

14,625,776
—
$
$

(0.81)
(0.81)

14,493,747
—
$
$

(2.61)
(2.61)

For the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, 20,000, 20,000 and 158,500 stock options, respectively, were excluded from the computation of
fully diluted earnings per share because the exercise prices of the options were greater than the average price of our common stock. For the years ended
September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, 257,826, 376,200 and 348,086 shares, respectively, of restricted stock were excluded from the computation of fully
diluted earnings per share because we reported a loss from continuing operations.
7. DETAIL OF CERTAIN BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS
Activity in our allowance for doubtful accounts on accounts and long-term receivables consists of the following:
Years Ended September 30,

Balance at beginning of period
Additions to costs and expenses
Deductions for uncollectible receivables written off, net of recoveries
Balance at end of period
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2012

2011

$ 2,704
771
(1,687)
$ 1,788

$ 7,429
1,071
(5,796)
$ 2,704
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Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following:
Years Ended September 30,
2012
2011

Accounts payable, trade
Accrued compensation and benefits
Accrued insurance liabilities
Other accrued expenses

$ 39,879
13,312
5,229
10,253
$ 68,673

$ 49,556
11,662
7,040
10,722
$ 78,980

Contracts in progress are as follows:
Years Ended September 30,

Costs incurred on contracts in progress
Estimated earnings
Less — Billings to date
Net contracts in progress
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts
Less — Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted
contracts
Net contracts in progress

2012

2011

$ 402,738
33,931
436,669
(453,744)
$ (17,075)

$ 335,204
21,942
357,146
(366,768)
$ (9,622)

8,180
(25,255)
$ (17,075)

9,963

$

(19,585)
(9,622)

Other non-current assets are comprised of the following:
Years Ended September 30,

Deposits
Deferred tax assets
Executive Savings Plan assets
Securities and equity investments
Other
Total

2012

2011

$ 2,137
1,065
533
919
1,489
$ 6,143

$ 3,986
1,040
477
1,003
581
$ 7,087

Securities and Equity Investments
Investment in EPV Solar
We assessed the fair market value of our investment in EPV after its restructuring in 2009 and determined that it was below its carrying value. Accordingly,
we recorded a $2,850 other-than-temporary impairment loss for the year ended September 30, 2009. The total impairment loss is reflected in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations as a component of Other Expense and reduced the carrying value of our investment from $3,000 to $150 at September 30, 2009.
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On February 24, 2010, EPV filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. On August 20, 2010, the United States Bankruptcy Court District of New Jersey
authorized and approved the sale of substantially all of EPV’s assets free and clear of liens, claims, encumbrances and interests to a third-party solar company.
As this sale cancelled our claims to our convertible note receivable, we recorded an impairment loss of $150 during the year ended September 30, 2010,
which reduced its carrying value to $0.
Investment in EnerTech
In April 2000, we committed to invest up to $5,000 in EnerTech. As of September 30, 2009, we fulfilled our $5,000 investment under this commitment. As
our investment is 2.31% of the overall ownership in EnerTech at September 30, 2012 and 2011, we account for this investment using the cost method of
accounting. EnerTech’s investment portfolio from time to time results in unrealized losses reflecting a possible, other-than-temporary, impairment of our
investment. The carrying value of our investment in EnerTech at September 30, 2012 and 2011 was $919 and $1,003, respectively. Our results of operations
for the year ended September 30, 2011, includes a write down of $967 attributable to our investment in EnerTech.
The following table presents the reconciliation of the carrying value and unrealized gains (losses) to the fair value of the investment in EnerTech as of
September 30, 2012 and 2011:
Years Ended September 30,
2012

Carrying value
Unrealized gains
Fair value

$
$

919
69
988

2011

$
$

1,003
—
1,003

At each reporting date, the Company performs evaluations of impairment for securities to determine if any unrealized losses are other-than-temporary. For
equity securities, this evaluation considers a number of factors including, but not limited to, the length of time and extent to which the fair value has been
less than cost, the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer and management’s ability and intent to hold the securities until fair value
recovers. The assessment of the ability and intent to hold these securities to recovery focuses on liquidity needs, asset and liability management objectives
and securities portfolio objectives. Based on the results of this evaluation, we believe the unrealized gain at September 30, 2012 indicated our investment
was not impaired. As of September 30, 2012 and 2011, the carrying value of these investments was $919 and $1,003, respectively. See Note 15, “Fair Value
Measurements” for related disclosures relative to fair value measurements.
In June 2012, we received a distribution from Enertech of $84, which was applied as a reduction in the carrying value of the investment.
On December 31, 2011, EnerTech’s general partner, with the consent of the fund’s investors, extended the fund through December 31, 2012. The fund will
terminate on this date unless extended by the fund’s valuation committee. The fund may be extended for another one-year period through December 31, 2013
with the consent of the fund’s valuation committee.
Arbinet Corporation
On May 15, 2006, we received a distribution from the investment in EnerTech of 32,967 shares in Arbinet Corporation. We sold these shares in fiscal 2011;
accordingly, the amount of unrealized holding losses included in other comprehensive income at September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 is $0 and $0 and $88
respectively.
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8. DEBT
Debt consists of the following:

Tontine Term Loan, due May 15, 2013, bearing interest at 11.00%
Insurance Financing Agreements
Capital leases and other
Total debt
Less — Short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt
Total long-term debt

September 30,
2012

September 30,
2011

$

$

10,000
196
284
10,480
(10,456)
$
24

$

10,000
—
498
10,498
(209)
10,289

Future payments on debt at September 30, 2012 are as follows:

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
Thereafter
Less: Imputed Interest
Total

Capital Leases
and Other

Insurance
Financing

$

$ 196
—
—
—
—
—
—
$ 196

$

—
317
27
—
—
—
(60)
284

Term
Debt

$

—
10,000
—
—
—
—
—
$10,000

Total

$

196
10,317
27
—
—
—
(60)
$10,480

For the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we incurred interest expense of $2,324, $2,278 and $3,513, respectively.
The 2012 Revolving Credit Facility
On August 9, 2012, we entered into a Credit and Security Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”), for a $30,000 revolving credit facility (the “2012 Credit
Facility”) with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association. The 2012 Credit Facility will mature on August 9, 2015, unless earlier terminated. The Credit
Agreement is filed as an Exhibit to this Form 10-K and any description thereof is qualified in its entirety by the terms of the Credit Agreement.
The 2012 Credit Facility contains customary affirmative, negative and financial covenants. The 2012 Credit Facility requires that we maintain a fixed charge
coverage ratio of not less than 1.0:1.0 at any time that our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents on hand plus Excess Availability (as
defined in the Credit Agreement) is less than $20,000 or Excess Availability is less than $7,500.
Borrowings under the 2012 Credit Facility may not exceed a “borrowing base” that is determined monthly by our lenders based on available collateral,
primarily certain accounts receivables and inventories. Under the terms of
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the 2012 Credit Facility, amounts outstanding bear interest at a per annum rate equal to a Daily Three Month LIBOR (as defined in the Credit Agreement),
plus an interest rate margin, which is determined quarterly, based on the following thresholds:
Level

Thresholds

Interest Rate Margin

I

Liquidity £ $20,000 at any time during the period; or
Excess Availability £ $7,500 at any time during the period; or
Fixed charge coverage ratio < 1.0:1.0

4.00 percentage points

II

Liquidity > $20,000 at all times during the period; and
Liquidity £ $30,000 at any time during the period; and
Excess Availability $7,500; and
Fixed charge coverage ratio 1.0:1.0

3.50 percentage points

III

Liquidity > $30,000 at all times during the period

3.00 percentage points

In addition, we are charged monthly in arrears for (1) an unused commitment fee of 0.50% per annum, (2) a collateral monitoring fee ranging from $1 to $2,
based on the then-applicable interest rate margin, (3) a letter of credit fee based on the then-applicable interest rate margin and (4) certain other fees and
charges as specified in the Credit Agreement.
The 2012 Credit Facility is guaranteed by our subsidiaries and secured by first priority liens on substantially all of our subsidiaries’ existing and future
acquired assets, exclusive of collateral provided to our surety providers. The 2012 Credit Facility also restricts us from paying cash dividends and places
limitations on our ability to repurchase our common stock and on our ability to repay the Tontine Term Loan.
At September 30, 2012, we had $21,607 available to us under the 2012 Credit Facility, $700 in outstanding letters of credit with Wells Fargo and no
outstanding borrowings. The terms surrounding the 2012 Credit Facility agreement with Wells Fargo require that we cash collateralize 100% of our letter of
credit balance. As such, we have $700 classified as restricted cash within the Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2012.
At September 30, 2012, we were subject to the financial covenant under the 2012 Credit Facility requiring that we maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio of
not less than 1.0:1.0 at any time that our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents on hand plus Excess Availability is less than $20.0
million or Excess Availability is less than $7.5 million. As of September 30, 2012, our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents on hand
plus Excess Availability was in excess of $20.0 million and Excess Availability was in excess of $7.5 million; had we not met these thresholds at
September 30, 2012, we would not have met the required 1.0:1.0 fixed charge coverage ratio test.
While we expect to meet our financial covenants, in the event that we are not able to meet the covenants of our 2012 Credit Facility in the future and are
unsuccessful in obtaining a waiver from our lenders, the Company expects to have adequate cash on hand to fully collateralize our outstanding letters of
credit and to provide sufficient cash for ongoing operations.
The 2006 Revolving Credit Facility
On May 12, 2006, we entered into a Loan and Security Agreement (the “Loan and Security Agreement”), for a revolving credit facility (the “2006 Credit
Facility”) with Bank of America, N.A. and certain other lenders. On
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August 9, 2012, the 2006 Credit Facility was replaced by the 2012 Credit Facility. The 2006 Credit Facility and its amendments are filed as Exhibits to this
Form 10-K and any descriptions thereof are qualified in their entirety by the terms of the 2006 Credit Facility or its respective amendments. On May 7, 2008,
we renegotiated the terms of our 2006 Credit Facility and entered into an amended agreement with the same financial institutions. On April 30, 2010, we
renegotiated the terms of, and entered into an amendment to the Loan and Security Agreement pursuant to which the maturity date was extended to May 31,
2012. In connection with the amendment, we incurred an amendment fee of $200, which was amortized over 24 months.
On December 15, 2011, we renegotiated the terms of, and entered into an amendment to, the Loan and Security Agreement without incurring termination
charges. Under the terms of the amended 2006 Credit Facility, the size of the facility was reduced to $40,000 and the maturity date was extended to
November 12, 2012. Under the terms of the amended 2006 Credit Facility, we were required to cash collateralize all of our letters of credit issued by the
banks. The cash collateral was added to the borrowing base calculation at 100% throughout the term of the agreement. The 2006 Credit Facility required that
we maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio of not less than 1.0:1.0 at any time that our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability was
less than $25,000 and, thereafter, until such time as our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability had been at least $25,000 for a period
of 60 consecutive days. The amended Agreement also called for cost of borrowings of 4.0% over LIBOR per annum. Cost for letters of credit was the same as
borrowings and also included a 25 basis point “fronting fee.” All other terms and conditions remained unchanged. In connection with the amendment, we
incurred an amendment fee of $60 which, together with unamortized balance of the prior amendment was amortized using the straight line method through
August 30, 2012.
The 2006 Credit Facility was guaranteed by our subsidiaries and secured by first priority liens on substantially all of our subsidiaries’ existing and future
acquired assets, exclusive of collateral provided to our surety providers. The 2006 Credit Facility contained customary affirmative, negative and financial
covenants. The 2006 Credit Facility also restricted us from paying cash dividends and placed limitations on our ability to repurchase our common stock.
Borrowings under the 2006 Credit Facility could not exceed a “borrowing base” that was determined monthly by our lenders based on available collateral,
primarily certain accounts receivables and inventories. Under the terms of the 2006 Credit Facility in effect as of August 30, 2012, interest for loans and letter
of credit fees was based on our Total Liquidity, which is calculated for any given period as the sum of average daily availability for such period plus average
daily unrestricted cash on hand for such period as follows:
Total Liquidity

Annual Interest Rate for Loans

Greater than or equal to $60,000

LIBOR plus 3.00% or Base Rate plus 1.00%

Greater than $40,000 and less than $60,000

LIBOR plus 3.25% or Base Rate plus 1.25%

Less than or equal to $40,000

LIBOR plus 3.50% or Base Rate plus 1.50%

Annual Interest Rate for
Letters of Credit

3.00% plus 0.25%
fronting fee
3.25% plus 0.25%
fronting fee
3.50% plus 0.25%
fronting fee

At September 30, 2012, we had $6,148 in outstanding letters of credit with Bank of America. The terms surrounding the termination of the 2006 Credit
Facility require that we cash collateralize 105% of our letter of credit balance. As such, we have $6,455 classified as restricted cash within the Balance Sheet
as of September 30, 2012.
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For the year ended September 30, 2012, we paid no interest for loans under the 2006 Credit Facility and had a weighted average interest rate, including
fronting fees, of 3.49% for letters of credit. In addition, we were charged monthly in arrears (1) an unused commitment fee of 0.50%, and (2) certain other fees
and charges as specified in the Loan and Security Agreement, as amended.
As of August 9, 2012, we were subject to the financial covenant under the 2006 Credit Facility requiring that we maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio of not
less than 1.0:1.0 at any time that our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability is less than $25,000 and, thereafter, until such time as
our aggregate amount of unrestricted cash on hand plus availability has been at least $25,000 for a period of 60 consecutive days. As of August 9, 2012, our
Total Liquidity was in excess of $25,000.
The Tontine Term Loan
On December 12, 2007, we entered into the Tontine Term Loan, a $25,000 senior subordinated loan agreement, with Tontine. The Tontine Term Loan bears
interest at 11.0% per annum and is due on May 15, 2013. Interest is payable quarterly in cash or in-kind at our option. Any interest paid in-kind will bear
interest at 11.0% in addition to the loan principal. On April 30, 2010, we prepaid $15,000 of principal on the Tontine Term Loan. On May 1, 2010, Tontine
assigned the Tontine Term Loan to Tontine Capital Overseas Master Fund II, L.P, also a related party. We may repay the Tontine Term Loan at any time prior
to the maturity date at par, plus accrued interest without penalty within the restrictions of the 2012 Credit Facility. The Company is currently evaluating its
options with regard to repayment of the Tontine Term Loan, including through a refinancing of the loan prior to or at its maturity.
The Tontine Term Loan is subordinated to the 2012 Credit Facility. The Tontine Term Loan is an unsecured obligation of the Company and its subsidiary
borrowers and contains no financial covenants or restrictions on dividends or distributions to stockholders. The Tontine Term Loan was amended on
August 9, 2012 in connection with the Company entering into the 2012 Credit Facility. The amendment did not materially impact the Company’s
obligations under the Tontine Term Loan.
Capital Lease
The Company leases certain equipment under agreements, which are classified as capital leases and included in property, plant and equipment. Amortization
of this equipment for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $182, $172 and $157, respectively, which is included in depreciation expense
in the accompanying statements of operations.
9. LEASES
We enter into non-cancelable operating leases for many of our facility, vehicle and equipment needs. These leases allow us to retain cash, and we pay a
monthly lease rental fee. At the end of the lease, we have no further obligation to the lessor. We may cancel or terminate a lease before the end of its term.
Typically, we would be liable to the lessor for various lease cancellation or termination costs and the difference between the fair market value of the leased
asset and the implied book value of the leased asset as calculated in accordance with the lease agreement.
For a discussion of leases with certain related parties which are included below, see Note 13, “Related-Party Transactions.”
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Rent expense was $3,461, $4,056 and $4,599 for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and included within the selling, general
and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
Future minimum lease payments under these non-cancelable operating leases with terms in excess of one year are as follows:
Year Ended September 30:
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
Thereafter
Total

$3,464
2,477
1,493
940
542
751
$9,667

10. INCOME TAXES
Federal and state income tax provisions for continuing operations are as follows:
2012

Federal:
Current
Deferred
State:
Current
Deferred

Years Ended September 30,
2011
2010

$ —
—

$—
—

$ —
—

253
(215)
$ 38

250
(78)
$172

114
(150)
$ (36)

Actual income tax expense differs from income tax expense computed by applying the U.S. federal statutory corporate rate of 35 percent to income before
provision for income taxes as follows:

Provision (benefit) at the statutory rate
Increase resulting from:
Non-deductible expenses
State income taxes, net of federal deduction
Change in valuation allowance
Other
Decrease resulting from:
State income taxes, net of federal deduction
Contingent tax liabilities
Other
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2012

Years Ended September 30,
2011

2010

$(918)

$(6,786)

$(7,926)

490
106
581
—

548
—
7,066
16

511
—
7,907
31

—
(206)
(15)
$ 38

(600)
(72)
—
$ 172

(326)
(233)
—
$ (36)
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Deferred income tax provisions result from temporary differences in the recognition of income and expenses for financial reporting purposes and for income
tax purposes. The income tax effects of these temporary differences, representing deferred income tax assets and liabilities, result principally from the
following:
Years Ended September 30,
2012
2011

Deferred income tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Accrued expenses
Net operating loss carryforward
Various reserves
Equity losses in affiliate
Share-based compensation
Capital loss carryforward
Property
Other
Subtotal
Less valuation allowance
Total deferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Property and equipment
Deferred contract revenue and other
Total deferred income tax liabilities
Net deferred income tax assets

$

675
6,254
106,004
1,085
292
2,757
3,909
397
1,651
123,024
(121,962)
$ 1,062

$

$

$

$

—
(196)
(196)
866

998
5,646
103,650
1,728
286
2,676
3,889
—
1,836
120,709
(119,738)
$
971

$

—
(106)
(106)
865

In 2002, we adopted a tax accounting method change that allowed us to deduct goodwill for income tax purposes that had previously been classified as nondeductible. The accounting method change resulted in additional amortizable tax basis in goodwill. We believe the realization of the additional tax basis in
goodwill is less than probable and have not recorded a deferred tax asset. Although a deferred tax asset has not been recorded through September 30, 2012,
we have derived a cumulative cash tax reduction of $11,443 from the change in tax accounting method and the subsequent amortization of the additional tax
goodwill. In addition, the amortization of the additional tax goodwill has resulted in additional federal net operating loss carry forwards of $138,892 and
state net operating loss carry forwards of $13,622. We believe the realization of the additional net operating loss carry forwards is less than probable and have
not recorded a deferred tax asset. We have $2,936 of tax basis in the additional tax goodwill that remains to be amortized. As of September 30, 2012,
approximately two years remain to be amortized.
As of September 30, 2012, we had available approximately $451,853 of federal net tax operating loss carry forward for federal income tax purposes,
including $138,892 resulting from the additional amortization of tax goodwill. This carry forward, which may provide future tax benefits, will begin to
expire in 2022. On May 12, 2006, we had a change in ownership as defined in Internal Revenue Code Section 382. As such, our utilization after the change
date of our net operating loss in existence as of the change of control date was subject to Section 382 limitations for federal income taxes and some state
income taxes. The annual limitation under Section 382 on the utilization of federal net operating losses was approximately $20,000 for the first five tax years
subsequent to the change in ownership and $16,000 thereafter. Approximately $280,934 of federal net operating losses will not be subject to this limitation.
Also, after applying the Section 382 limitation to available state net operating loss carry forwards, we had available approximately $139,654 state net tax
operating loss
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carry forwards, including $13,622 resulting from the additional amortization of tax goodwill which begin to expire as of September 30, 2012. We have
provided valuation allowances on all net operating losses where it is determined it is more likely than not that they will expire without being utilized.
In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets at September 30, 2012, we considered whether it was more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. Our realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in
which these temporary differences become deductible. However, GAAP guidelines place considerably more weight on historical results and less weight on
future projections when there is negative evidence such as cumulative pretax losses in recent years. We incurred a cumulative pretax loss for September 30,
2012, 2011 and 2010. In the absence of specific favorable evidence of sufficient weight to offset the negative evidence of the cumulative pretax loss, we have
provided valuation allowances of $117,343 for all federal deferred tax assets and $4,503 for certain state deferred tax assets. We believe that $457 of federal
deferred tax assets will be realized by offsetting reversing deferred tax liabilities. We believe that $866 of state deferred tax assets will be realized and
valuation allowances were not provided for these assets. We will evaluate the appropriateness of our remaining deferred tax assets and valuation allowances
on at least annually at the end of each fiscal year.
As a result of the reorganization and related adjustment to the book basis in goodwill, we have tax basis in excess of book basis in amortizable goodwill of
approximately $23,902. The tax basis in amortizable goodwill in excess of book basis is not reflected as a deferred tax asset. To the extent the amortization of
the excess tax basis results in a cash tax benefit, the benefit will first go to reduce goodwill, then other long-term intangible assets, and then additional paidin capital. As of September 30, 2012, we have received $72 in cash tax benefits related to the amortization of excess tax basis.
GAAP requires financial statement reporting of the expected future tax consequences of uncertain tax return reporting positions on the presumption that all
relevant tax authorities possess full knowledge of those tax reporting positions, as well as all of the pertinent facts and circumstances, but it prohibits
discounting of any of the related tax effects for the time value of money. The evaluation of a tax position is a two-step process. The first step is the
recognition process to determine if it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authority,
based on the technical merits of the position. The second step is a measurement process whereby a tax position that meets the more likely than not
recognition threshold is calculated to determine the amount of benefit/expense to recognize in the financial statements. The tax position is measured at the
largest amount of benefit/expense that is more likely than not of being realized upon ultimate settlement.
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of unrecognized tax liabilities is as follows:
Balance at October 1, 2011
Additions for position related to current year
Additions for positions of prior years
Reduction resulting from the lapse of the applicable statutes of limitations
Reduction resulting from settlement of positions of prior years
Balance at September 30, 2012

$5,545
5
6
(213)
—
$5,343

As of September 30, 2012, $5,343 of unrecognized tax benefits would result in a decrease in the provision for income tax expense. We anticipate that
approximately $58 of unrecognized tax benefits, including accrued interest, may reverse in the next twelve months. The reversal is predominately due to the
expiration of the statutes of limitation for unrecognized tax benefits.
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We had approximately $15 and $178 accrued for the payment of interest and penalties at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. We recognize interest
and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as part of the provision for income taxes.
We are currently not under federal audit by the Internal Revenue Service. The tax years ended September 30, 2009 and forward are subject to audit as are tax
years prior to September 30, 2008, to the extent of unutilized net operating losses generated in those years.
The net deferred income tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following:
Years Ended September 30,
2012
2011

Current deferred income taxes:
Assets
Liabilities
Net deferred tax asset, current
Noncurrent deferred income taxes:
Assets
Liabilities
Net deferred tax asset, non-current
Net deferred income tax assets

$
$

283
(197)
86

$ 1,065
(285)
780
$ 866

$
$

216
(107)
109

$ 1,040
(284)
756
$
865

11. OPERATING SEGMENTS
We manage and measure performance of our business in three distinct operating segments: Communications, Residential and Commercial & Industrial. These
segments are reflective of how the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) reviews operating results for the purposes of allocating resources
and assessing performance. The Company’s CODM is its Chief Executive Officer. The Communications segment consists of low voltage installation, design,
planning and maintenance for mission critical infrastructure such as data centers. The Residential segment consists of electrical installation, replacement and
renovation services in single-family, condominium, townhouse and low-rise multifamily housing units. The Commercial & Industrial segment provides
electrical design, installation, renovation, engineering and maintenance and replacement services in facilities such as office buildings, high-rise apartments
and condominiums, theaters, restaurants, hotels, hospitals and critical-care facilities, school districts, light manufacturing and processing facilities, military
installations, airports, outside plants, network enterprises, switch network customers, manufacturing and distribution centers, water treatment facilities,
refineries, petrochemical and power plants, and alternative energy facilities.
The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. We evaluate performance based
on income from operations of the respective business units prior to the allocation of Corporate office expenses. Transactions between segments are eliminated
in consolidation. Our Corporate office provides general and administrative as well as support services to our three operating segments. Management allocates
costs between segments for selling, general and administrative expenses and depreciation expense.
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Segment information for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

Communications

Revenues
Cost of services
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative
Loss (gain) on sale of assets
Income (loss) from operations
Other data:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Capital expenditures
Total assets

$

$
$
$

121,492
103,288
18,204
13,431
(60)
4,833
260
569
29,603

Communications

Revenues
Cost of services
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative
Loss (gain) on sale of assets
Asset Impairments
Income (loss) from operations
Other data:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Capital expenditures
Total assets

$

Other data:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Capital expenditures
Total assets

Corporate

Total

$129,974
109,274
20,700
19,703
24
$
973

$ 204,649
185,501
19,148
17,166
(132)
$
2,114

$

—
—
—
8,309
—
$ (8,309)

$456,115
398,063
58,052
58,609
(168)
$
(389)

$

$

$ 1,196
301
$35,254

$

375
666
$ 33,927

$

244
341
65,929

Years Ended September 30, 2011
Commercial &
Residential
Industrial

Corporate

2,075
1,877
$164,713

Total

$114,732
96,042
18,690
18,441
116
—
$
133

$ 207,794
194,573
13,221
21,788
(33)
71
$ (8,605)

$

$

83,615
71,142
12,473
9,578
—
72
2,823

—
—
—
13,514
(6,638)
4,661
$(11,537)

$406,141
361,757
44,384
63,321
(6,555)
4,804
$ (17,186)

$
$
$

278
928
23,073

$
514
$
181
$ 23,584

$
$
$

$ 3,849
$ 1,148
$ 54,081

$ 6,216
$ 2,688
$180,244

Communications

Revenues
Cost of services
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative
Loss (gain) on sale of assets
Restructuring charge
Income (loss) from operations

Years Ended September 30, 2012
Commercial &
Residential
Industrial

$

1,575
431
79,506

Years Ended September 30, 2010
Commercial &
Residential
Industrial

Corporate

Total

$115,947
92,422
23,525
23,736
23
—
$
(234)

$ 197,313
177,757
19,556
29,047
(86)
698
$ (10,103)

$

$

69,171
56,760
12,411
7,298
—
16
5,097

—
—
—
14,170
(65)
49
$(14,154)

$382,431
326,939
55,492
74,251
(128)
763
$ (19,394)

$
$
$

370
31
28,092

$
949
$
178
$ 27,279

$
$
$

$ 1,534
$
352
$ 66,154

$ 4,832
$
924
$207,860
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12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
The 2006 Equity Incentive Plan became effective on May 12, 2006 (as amended, the “2006 Equity Incentive Plan”). The 2006 Equity Incentive Plan
provides for grants of stock options as well as grants of stock, including restricted stock. We have approximately 1.0 million shares of common stock
authorized for issuance under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan.
Treasury Stock
During the year ended September 30, 2012, we repurchased 54,296 common shares from our employees to satisfy minimum tax withholding requirements
upon the vesting of restricted stock issued under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, and 32,277 unvested shares were forfeited by former employees and
returned to treasury stock. We issued 107,500 shares out of treasury stock under our share-based compensation programs.
Restricted Stock
Restricted Stock Awards:

Fiscal
Year

Shares
Granted

2006
2006
2007
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

384,850
25,000
20,000
4,000
101,650
185,100
225,486
320,000
107,500

Weighted
Average Fair
Value at
Date of
Grant

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

24.78
17.36
25.08
26.48
19.17
8.71
3.64
3.39
2.07

Vested

Shares
Outstanding

Forfeitures

258,347
25,000
20,000
4,000
85,750
146,400
59,347
87,579
—

Expense
recognized
through
September 30,
2012

126,503
—
—
—
15,900
38,700
77,439
68,761
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
88,700
163,660
107,500

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

6,402
434
502
106
1,779
1,344
495
388
50

During the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we recognized $536, $787, and $1,272, respectively, in compensation expense related to these
restricted stock awards. At September 30, 2012, the unamortized compensation cost related to outstanding unvested restricted stock was $503. We expect to
recognize $348 and $155 of this unamortized compensation expense during the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2014, respectively. A summary of
restricted stock awards for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 is provided in the table below:
2012

Unvested at beginning of year
Granted
Vested
Forfeited
Unvested at end of year

Years Ended September 30,
2011

376,200
107,500
(192,973)
(32,901)
257,826

352,086
320,000
(165,628)
(130,258)
376,200

2010

230,716
225,486
(66,116)
(38,000)
352,086

The fair value of shares vesting during the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $661, $520 and $423, respectively. Fair value was calculated
as the number of shares vested times the market price of shares on
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the date of vesting. The weighted average grant date fair value of unvested restricted stock at September 30, 2012 was $2.59.
All the restricted shares granted under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan (vested or unvested) participate in dividends issued to common shareholders, if any.
Phantom Stock Units
Phantom stock units (“PSUs”) are primarily granted to the members of the Board of Directors as part of their overall compensation. These PSUs are paid via
unrestricted stock grants to each director upon their departure from the Board of Directors. We record compensation expense for the full value of the grant on
the date of grant. For the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we recognized $159, $100, and $125 in compensation expense related to these
grants.
From time to time, PSUs are granted to employees. These PSUs are paid via unrestricted stock grants to each employee upon the satisfaction of the grant
terms. We record compensation expense for the PSUs granted to employees over the grant vesting period. For the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and
2010, we recognized $129, $0, and $0 in compensation expense related to these grants.
Stock Options
We utilized a binomial option pricing model to measure the fair value of stock options granted. Our determination of fair value of share-based payment
awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing model is affected by our stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of highly complex and
subjective variables. These variables include, but are not limited to, our expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards, the risk-free rate of return,
and actual and projected employee stock option exercise behaviors. The expected life of stock options is not considered under the binomial option pricing
model that we utilize. The assumptions used in the fair value method calculation for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are disclosed in the
following table:
2012

Weighted average value per option granted during the period
Dividends (1)
Stock price volatility (2)
Risk-free rate of return
Option term
Expected life
Forfeiture rate (3)
(1)
(2)
(3)

$N/A
$N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Years Ended September 30,
2011

$
$

2.05
—
69.9%
1.9%
10.0 years
6.0 years
0.0%

2010

$N/A
$N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

We do not currently pay dividends on our common stock.
Based upon the Company’s historical volatility.
The forfeiture rate for these options was assumed on the date of grant to be zero based on the limited number of employees who have been awarded
stock options.

Stock-based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the portion of the share-based payment awards that is ultimately
expected to vest during the period. As stock-based compensation
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expense recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated
forfeitures. We estimate our forfeitures at the time of grant and revise, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.
The following table summarizes activity under our stock option plans.
Shares

Outstanding, September 30, 2009
Options granted
Exercised
Forfeited and Cancelled
Outstanding, September 30, 2010
Options granted
Exercised
Forfeited and Cancelled
Outstanding, September 30, 2011

158,500
—
—
—
158,500
20,000
—
(158,500)
20,000

Options granted
Exercised
Forfeited and Cancelled
Outstanding, September 30, 2012

—
—
—
20,000

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

$

$

18.66
—
—
—
18.66
3.24
—
18.66
3.24

$

—
—
—
3.24

$

The following table summarizes options outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2012:

Range of Exercise Prices

$3.24

Outstanding as of
September 30,
2012

Remaining
Contractual Life in
Years

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

20,000
20,000

8.80
8.80

$ 3.24
$ 3.24

Exercisable as of
September 30,
2012

—
—

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

$ 3.24
$ 3.24

All of our outstanding options vest over a three-year period at a rate of one-third per year upon the annual anniversary date of the grant and expire ten years
from the grant date if they are not exercised. Upon exercise of stock options, it is our policy to first issue shares from treasury stock, then to issue new shares.
Unexercised stock options expire between July 2016 and November 2018.
During the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we recognized $14, $19 and $99, respectively, in compensation expense related to these awards.
At September 30, 2012, the unamortized compensation cost related to outstanding unvested stock options was $25. We expect to recognize $14 and $11 of
this unamortized compensation expense during the year ended September 30, 2013 and 2014.
There was no intrinsic value of stock options outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The intrinsic value is calculated as
the difference between the fair value as of the end of the period and the exercise price of the stock options.
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13. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In connection with some of our original acquisitions, certain divisions have entered into related party lease arrangements with former owners for facilities.
Related party lease expense for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $198, $265 and $432, respectively. Future commitments with
respect to these leases are included in the schedule of minimum lease payments in Note 9, “Leases.”
As described more fully in Note 8, “Debt – The Tontine Term Loan,” we entered into a $25,000 term loan with Tontine, a related party, in December 2007. On
April 30, 2010, the Company issued a $15,000 payment towards the Tontine Term Loan, resulting in a reduction in interest expenses related to the Tontine
Term Loan. During the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 we incurred interest expense of $1,103, $1,100 and $2,058, respectively, related to
the Tontine Term Loan.
On March 29, 2012, we entered into a sublease agreement with Tontine Associates, LLC, an affiliate of Tontine, for corporate office space in Greenwich,
Connecticut. The lease extends from April 1, 2012 through March 31, 2014, with monthly payments due in the amount of $6. The lease has terms at market
rates and payments by the Company are at a rate consistent with that paid by Tontine Associates, LLC to its landlord.
14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
401(k) Plan
In November 1998, we established the Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan (the “401(k) Plan”). All full-time IES employees are
eligible to participate on the first day of the month subsequent to completing sixty days of service and attaining age twenty-one. Participants become vested
in our matching contributions following three years of service.
Management Incentive Plan
On December 8, 2009, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of IES approved and adopted the 2010 Incentive Compensation Plan
including the performance-based criteria by which potential payouts to participants will be determined. The total award under the Incentive Compensation
Plan is dependent on the level of achievement against performance goals. None of the performance-based criteria were met in 2010 for the Incentive
Compensation Plan and no liability was recorded as of September 30, 2010.
On December 16, 2010, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of IES approved and adopted the 2011 Incentive Compensation Plan
including the performance-based criteria by which potential payouts to participants will be determined. The total award under the Incentive Compensation
Plan is dependent on the level of achievement against performance goals. None of the performance-based criteria were met in 2011 for the Incentive
Compensation Plan and no liability was recorded as of September 30, 2011.
On September 28, 2011, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, of IES approved and adopted the Annual Incentive Plan for fiscal year 2012
including the performance-based criteria by which potential payouts to participants will be determined. The total award under the Annual Incentive Plan was
dependent on the level of achievement against performance goals. As of September 30, 2012, we had recorded a total liability for incentive compensation of
approximately $925, which was paid in fiscal 2013.
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Executive Savings Plan
Under the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan adopted on July 1, 2004 (the “Executive Savings Plan”), certain employees are permitted to defer a portion
(up to 75%) of their base salary and/or bonus for a Plan Year. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors may, in its sole discretion, credit one or
more participants with an employer deferral (contribution) in such amount as the Committee may choose (“Employer Contribution”). The Employer
Contribution, if any, may be a fixed dollar amount, a fixed percentage of the participant’s compensation, base salary, or bonus, or a “matching” amount with
respect to all or part of the participant’s elective deferrals for such plan year, and/or any combination of the foregoing as the Committee may choose.
Post Retirement Benefit Plans
Certain individuals at one of the Company’s locations are entitled to receive fixed annual payments that reach a maximum amount, as specified in the related
agreements, for a ten year period following retirement or, in some cases, the attainment of 62 years of age. We recognize the unfunded status of the plan as a
non-current liability in our Consolidated Balance Sheet. Benefits vest 50% after ten years of service, which increases by 10% per annum until benefits are
fully vested after 15 years of service. We had an unfunded benefit liability of $827 and $781 recorded as of September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
15. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Fair Value Measurement Accounting
Fair value is considered the price to sell an asset, or transfer a liability, between market participants on the measurement date. Fair value measurements
assume that the asset or liability is (1) exchanged in an orderly manner, (2) the exchange is in the principal market for that asset or liability, and (3) the market
participants are independent, knowledgeable, able and willing to transact an exchange. Fair value accounting and reporting establishes a framework for
measuring fair value by creating a hierarchy for observable independent market inputs and unobservable market assumptions and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. Considerable judgment is required to interpret the market data used to develop fair value estimates. As such, the estimates presented
herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that could be realized in a current exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation
methods could have a material effect on the estimated fair value.
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2012, are summarized in the following table by the type of
inputs applicable to the fair value measurements:

Money market accounts
Executive Savings Plan assets
Executive Savings Plan liabilities
Ener Tech
Total
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Total
Fair Value

Quoted Prices
(Level 1)

$ 7,204
533
(418)
988
$ 8,307

$

$

7,204
533
(418)
—
7,319

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

—
—
—
—
—

Significant
Unobservable
(Level 3)

—
—
—
988
988

Table of Contents

INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(All Amounts in Thousands Except Share Amounts)
Below is a description of the inputs used to value the assets summarized in the preceding table:
Level 1 — Inputs represent unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets exchanged in active markets.
Level 2 — Inputs include directly or indirectly observable inputs other than Level 1 inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets exchanged in active or
inactive markets; quoted prices for identical assets exchanged in inactive markets; and other inputs that are considered in fair value determinations of the
assets.
Level 3 — Inputs include unobservable inputs used in the measurement of assets. Management is required to use its own assumptions regarding unobservable
inputs because there is little, if any, market activity in the assets or related observable inputs that can be corroborated at the measurement date.
We estimated the fair value of our debt securities, solely consisting of our investment in EPV, within the Level 3 hierarchy based on current available
information surrounding the private company in which we invested. The fair value of the investments in debt securities was $0 at September 30, 2012 and $0
at September 30, 2011. In the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we recognized $0, $0 and $150, respectively, of impairment to these
securities.
16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal Matters
From time to time we are a party to various claims, lawsuits and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. We maintain various
insurance coverages to minimize financial risk associated with these proceedings. None of these proceedings, separately or in the aggregate, are expected to
have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. With respect to all such proceedings, we record reserves when it is
probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. We expense routine legal costs related to these proceedings as
they are incurred.
The following is a discussion of our significant legal matters:
Ward Transformer Site
One of our subsidiaries has been identified as one of more than 200 potentially responsible parties (PRPs) with respect to the clean-up of an electric
transformer resale and reconditioning facility, known as the Ward Transformer Site, located in Raleigh, North Carolina. The facility built, repaired,
reconditioned and sold electric transformers from approximately 1964 to 2005. We did not own or operate the facility but a subsidiary that we acquired in
July 1999 is believed to have sent transformers to the facility during the 1990’s. During the course of its operation, the facility was contaminated by
Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs), which also have been found to have migrated off the site.
Four PRPs have commenced clean-up of on-site contaminated soils under an Emergency Removal Action pursuant to a settlement agreement and
Administrative Order on Consent entered into between the four PRPs and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in September 2005. We are not a
party to that settlement agreement or Order on Consent. In April 2009, two of these PRPs, Carolina Power and Light Company and Consolidation Coal
Company, filed suit against us and most of the other PRPs in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of North Carolina (Western Division) to contribute
to the cost of the clean-up. In addition to the on-site clean-up, the EPA has selected approximately 50 PRPs to which it sent a Special Notice Letter in late
2008 to organize the clean-up of soils off site and address contamination of groundwater and other miscellaneous off-site issues. We were not a recipient of
that letter.
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Based on our investigation to date, there is evidence to support our defense that our subsidiary contributed no PCB contamination to the site. In addition, we
have tendered a demand for indemnification to the former owner of the acquired corporation that may have transacted business with the facility. As of
September 30, 2012, we have not recorded a reserve for this matter, as we believe the likelihood of our responsibility for damages is not probable and a
potential range of exposure is not estimable.
TekWorks, Inc.
On August 5, 2011, TekWorks, Inc. filed suit in the Superior Court of California, county of San Diego against the Company and eight of its employees. The
employees, all former TekWorks employees, were hired by the Company in May and June of 2011 to work in the Company’s San Diego communications
operations. TekWorks’ claims against the Company and each of the individual defendants include misappropriation of trade secrets, intentional interference
with contractual relations and unfair competition under the California Business & Professions Code. In addition to the claims against all defendants,
TekWorks claims against the eight individual employees also include breach of contract and the duty of loyalty, as well as claims against a single employee
for breach of fiduciary duty and conversion.
Following mediation, the parties settled this matter on August 23, 2012. The settlement terms include a $1,250 payment by the Company to TekWorks in
exchange for the Company’s receipt of certain business assets from TekWorks, mutual releases and non-competition agreements with respect to certain
customers of each party. Each party has also agreed to bear its own costs and fees incurred in connection with this matter.
In June 2012, the Company recorded a reserve in the amount of $1,230 related to this matter. While the Company remains convinced that its potential
exposure in this matter if the case were to have proceeded to trial was substantially less than the settlement amount, the Company believes that settlement of
this matter was in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders, given the anticipated expense of litigation and the loss of productivity and
uncertainty associated with taking the matter to trial.
Hamilton Wage and Hour
On August 29, 2012, Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. was served with a wage and hour suit seeking class action certification in the United States District
Court for the Eastern District of Texas, Beaumont Division. On December 4, 2012, the Company was served with a second lawsuit alleging the same claims,
but with different named plaintiffs. Both cases are among several filed by the plaintiffs’ attorney against contractors working in the Motiva plant in Port
Arthur, Texas, on various projects over the last several years. The claims are based on alleged failure to compensate for time spent bussing to and from the
plant, donning safety wear and other activities. It does not appear the Company will face significant exposure for any unpaid wages. In a separate earlier case
based on the same allegations, a federal judge has ruled that the time spent traveling on the busses is not compensable. Our investigation indicates that all
other activities alleged either were inapplicable to the Company’s employees or took place during times for which the Company’s employees were
compensated. We have filed responsive pleadings and following initial discovery, will seek dismissal of the case through summary judgment. As of
September 30, 2012, we have not recorded a reserve for this matter, as we believe the likelihood of our responsibility for damages is not probable and a
potential range of exposure is not estimable.
Risk-Management
We retain the risk for workers’ compensation, employer’s liability, automobile liability, general liability and employee group health claims, resulting from
uninsured deductibles per accident or occurrence which are subject
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to annual aggregate limits. Our general liability program provides coverage for bodily injury and property damage. Losses up to the deductible amounts are
accrued based upon our known claims incurred and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported. As a result, many of our claims are effectively selfinsured. Many claims against our insurance are in the form of litigation. At September 30, 2012, we had $5,229 accrued for insurance liabilities. We are also
subject to construction defect liabilities, primarily within our Residential segment. As of September 30, 2012, we had reserved $756 for these claims.
Some of the underwriters of our casualty insurance program require us to post letters of credit as collateral. This is common in the insurance industry. To date,
we have not had a situation where an underwriter has had reasonable cause to effect payment under a letter of credit. At September 30, 2012, $6,218 of our
outstanding letters of credit were utilized to collateralize our insurance program.
Surety
Many customers, particularly in connection with new construction, require us to post performance and payment bonds issued by a surety. Those bonds
provide a guarantee to the customer that we will perform under the terms of our contract and that we will pay our subcontractors and vendors. If we fail to
perform under the terms of our contract or to pay subcontractors and vendors, the customer may demand that the surety make payments or provide services
under the bond. We must reimburse the sureties for any expenses or outlays they incur on our behalf. To date, we have not been required to make any
reimbursements to our sureties for bond-related costs.
As is common in the surety industry, sureties issue bonds on a project-by-project basis and can decline to issue bonds at any time. We believe that our
relationships with our sureties will allow us to provide surety bonds as they are required. However, current market conditions, as well as changes in our
sureties’ assessment of our operating and financial risk, could cause our sureties to decline to issue bonds for our work. If our sureties decline to issue bonds
for our work, our alternatives would include posting other forms of collateral for project performance, such as letters of credit or cash, seeking bonding
capacity from other sureties, or engaging in more projects that do not require surety bonds. In addition, if we are awarded a project for which a surety bond is
required but we are unable to obtain a surety bond, the result can be a claim for damages by the customer for the costs of replacing us with another contractor.
As of September 30, 2012, the estimated cost to complete our bonded projects was approximately $67,177. We evaluate our bonding requirements on a
regular basis, including the terms offered by our sureties. On May 7, 2010 we entered into a new surety agreement. We believe the bonding capacity presently
provided by our current sureties is adequate for our current operations and will be adequate for our operations for the foreseeable future. As of September 30,
2012, we had cash totaling $1.0 million to collateralize our obligations to certain of our previous sureties (as is included in Other Non-Current Assets in our
Consolidated Balance Sheet). Posting letters of credit in favor of our sureties reduces the borrowing availability under our 2012 Credit Facility.
Other Commitments and Contingencies
Some of our customers and vendors require us to post letters of credit as a means of guaranteeing performance under our contracts and ensuring payment by
us to subcontractors and vendors. If our customer has reasonable cause to effect payment under a letter of credit, we would be required to reimburse our
creditor for the letter of credit. At September 30, 2012, $630 of our outstanding letters of credit were to collateralize our vendors.
On January 9, 2012, we entered into a settlement agreement with regard to $2,000 of collateral held by a surety who previously issued construction payment
and performance bonds for us. The agreement called for a total
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settlement of $2,200 to be paid in monthly installments through February 2013. In the event of default, we are entitled to file and execute upon an agreed
judgment in our favor in the amount of $2,450. As of September 30, 2012, we have received payments of $175, which is not in accordance with the payment
plan. On August 7, 2012, we reached an amended agreement with the surety and did not file the agreed judgment. The amended agreement provides for
additional collateral and calls for the total settlement amount of $2,025 ($2,200 less the $175 already received) to be paid in monthly installments beginning
September 30, 2012 through July 2014 with an interest rate of 12%. The terms of the agreed judgment remain the same. Collection of this debt is deemed
probable, but there is a risk of loss ranging from $0 to $1,725, the recorded value as of the filing of this annual report on Form 10-K. While the surety failed to
make timely payments on the first two payment dates under the amended settlement agreement, the surety ultimately made the payments prior to a payment
default, first through an amendment of terms adjusting the payment schedule to begin in October 2012 at a higher monthly rate and then, for the second
payment, by making the payment during the specified cure period under the settlement agreement. To date, we have made no adjustment to the outstanding
receivable balance, which was $1,825 as of September 30, 2012, and, in any event, intend to aggressively pursue full payment. In the event the surety
breaches the agreement and fails to make payment to us, we intend to file the agreed judgment in the amount of $2,450, less payment made to the date of
such filing, which potentially would result in additional income of $450.
Between October 2004 and September 2005, we sold all or substantially all of the assets of certain of our wholly-owned subsidiaries. As these sales were
assets sales, rather than stock sales, we may be required to fulfill obligations that were assigned or sold to others, if the purchaser is unwilling or unable to
perform the transferred liabilities. If this were to occur, we would seek reimbursement from the purchasers. These potential liabilities will continue to diminish
over time. To date, we have not been required to perform on any projects sold under this divestiture program.
From time to time, we may enter into firm purchase commitments for materials such as copper or aluminum wire which we expect to use in the ordinary course
of business. These commitments are typically for terms less than one year and require us to buy minimum quantities of materials at specific intervals at a fixed
price over the term. As of September 30, 2012, we had no such open purchase commitments.
17. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
In 2011, we initiated the closure of all or portions of our Commercial & Industrial and Communications facilities in Arizona, Florida, Iowa, Louisiana,
Maryland, Massachusetts, Nevada and Texas. These facilities were a key aspect of our commitment to return the Company to profitability and selected based
on their current business prospects and the extended time frame needed to return the facilities to a profitable position. From the time of identification through
September 30, 2012 we have sub-leased or terminated our lease contracts for leased facilities. We have satisfied substantially all of our contracts through
either the subcontracting or self-performance. We have substantially concluded the closure of these facilities as of September 30, 2012. Results from
operations of these facilities for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 are presented in our Consolidated Statements of Operations as
discontinued operations.
77

Table of Contents

INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(All Amounts in Thousands Except Share Amounts)
The components of the results of discontinued operations for these facilities are as follows:

Revenues
Cost of services
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative
Loss (gain) on sale of assets
Restructuring charge
Other (income) expense
Loss from discontinued operations
(Benefit) provision for income taxes
Net loss from discontinued operations

2012

Years Ended September 30,
2011

2010

$16,279
20,941
(4,662)
2,557
769
1,170
—
(9,158)
(11)
$ (9,147)

$ 69,222
78,220
(8,998)
5,536
(28)
3,785
(3)
(18,288)
(26)
$(18,262)

$80,999
79,049
1,950
10,627
(47)
—
(91)
(8,539)
5
$ (8,544)

Included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2012 and 2011 are the following major classes of assets and liabilities associated with
discontinued operations:
Years Ended September 30,
2012
2011

Assets of discontinued operations:
Current
Noncurrent
Liabilities of discontinued operations:
Current

$ 6,127
—

$ 21,030
1,826

$ 3,005

$ 14,268

18. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)
Quarterly financial information for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, are summarized as follows:
First
Quarter

Revenues
Gross profit
Net income (loss) from continuing operations
Net loss from discontinued operations
Net loss
Loss per share from continuing operations:
Basic
Diluted
Loss per share from discontinued operations:
Basic
Diluted
Earnings loss per share:
Basic
Diluted
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Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2012
Second
Third
Quarter
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

$108,998
$ 13,193
$
192
$ (3,913)
$ (3,721)

$107,608
$ 13,789
$ (1,186)
$ (2,245)
$ (3,431)

$116,128
$ 14,256
$ (1,213)
$ (1,963)
$ (3,176)

$123,381
$ 16,814
$
(448)
$ (1,026)
$ (1,474)

$
$

0.01
0.01

$
$

(0.08)
(0.08)

$
$

(0.08)
(0.08)

$
$

(0.03)
(0.03)

$
$

(0.27)
(0.27)

$
$

(0.15)
(0.15)

$
$

(0.13)
(0.13)

$
$

(0.07)
(0.07)

$
$

(0.26)
(0.26)

$
$

(0.23)
(0.23)

$
$

(0.22)
(0.22)

$
$

(0.10)
(0.10)
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The sum of the individual quarterly earnings per share amounts may not agree with year-to-date earnings per share as each period’s computation is based on
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.
First
Quarter

Revenues
Gross profit
Net income (loss) from continuing operations
Net loss from discontinued operations
Net loss
Loss per share from continuing operations:
Basic
Diluted
Loss per share from discontinued operations:
Basic
Diluted
Earnings loss per share:
Basic
Diluted

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2011
Second
Third
Quarter
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

$91,161
$10,603
$ (3,353)
$ (946)
$ (4,299)

$100,033
$ 6,868
$ (9,629)
$
(502)
$ (10,131)

$104,286
$ 12,983
$ (3,172)
$ (8,203)
$ (11,375)

$110,661
$ 13,929
$ (3,406)
$ (8,612)
$ (12,018)

$ (0.23)
$ (0.23)

$
$

(0.66)
(0.66)

$
$

(0.22)
(0.22)

$
$

(0.23)
(0.23)

$ (0.07)
$ (0.07)

$
$

(0.03)
(0.03)

$
$

(0.57)
(0.57)

$
$

(0.59)
(0.59)

$ (0.30)
$ (0.30)

$
$

(0.70)
(0.70)

$
$

(0.78)
(0.78)

$
$

(0.83)
(0.83)

The sum of the individual quarterly earnings per share amounts may not agree with year-to-date earnings per share as each period’s computation is based on
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
In accordance with Exchange Act Rule 13a-15 and 15d-15, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of September 30, 2012 to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s
rules and forms. Our disclosure controls and procedures include controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in
reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
In connection with the restatements discussed in the explanatory note and in Notes 17 and 18 of our financial statements in our Form 10-K/A for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2011, under the direction of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we reevaluated our disclosure controls and
procedures. We identified two material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting with respect to our inter-departmental communications
processes at our Corporate office and within our Commercial & Industrial segment. Specifically, the Company’s policies, procedures and personnel resources
responsible for both our vacation accrual and certain other expenses, including software amortization, were not effective. Solely as a result of these material
weaknesses, we concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2011.
During the first and second quarters of our 2012 fiscal year, we improved our inter-departmental communications at our Corporate office and Commercial &
Industrial segment. We additionally implemented staffing changes, which we believe remediated each material weakness. In connection with the filing of our
Form 10-K/A under the direction of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we have evaluated our disclosure controls and procedures as
currently in effect, including the remedial actions discussed above, and we have concluded that, as of the March 30, 2012 filing of our December 31, 2011
Form 10-Q, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate
internal control over financial reporting for the Company. The Company’s internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the
Company’s Management and Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements. Because of its inherent limitations,
internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.
Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting based on the Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, management concluded that Integrated
Electrical Services’ internal control over financial reporting was effective as of September 30, 2012.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
As mentioned above, there were two material weaknesses that we identified. The first relates to a control deficiency at our corporate office that resulted in the
inadequate reporting of certain software amortization expense. The corporate office failed to provide adequate managerial oversight, did not perform a timely
review of the useful lives of its assets and did not engage in adequate inter-department communications between the IT and finance departments. The
deficiency was identified by corporate management as of September 30, 2011, resulting in material revision of software amortization expense among the
quarterly periods of fiscal 2011. The second material weakness identified relates to a control deficiency at our Commercial & Industrial segment that resulted
in the under accrual of vacation expense. The vacation accrual for salaried employees within this segment was understated due to inadequate interdepartment communications between the human resources and finance departments. This deficiency impacted our vacation accrual balance for all annual and
interim periods from September 30, 2008 through 2011. The deficiency was identified by corporate management during the close process within our first
quarter of fiscal year 2012, resulting in the restatement of our September 30, 2011 Form 10-K.
Remediation of Material Weakness
Management believes it has remediated the material weakness related to the review of the useful lives of its assets. The remediation included enhanced interdepartment communication, additional internal financial review and a specific review of all material software currently capitalized and amortized during the
company’s financial close process.
Management believes it has remediated the material weakness related to the required vacation accrual. The remediation included updating the accrual
process at the Commercial & Industrial segment to include the previously absent employees as of the first quarter in fiscal year 2012 and enhanced interdepartmental communication as well as the hiring of an additional resource in the finance department within our Commercial & Industrial segment.
As of the March 30, 2012 filing of the December 31, 2011 form 10-Q we believe the steps identified above have remediated the identified material
weaknesses. Apart from the completion of this remediation process, there have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the year ended September 30, 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.
Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
The information required to be included Item 10 of Part III of this Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the sections entitled “Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management;” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance;” “Report of the Audit Committee” and “Election
of Directors” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement”) to be filed with the SEC no
later than December 28, 2012.
Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information required to be included in Item 11 of Part III of this Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the section entitled “Executive
Compensation” in the Proxy Statement.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
Certain information required to be included in Item 12 of Part III of this Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the section entitled “Security Ownership
of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the Proxy Statement.
SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS
Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table provides information as of September 30, 2012 with respect to shares of our common stock that may be issued upon the exercise of
options, warrants and rights granted to employees or members of the Board of Directors under the Company’s existing equity compensation plans. For
additional information about our equity compensation plans, see Note 12, “Stockholders’ Equity” in the notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements set
forth in Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K.

Plan Category

(a) Number of Securities
to be Issued Upon
Exercise of Outstanding
Options, Warrants and
Rights

Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders
(1)

(2)

(b) WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price of
Outstanding
Options,
Warrants and
Rights

—
20,000(1)

—
$

3.24

(c) Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance Under
Equity Compensation
Plans (Excluding
Securities Reflected in
Column (a))

—
1,021,225(2)

Represents shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding options granted under the Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan. This
plan was authorized pursuant to the Company’s plan of reorganization and provides for the granting or awarding of stock options, stock and restricted
stock to employees (including officers), consultants and directors of the Company. All stock options granted under this plan were granted at fair market
value on the date of grant. 486,926 shares of restricted stock are outstanding under this plan.
Represents shares remaining available for issuance under the Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
The information required to be included in Item 13 of Part III of this Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the section entitled “Certain Relationships
and Related Person Transactions” in the Proxy Statement and from Item 10 of this Form 10-K.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
The information required to be included in Item 14 of Part III of this Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the section entitled “Audit Fees” in the
Proxy Statement.
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Financial Statement Schedules and Exhibits
See Index to Financial Statements under Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this From 10-K.
(b) Exhibits
3.1

Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Company’s registration statement on Form S-8 filed on May 12, 2006)

3.2

Bylaws of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s registration statement on Form S-8,
filed on May 12, 2006)

4.1

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 12, 2007, by and among Tontine Capital Partners, L.P., Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.
and the other borrowers parties thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
December 17, 2007)

4.2

First amendment, dated November 12, 2008, to Note Purchase Agreement by and among Tontine Capital Partners, L.P., Integrated Electrical
Services, Inc. and other borrowers thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed
November 12, 2008)

4.3

Amendment No. 1 to Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 9, 2012, by and among Tontine Capital Partners, L.P., Integrated
Electrical Services, Inc. and the other borrowers parties thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed August 13, 2012)

4.4

Amended and Restated Senior Subordinated Note, dated as of August 9, 2012. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 13, 2012)

4.5

Specimen common stock certificate. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 18,
2008)

10.1

Restated Underwriting, Continuing Indemnity and Security Agreement, dated May 12, 2006, by Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. and
certain of its subsidiaries and affiliates in favor of Federal Insurance Company. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 17, 2006)

10.2

First Amendment, dated as of October 30, 2006, to the Restated Underwriting, Continuing Indemnity, and Security Agreement, dated
May 12, 2006, by Integrated Electrical Services, Inc., certain of its subsidiaries and Federal Insurance Company and certain of its affiliates.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 6, 2006)
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10.3

Third Amendment, dated May 1, 2007, to the Restated Underwriting, Continuing Indemnity and Security Agreement, dated May 12, 2006,
by Integrated Electrical Services, Inc., certain of its subsidiaries and Federal Insurance Company and certain of its affiliates. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 12, 2007)

10.4

Fourth Amendment to the Restated Underwriting, Continuing Indemnity and Security Agreement, dated May 12, 2006, by Integrated
Electrical Services, Inc., certain of its subsidiaries and Federal Insurance Company and certain of its affiliates. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 12, 2007)

10.5

Rider to Add Principal/Indemnitor and Fifth Amendment, dated September 29, 2008, to Restated Underwriting, Continuing Indemnity,
and Security Agreement, dated May 12, 2006, by Integrated Electrical Services, Inc., certain of its subsidiaries and Federal Insurance
Company and certain of its affiliates. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
October 24, 2008)

10.6

Agreement of Indemnity, dated May 7, 2010, by Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. and certain of its present and future subsidiaries and
affiliates and Chartis Property Casualty Company, Chartis Insurance Company of Canada, American Home Assurance Company,
Commerce and Industry Insurance Company, Granite State Insurance Company, Lexington Insurance Company, National Union Fire
Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa., New Hampshire Insurance Company and The Insurance Company of the State of Pennsylvania and
any and all of their affiliates, subsidiaries, successors and assigns. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed May 13, 2010)

10.7

Amendment No. 1 to Agreement of Indemnity, dated August 16, 2012, between Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. and certain of its
present and future subsidiaries and affiliates and Chartis Property Casualty Company, Chartis Insurance Company of Canada, American
Home Assurance Company, Commerce and Industry Insurance Company, Granite State Insurance Company, Lexington Insurance
Company, National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa., New Hampshire Insurance Company and The Insurance Company of
the State of Pennsylvania, and any and all of their affiliates, subsidiaries, successors and assigns (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 17, 2012)

10.8

Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 12, 2006, by and among Integrated Electrical Services, Inc., and its subsidiaries, Bank of
America, N.A. and the lenders party thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
May 17, 2006)

10.9

Amendment, dated October 1, 2006, to Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 12, 2006, by and among the Company and its
subsidiaries, Bank of America, N.A. and the lenders party thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed December 5, 2006) Report on Form 8-K filed December 5, 2006)

10.10

Amendment and Waiver, dated October 13, 2006, to Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 12, 2006, by and among the Company and
its subsidiaries, Bank of America, N.A. and the lenders party thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed October 19, 2006)

10.11

Amendment, dated December 11, 2006, to Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 12, 2006, by and among the Company and its
subsidiaries, Bank of America, N.A. and the lenders party thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed December 15, 2006)

10.12

Amendment, dated May 7, 2007, to Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 12, 2006, by and among the Company and its subsidiaries,
Bank of America, N.A. and the lenders party thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed May 10, 2007)
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10.13

Amendment, dated December 11, 2007, to Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 12, 2006, by and among Integrated Electrical
Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries, Bank of America, N.A. and the lenders party thereto (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 17, 2007)

10.14

Amendment, dated March 5, 2008, to Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 12, 2006, by and among the Company and its subsidiaries,
Bank of America, N.A. and the lenders party thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed March 17, 2008)

10.15

Amendment, dated May 7, 2008, to Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 12, 2006, by and among the Company and its subsidiaries,
Bank of America, N.A. and the lenders thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10Q filed on May 12, 2008)

10.16

Amendment, dated as of August 13, 2008, to Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 12, 2006, by and among Integrated Electrical
Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries, Bank of America, N.A. and the lenders party thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed December 15, 2008)

10.17

Amendment, dated April 30, 2010, to Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 12, 2006, by and among Integrated Electrical Services,
Inc. and its subsidiaries, Bank of American, N.A. and the lenders party thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 6, 2010)

10.18

Amendment, dated December 15, 2011, to Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 12, 2006, by and among the Company and its
subsidiaries, Bank of America, N.A. and the lenders party thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed December 20, 2011)

10.19

Pledge Agreement, dated May 12, 2006, by and among Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries, Bank of America, N.A. and
the lenders party thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 17, 2006)

10.20

Credit and Security Agreement, dated August 9, 2012. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed August 13, 2012)

10.21

Subcontract, dated June 17, 2009, by and between IES Commercial, Inc. and Manhattan Torcon A Joint Venture. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 24, 2009)

10.22

Letter Agreement, dated November 4, 2009, by and between Integrated Electrical Services, Inc., IES Commercial, Inc. and Manhattan
Torcon A Joint Venture. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 24,
2009)

10.23

Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 12, 2006, by and among Integrated Electrical Services, Inc., Tontine Capital Partners, L.P. and
certain of its affiliates and Southpoint Master Fund, L.P. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed May 17, 2006)

10.24

First Amendment to Registration Rights Agreement, dated September 11, 2007, by and among Integrated Electrical Services, Inc., Tontine
Capital Partners, L.P. and certain of its affiliates.(1)

10.25

Term Life Insurance Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 17,
2007)

10.26

Form of Phantom Share Award. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
November 19, 2007)
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10.27

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 17, 2006)

10.28

Amended and Restated Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 24, 2010)

10.29

Annual Management Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed
November 19, 2007)

10.30

Management Incentive Plan fiscal 2010 (Incorporated be reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on December 11, 2009)

10.31

Amended and Restated 2009 Deferred Compensation Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed December 15, 2008)

10.32

Long Term Incentive Program Payment Schedule for Fiscal Year 2009 — 2010. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 12, 2008)

10.33

Management Incentive Plan Fiscal 2010 Performance criteria (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companies to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 11, 2009)

10.34

Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. Long Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 23, 2009)

10.35

Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. Executive Severance Benefit Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 27, 2012)

10.36

Employment Agreement, dated March 29, 2010, by and between the Company and Terry L. Freeman. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 31, 2010)

10.37

First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated September 24, 2010, by and between the Company and Terry L. Freeman.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 24, 2010)

10.38

Consulting Agreement, dated January 20, 2012, by and between the Company and Terry L. Freeman.(1)*

10.39

Separation Agreement, dated August 31, 2012, by and between the Company and William L. Fiedler.(1)*

10.40

Consulting Agreement, dated August 31, 2012, by and between the Company and William L. Fiedler.(1)*

21.1

Subsidiaries of the Registrant(1)

23.1

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP(1)

31.1

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of James M. Lindstrom, Chief Executive Officer(1)

31.2

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Robert W. Lewey, Chief Financial Officer(1)

32.1

Section 1350 Certification of James M. Lindstrom, Chief Executive Officer(1)

32.2

Section 1350 Certification of Robert W. Lewey, Chief Financial Officer(1)

**101.INS

XBRL Instance Document

**101.SCH

XBRL Schema Document

**101.LAB

XBRL Label Linkbase Document

**101.PRE

XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document
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**101.DEF

XBRL Definition Linkbase Document

**101.CAL

XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document

*
**

Management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed herewith pursuant to Item 15(a)(3) of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
Furnished herewith

(1) Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on December 14, 2012.
INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.
By:

/ S/ JAMES M. LINDSTROM
James M. Lindstrom
Chief Executive Officer and President

POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of the undersigned officers and directors of INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC. hereby
constitutes and appoints James M. Lindstrom and Gail D. Makode, and each of them individually, as his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full
power of substitution, for him and on his behalf and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign, execute and file any or all amendments to
this report, with any and all exhibits thereto, and all other documents required to be filed therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission or any
regulatory authority, granting unto each such attorney-in-fact and agent, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite
and necessary to be done in and about the premises in order to effectuate the same, as fully to all intents and purposes as he himself might or could do, if
personally present, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or either of them, or their or his substitutes or substitute, may
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on December 14, 2012.
Signature

Title

/s/ James M. Lindstrom
James M. Lindstrom
/s/ Robert W. Lewey
Robert W. Lewey
/s/ Charles H. Beynon
Charles H. Beynon
/s/ Joseph L. Dowling III
Joseph L. Dowling III
/s/ David B. Gendell
David B. Gendell
/s/ Donald L. Luke
Donald L. Luke
/s/ John E. Welsh III
John E. Welsh III

Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
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Exhibit 10.24
FIRST AMENDMENT TO REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT
This FIRST AMENDMENT (this “Amendment”), dated as of September
, 2007, by and among Integrated Electrical Services, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (“Company”), and the stockholders signatories hereto, amends that certain Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 12, 2006
(the “Registration Rights Agreement”) by and among the Company and the stockholders party thereto.
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the parties hereto wish to amend the terms of the Registration Rights Agreement, as set forth herein; and;
WHEREAS, capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the respective meaning assigned to such terms in the Registration Rights
Agreement.
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1. Amendment to Definition of “Additional Holders”. The definition of “Additional Holders” is hereby amended and restated as follows:
“‘Additional Holders’ shall mean (a) any Affiliate of any Holder who acquires Common Stock or Other Securities and (b) the Permitted Assignees
of Registrable Securities who, from time to time, acquire Registrable Securities from a Holder or Holders and own Registrable Securities at the relevant time,
agree to be bound by the terms hereof and become Holders for purposes of this Agreement.”
2. Holders. Without limitation on any party which may acquire Registrable Securities in the future and become party to the Registration Rights
Agreement, the following are Holders for purposes of the Registration Rights Agreement:
Tontine Capital Partners, L.P.
Tontine Partners, L.P.
Tontine Overseas Associates, L.L.C.
Tontine Overseas Fund, Ltd.
Tontine Capital Overseas Master Fund, L.P.
Jeffrey L. Gendell
3. Ratification of Agreement. Except as amended hereby, the Registration Rights Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and is hereby ratified
and confirmed.

4. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which,
when taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.
[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Amendment to the Registration Rights Agreement as of the date first written above.
COMPANY
INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.
By: /s/ Curt L. Warnock
Name: Curt L. Warnock
Title: Senior Vice President
HOLDERS
TONTINE CAPITAL PARTNERS, L.P.
TONTINE PARTNERS, L.P.
TONTINE OVERSEAS ASSOCIATES, L.L.C.
TONTINE OVERSEAS FUND, LTD.
TONTINE CAPITAL OVERSEAS MASTER FUND, L.P.
JEFFREY L. GENDELL
By: /s/ Jeffrey L. Gendell
Jeffrey L. Gendell, individually, and as managing
member of Tontine Capital Management, L.L.C., general
partner of Tontine Capital Partners, L.P., and as managing
member of Tontine Management, L.L.C., general partner
of Tontine Partners, L.P., and as managing member of
Tontine Overseas Associates, L.L.C., the investment
adviser to Tontine Overseas Fund, Ltd., and as managing
member of Tontine Capital Overseas GP, L.L.C., general
partner of Tontine Capital Overseas Master Fund, L.P.
Signature Page to First Amendment
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Exhibit 10.38
CONSULTING AGREEMENT
This Consulting Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered to be effective as of February 1, 2012, by and between Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.
(hereinafter “IES” or the “Company”) and Terry L. Freeman (hereinafter “Consultant”).
RECITALS
WHEREAS, until his separation from the Company on January 20, 2012 Consultant was an officer of IES, as well as an officer and director of
subsidiaries of IES (collectively the IES Companies); and
WHEREAS, Consultant has expertise in the area of IES’ business and is willing to provide consulting services to IES as set forth herein and it is
contemplated the Consultant will devote the necessary time in fulfillment of this Agreement, and
WHEREAS, IES is willing and desires to engage Consultant as an independent contractor, and not as an employee, on the terms and conditions Set
forth herein.
AGREEMENT
In consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual promises set forth herein, and intending to be legally bound, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1. Terms And Scope Of Services
a. This Agreement shall control and govern all work performed by Consultant under subsequent verbal or written orders or agreements for any
type of service performed. No subsequent variance from, amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be binding upon the IES Companies
unless it is in writing, expressly provides that it is intended as a variance, amendment or modification and is executed by a fully authorized
representative of IES Companies.
b. The term of this Agreement and scope of services to be provided hereunder is set forth in “Exhibit A” and as further modified and amended
under subsequent Written agreements between the parties. It is Understood that the maximum number of hours of services to be provided hereunder is
40 hours per month up to an aggregate maximum of 120 hours during the Term, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the parties hereto.
2. Term; Termination; Rights on Termination. This Agreement will commence on the date first written above, and unless modified by the mutual
written agreement of the parties, shall continue for a period of six (6) months. This Agreement may be terminated at any time, with or without cause, by either
party with ten (10) days written notice to the other party.
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In the event IES terminates this Agreement during the Term of this Agreement, Consultant shall receive from IES, the monthly Consulting Fee
(defined below) then in effect for whatever time period is remaining under the Term of this Agreement.
3. Compensation.
a. Consulting Fee. In consideration of the services to be performed by Consultant, IES agrees to pay Consultant twenty thousand and 00/100
dollars ($20,000,00) payable in six (6) monthly installments in the amount of three thousand three hundred thirty-three and 33/100 dollars ($3,333.33)
payable on or before the last business day of each month during the Term of this Agreement (“Consulting Fee”).
b. Business Expenses. All travel and out of pocket expenses incurred by Consultant for the benefit of the IES Companies and in the performance
of this agreement shall be reimbursed by the Company within ten (10) business days following presentation of valid expense receipts.
4. Taxes. Consultant agrees to accept exclusive liability for the payment of any payroll taxes, contributions for unemployment insurance, old age and
survivor’s insurance or annuities, which are based On wages, salaries or other remuneration paid to Consultant; and Consultant agrees to reimburse IES for
any of the aforesaid taxes or contributions which by law IES may be required to pay because of Consultant’s failure to pay the same.
Further, the Consultant agrees to accept exclusive liability for the payment of any tax obligation under IRC §409A which are based on wages,
salaries, or other remuneration paid to Consultant and Consultant agrees to reimburse IES for any of the aforesaid taxes or contributions which by law IES
may be required to pay because of Consultant’s failure to pay the same.
5. Relationship Of The Parties
a. The Consultant as an independent contractor shall perform the services rendered under this Agreement. It is specifically understood and agreed
that the manner and means of performing the services required under this Agreement shall be at the sole discretion of the Consultant through use of his
independent judgment.
b. The Consultant shall have no authority to bind IES Companies or any of its officers or employees to any agreement or to make managerial or
Consultant decisions that are binding on IES Companies. The Consultant shall not be subject to the supervision, direction or control of IES Companies
as to the particular means or methods of performing his services. However, the IES Companies shall retain the right to review and inspect at any time
any part of the work performed by Consultant to assure compliance with customary standards arid specifications.
Page 2 of 4

Terry Freeman - Consulting Agreement
6. Delivery of Proprietary and Confidential Information. Upon request or when Consultant’s relationship with the Company terminates, Consultant will
immediately deliver to the Company all copies of any and all materials and writings received from, created for, or belonging to the Company including, but
not limited to, those which relate to or contain Proprietary or Confidential Information.
7. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement between the parties hereto with respect to its subject matter and
supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral agreements, representations or warranties between them respecting the subject matter hereof.
8. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only by a writing signed by Consultant and by a duly authorized officer of IES.
9. Remedy for Breach. Should either Consultant or IES resort to legal proceedings to enforce this Agreement, the prevailing party in such legal
proceeding shall be awarded, in addition to such other relief as may be granted, attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in connection with such proceeding.
10. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and all actions arising hereurider shall be governed by, the laws of the State
of Texas and any dispute will be resolved in Harris County, Texas.
11. This Agreement is executed in duplicate originals and is not effective unless signed by both parties.
Consultant

Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.

/s/ Terry L. Freeman
Terry L. Freeman

By: /s/ William L. Fiedler
William L. Fiedler
Senior Vice President
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EXHIBIT “A”
SCOPE OF SERVICES
IES hereby engages Consultant to render, as an independent contractor to:
1.

Review of Forms 10-K and 10-Q.

2.

Consult with management regarding account and disclosure issues, internal controls and other related accounting and finance matters.

3.

Assist in the evaluation of and consult with management regarding the refinancing of the Company’s credit facility.

It is contemplated that the Consultant may not be asked to perform all of the above listed services during the performance of this Agreement. At the same
time, it is contemplated that the Consultant may be asked to render and perform other valued consulting services to the Company. All services rendered and
performance thereof, shall be at the direction of the Chief Financial Officer of IES.
Page 4 of 4
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INTEGRATED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC.
SEPARATION AND GENERAL RELEASE AGREEMENT
This Separation and General Release Agreement (“Agreement”), dated as of August 31, 2012, is between William L. Fiedler (“Executive”) and
Integrated Electrical Services, Inc., and its subsidiaries and affiliated companies (collectively, the “Company”).
RECITALS
WHEREAS, Executive and the Company entered into a certain Employment Agreement dated March 9, 2009, which was subsequently amended and
restated by that certain Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated September 24, 2010 (collectively, the “Employment Amendment”);
WHEREAS, the Company and Executive have mutually elected to terminate the Employment Agreement and Executive’s employment with the
Company pursuant to Section IV.C thereof;
WHEREAS, Executive is entitled to certain specified severance benefits pursuant to Section IV.C.3 of the Employment Agreement; and
WHEREAS, the receipt of such severance benefits is expressly conditioned on Executive entering into and not revoking a general release pursuant to
Section IV.G of the Employment Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, the mutual agreements and undertakings of the parties set forth below, and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and sufficiency of which are hereby expressly acknowledged, Executive and the Company agree as
follows:
AGREEMENT
1.

Separation Date
Executive’s last day of employment with the Company shall be August 31, 2012 (“Separation Date”).

2.

Severance

Subject to paragraph 4 below, it is understood that pursuant to Section IV.C.3 of the Employment Agreement the Company will provide Executive
certain severance payments and benefits (“Severance Payments”), including the following:
a. Base Salary Continuation. Executive shall receive $300,000.00 (less applicable state and federal taxes, Medicare, FICA and other customary
deductions) payable ratably over a twelve (12) month period in accordance with the Company’s normal payroll practices commencing September 1, 2012.

b. Pro-Rated 2012 Annual Bonus. Executive shall be entitled to an Annual Bonus for the 2012 Fiscal Year, pro-rated based on the percentage of the
2012 Fiscal Year that shall have elapsed through the Separation Date. The amount of any Annual Bonus shall be as determined by the Compensation
Committee, including its determination of the extent the performance objectives, if any, for the 2012 Fiscal Year have been achieved, and such Annual
Bonus, if any, shall be payable at the same time that the annual bonuses for the 2012 Fiscal Year are paid to other similar executives of the Company.
c. Restricted Stock Grants. Executive was granted an award of 14,200 shares of Restricted Company Common Stock on September 28, 2010 of which
13,609 shares shall vest on the Separation Date and an award of 10,000 shares of Restricted Company Common Stock on December 16, 2010 of which 2,222
shares shall vest on the Separation Date, in accordance with the terms of such grants (collectively, the “Vested Shares”). The Vested Shares (net of shares
Executive elects to be withheld to satisfy federal and state income tax withholding) will be made available to Executive in book entry form at the Company’s
transfer agent (American Stock Transfer & Trust Company LLC) as soon as reasonably practicable following the Separation Date.
d. COBRA Payments. In the event Executive elects to continue to participate in the Company’s group health plans following termination of
employment as provided under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended (“COBRA”), Executive will be paid an amount
equal to 100% of the applicable monthly COBRA premium under the Company’s group health plans (less applicable state and federal taxes, Medicare, FICA
and other customary deductions). Such payments shall continue for the lesser of twelve (12) months or until such COBRA coverage for Executive and his
eligible dependents terminates. Executive agrees to notify the Company at such time that he no longer is eligible for COBRA benefits.
e. Automobile Allowance. Executive’s shall receive $1,500.00 per month (less applicable state and federal taxes, Medicare, FICA and other customary
deductions) as continuation of his automobile allowance for twelve (12) months immediately following the Separation Date or until Executive obtains
comparable employment, whichever is shorter.
f. Outplacement Assistance. Company shall reimburse Executive for the cost of outplacement services reasonably incurred by Executive during the
twelve (12) month period immediately following the Separation Date or until Executive obtains comparable employment, whichever is shorter, in an amount
not to exceed $20,000. The outplacement services provider shall be mutually agreed between Executive and the Company.
3.

Other Benefit and Compensation Plans

This Agreement does not affect any previously vested rights to funds or benefits under the Company’s welfare or benefit plans. All benefits and
distributions under those plans will be remitted in accordance with the terms and conditions of such plans.
4.

General Release

a. In consideration of the Severance Payments that Executive is to receive pursuant to Section IV.C of the Employment Agreement, Executive agrees to
release and forever discharge the Company and all of its present and former officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, insurers, affiliates, parents,
subsidiaries, and representatives (the “Released Parties”), from any and all claims (including, but not limited
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to, costs and attorneys’ fees), demands, rights and causes of action of whatever kind or nature, joint or several, under any federal, state or local statute,
ordinance or under the common law, including, but not limited to, (i) claims arising under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, the Older Workers’
Benefit Protection Act, the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Executive Retirement Income
Security Act (except for any cause of action under ERISA relating to an employee benefit plan that is qualified under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended, or that is a medical or health care plan), the Family and Medical Leave Act, the Equal Pay Act, the Fair Labor Standards Act and
all local ordinances; (ii) those arising under common law, including but not limited to claims or suits for invasion of privacy, intentional and negligent
infliction of emotional distress, defamation, libel, slander, intentional interference with contractual relations, breach of the implied covenant of good faith
and fair dealing, breach of contract, wrongful termination and negligence; and (iii) any other action, complaint, charge or grievance against the Company,
including claims for breach of any contract with the Company, which Executive now has against the Company or ever had from the beginning of the world
up to the Separation Date, whether known or unknown, which are based on acts or facts arising or occurring prior to the execution of this Agreement. It is
expressly agreed that the claims released pursuant to this Agreement include all waivable claims against individual employees of the Company whether or
not acting within the scope of their duties, individually or in any other capacity. Executive acknowledges that, if a court declares any portion of this
paragraph to be invalid or unenforceable, the balance of terms of this paragraph shall remain in full force and effect. Any such invalid portion shall be
deemed severable.
b. Executive acknowledges that he has had a full and fair opportunity to review this Agreement, including the general release set forth in paragraph 4.a
above, and has been allowed twenty-one (21) days to consider this Agreement before signing it. Executive certifies that he/she has carefully read and
understands all of the provisions of this agreement and knowingly and voluntarily agreeing to be bound by its terms. Executive understands that rights or
claims under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (29 U.S.C. § 621, et seq.) that may arise after the date this Agreement is signed are not
waived. Executive may revoke this Agreement within seven (7) calendar days after signing it by delivering a written statement to the Company by hand
delivery, facsimile transmission or by registered mail, and this Agreement will not be effective or enforceable until expiration of that seven-day revocation
period. The revocation notice must be directed to the Company as follows:
Heather Sahrbeck
Senior Vice President & General Counsel
Integrated Electrical Service, Inc.
One Sound Shore Drive
Suite 304
Greenwich, CT 06830
5.

Continuing Obligations

Executive understands and acknowledges that under the terms of his Employment Agreement, he is bound by certain continuing obligations to the
Company, including but not limited to, matters addressed in Sections V (Non-Competition; Non-Solicitation) and VI (Confidentiality; Intellectual Property).
6.

Transition; Cooperation

From time to time after the Separation Date the Company may require Executive’s assistance and reasonable cooperation in connection with certain
legal proceedings and other matters that relate to events occurring during Executive’s employment with the Company, such assistance and reasonable
cooperation Executive agrees to provide.
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7.

Miscellaneous

a. Executive agrees that on or before the Separation Date, he will return to the Company all property belonging to the Company, including but not
limited to keys, credit cards, telephone calling card, files, records, computer access codes, computer hardware, computer programs, instruction manuals,
business plans, and all other property and documents which Executive prepared or received in connection with his employment with the Company, except
those records and documents the Company has authorized him in writing to retain.
b. Executive acknowledges and agrees (i) he is responsible for any tax liability that may result as a consequence of the receipt of the severance benefits
described herein, (ii) the Company makes no representation regarding the taxability of the severance benefits and (iii) the Company has encouraged him to
seek advice from a personal tax advisor regarding the duty and manner to report any possible tax consequences. The money paid under this Agreement does
not come from a qualified retirement plan and therefore it may not be rolled into any other qualified plan or Individual Retirement Account.
c. This Agreement shall be binding upon Executive and the Company and upon their heirs, administrators, representatives, executors, and assigns.
Executive expressly warrants that he/she has not transferred to any person or entity any rights, causes of action or claims released in this Agreement.
d. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between the parties and, with the exception of the Employment Agreement, fully supersedes all prior
written and oral agreements, understandings and representations between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.
e. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Agreement shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Employment Agreement.
f. This Agreement shall be governed and construed under the laws of the state of Texas. Any legal proceeding arising as a result of or relating to this
Agreement, the Employment Agreement, Executive’s employment or separation shall be filed and heard in the city of Houston, Harris County, Texas without
regard to conflicts of law.
Executive

Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.

/s/ William L. Fiedler
William L. Fiedler

By:

/s/ James M. Lindstrom
James M. Lindstrom

Date: 9/4/12

Title:

President and Chief Executive Officer

Date:

8/31/12
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Exhibit 10.40
CONSULTING AGREEMENT
This Consulting Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered to be effective as of September 1, 2012, by and between Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.
(hereinafter “IES” or the “Company”) and William L. Fiedler (hereinafter “Consultant”).
RECITALS
WHEREAS, until his separation from the Company on August 31, 2012 Consultant was an officer of IES, as well as an officer and director of
subsidiaries of IES (collectively the IES Companies); and
WHEREAS, Consultant has expertise in the area of IES’ business and is willing to provide consulting services to IES as set forth herein and it is
contemplated the Consultant will devote the necessary time in fulfillment of this Agreement, and
WHEREAS, Consultant is willing and desires to enter into this Agreement for consideration as set forth herein in lieu of payment by the Company for
outplacement services as described in section 2(f) of the Separation and General Release Agreement between the Company and Consultant dated as of
August 31, 2012 (the “Separation Agreement”), and
WHEREAS, IES is willing and desires to engage Consultant as an independent contractor, and not as an employee, on the terms and conditions set
forth herein.
AGREEMENT
In consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual promises set forth herein, and intending to be legally bound, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1. Terms And Scope Of Services
a. This Agreement shall control and govern all work performed by Consultant under subsequent verbal or written orders or agreements for any
type of service performed. No subsequent variance from, amendment to or modification of this Agreement shall be binding upon the IES Companies
unless it is in writing, expressly provides that it is intended as a variance, amendment or modification and is executed by a fully authorized
representative of IES Companies.
b. The term of this Agreement and scope of services to be provided hereunder is set forth in “Exhibit A” and as further modified and amended
under subsequent written agreements between the parties. It is understood that the maximum number of hours of services to be provided hereunder is
40 hours per month up to an aggregate maximum of 120 hours during the Term, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the parties hereto.
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2. Term; Termination; Rights on Termination. This Agreement will commence on the date first written above, and unless modified by the mutual
written agreement of the parties, shall continue for a period of six (6) months. This Agreement may be terminated at any time, with or without cause, by either
party with ten (10) days written notice to the other party.
In the event IES terminates this Agreement during the Term of this Agreement, Consultant shall receive from IES, the monthly Consulting Fee
(defined below) then in effect for whatever time period is remaining under the Term of this Agreement.
3. Compensation.
a. Consulting Fee. In lieu of payment by the Company for outplacement assistance as described in section 2(f) of the Separation Agreement, and
in consideration of the services to be performed by Consultant, IES agrees to pay Consultant twenty thousand and 00/100 dollars ($20,000.00) payable
in six (6) monthly installments in the amount of three thousand three hundred thirty-three and 33/100 dollars ($3,333.33) payable on or before the last
business day of each month during the Term of this Agreement (“Consulting Fee”).
b. Business Expenses. All travel and out of pocket expenses incurred by Consultant for the benefit of the IES Companies and in the performance
of this agreement shall be reimbursed by the Company within ten (10) business days following presentation of valid expense receipts.
4. Taxes. Consultant agrees to accept exclusive liability for the payment of any payroll taxes, contributions for unemployment insurance, old age and
survivor’s insurance or annuities, which are based on wages, salaries or other remuneration paid to Consultant; and Consultant agrees to reimburse IES for
any of the aforesaid taxes or contributions which by law IES may be required to pay because of Consultant’s failure to pay the same.
Further, the Consultant agrees to accept exclusive liability for the payment of any tax obligation under IRC §409A which are based on wages,
salaries, or other remuneration paid to Consultant and Consultant agrees to reimburse IES for any of the aforesaid taxes or contributions which by law IES
may be required to pay because of Consultant’s failure to pay the same.
5. Relationship Of The Parties
a. The Consultant as an independent contractor shall perform the services rendered under this Agreement. It is specifically understood and agreed
that the manner and means of performing the services required under this Agreement shall be at the sole discretion of the Consultant through use of his
independent judgment.
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b. The Consultant shall have no authority to bind IES Companies or any of its officers or employees to any agreement or to make managerial or
Consultant decisions that are binding on IES Companies. The Consultant shall not be subject to the supervision, direction or control of IES Companies
as to the particular means or methods of performing his services. However, the IES Companies shall retain the right to review and inspect at any time
any part of the work performed by Consultant to assure compliance with customary standards and specifications.
6. Delivery of Proprietary and Confidential Information. Upon request or when Consultant’s relationship with the Company terminates, Consultant will
immediately deliver to the Company all copies of any and all materials and writings received from, created for, or belonging to the Company including, but
not limited to, those which relate to or contain Proprietary or Confidential Information.
7. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement between the parties hereto with respect to its subject matter and
supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral agreements, representations or warranties between them respecting the subject matter hereof.
8. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only by a writing signed by Consultant and by a duly authorized officer of IES.
9. Remedy for Breach. Should either Consultant or IES resort to legal proceedings to enforce this Agreement, the prevailing party in such legal
proceeding shall be awarded, in addition to such other relief as may be granted, attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in connection with such proceeding.
10. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and all actions arising hereunder shall be governed by, the laws of the State
of Texas and any dispute will be resolved in Harris County, Texas.
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11. This Agreement is executed in duplicate originals and is not effective unless signed by both parties.
Consultant

Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.

/s/ William L. Fiedler
William L. Fiedler

By: /s/ James M. Lindstrom
James M. Lindstrom
President and Chief Executive
Officer
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EXHIBIT “A”
SCOPE OF SERVICES
IES hereby engages Consultant to render, as an independent contractor to:
1.

Review of Forms 10-K and 10-Q and the FY 2012 Proxy.

2.

Consult with management regarding disclosure issues and other related legal matters.

3.

Assist in the evaluation of and consult with management regarding any potential strategic transactions.

It is contemplated that the Consultant may not be asked to perform all of the above listed services during the performance of this Agreement. At the same
time, it is contemplated that the Consultant may be asked to render and perform other valued consulting services to the Company. All services rendered and
performance thereof, shall be at the direction of the General Counsel of IES.
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
As of September 30, 2012
Subsidiary

IES Residential, Inc.
ICS Holdings LLC
IES Commercial, Inc.
IES Management ROO, LP
IES Management, LP
IES Operations Group, Inc.
IES Properties, Inc.
Integrated Electrical Finance, Inc.
Key Electrical Supply, Inc.
Thomas Popp & Company
IES Tangible Properties, Inc.
IES Purchasing and Materials, Inc.
IES Consolidation LLC
IES Shared Services, Inc.
IES Commercial & Industrial, LLC

Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Delaware
Arizona
Delaware
Texas
Texas
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Texas
Ohio
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-134100) pertaining to the Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.
2006 Equity Incentive Plan of our report dated December 14, 2012, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.
included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended September 30, 2012.
/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Houston, Texas
December 14, 2012

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, James M. Lindstrom, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
Registrant and have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.
Date: December 14, 2012
/s/ JAMES M. LINDSTROM
James M. Lindstrom
President and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Robert W. Lewey, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
Registrant and have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.
Date: December 14, 2012
/s/ ROBERT W. LEWEY
Robert W. Lewey
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with this Annual Report of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ending September 30, 2012 (the
“Report”), I, James M. Lindstrom, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: December 14, 2012

By: /s/ JAMES M. LINDSTROM
James M. Lindstrom
President and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with this Annual Report of Integrated Electrical Services, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ending September 30, 2012 (the
“Report”), I, Robert W. Lewey, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant
to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: December 14, 2012

By: /s/ ROBERT W. LEWEY
Robert W. Lewey
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

